
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

ASSETS, REGENERATION AND GROWTH COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

MONDAY 1ST JUNE, 2015 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF ASSETS, REGENERATION AND GROWTH COMMITTEE (Quorum 
3) 
 

Chairman: Daniel Thomas 
Vice Chairman: Gabriel Rozenberg 
 

Councillors 
 

Gabriel Rozenberg 
Richard Cornelius 
Pauline Coakley Webb 
 

Philip Cohen 
Geof Cooke 
Rohit Grover 
 

Nagus Narenthira 
Shimon Ryde 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Tom Davey  
Val Duschinsky   

Caroline Stock  
Alison Moore   

Paul Edwards  
Ross Houston  
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Service contact: Faith Mwende 020 8359 4917 faith.mwende@barnet.gov.uk 

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

1 - 6 

2.   ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 

4.   REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 

 

5.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 

 

6.   Members Item :  Former Copthall School Grounds - Councillor 
Daniel Thomas  
 

7 - 12 

7.   Breakdown of Existing and Proposed properties for each 
Regeneration Estate  
 

13 - 20 

8.   Community Asset Strategy  
 

21 - 80 

9.   Land at Pavilion Way, Burnt Oak- Appropriation of the site for 
planning purposes and the grant of Tenancy at Will for a temporary 
school building.  
 

81 - 100 

10.   London Borough of Barnet Accommodations Options Review  
 

101 - 164 

11.   Brent Cross Cricklewood Station project update  
 

165 - 188 

12.   Barnet Development Pipeline  
 

189 - 204 

13.   COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 

205 - 216 

14.   ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  
 

 

15.   MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

16.   Brent Cross Cricklewood Station Project Update - EXEMPT 
Appendix D  
 

217 - 238 



 
 
 

 

    

17.   ANY OTHER EXEMPT ITEM(S) THAT THE CHAIRMAN 
DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Faith Mwende 
020 8359 4917 faith.mwende@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text 
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms 
also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 

 
16 March 2015 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Daniel Thomas (Chairman) 

  

 
Councillor Richard Cornelius 
Councillor 
Pauline Coakley Webb 
Councillor Philip Cohen 
Councillor Alison Moore (as 
substitute)  

Councillor Geof Cooke 
Councillor Gabriel Rozenberg 
Councillor Shimon Ryde 
Councillor Val Duschinsky (as substitute) 

 
 

Apologies for Absence 
 

Councillor Daniel Seal 
 

Councillor Nagus Narenthira 
 

 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED - that the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2015 be agreed a correct 
record. 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Daniel Seal, who was substituted 
by Councillor Val Duschinsky, and from Councillor Nagus Narenthira, who was 
substituted by Councillor Alison Moore. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
There were none. 
 

4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 
There was none. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
Jez Simms (on behalf of Sheila Mahmood and separately in his own right), Kanu Dave 
and Stamo Ampatielou made public comments on agenda item 10. 
  
Details of the questions asked and the published answers were provided with the agenda 
papers for the meeting.  
 
Oral responses were given to the supplementary questions at the meeting. 
 

6. MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)  

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

 
There were none. 
 

7. ANNUAL REGENERATION REPORT  
 
The Committee considered the report. 
  
Councillor Cooke moved a motion that was seconded by Councillor Moore, 
 

“The Committee receive a report at the next meeting giving a breakdown for each 
regeneration area since 2003 and aggregation over all areas of the number of 
housing units in each tenure type, before and after the regeneration, the 
difference between them, and time during construction when no housing units are 
available for occupation”  

 
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
For: 9 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 0 
  
The motion was therefore carried. 
 
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
In Favour: 5 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 4 
  
The Committee; 
  
The Committee; 
  
RESOLVED –  

1. To note the general progress being made towards delivering the Borough’s 
regeneration schemes and skills and enterprise activities, including key 
achievements and successes from April 2014 to March 2015, as well as expected 
activities in 2015/16. 
 

2. To note the Forward Plan of Milestones for 2015/16. 
 

3. To receive a report at the next meeting giving a breakdown for each regeneration 
area since 2003 and aggregation over all areas of the number of housing units in 
each tenure type, before and after the regeneration, the difference between them, 
and the time during construction when no housing units are available for 
occupation. 

 
8. LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET ACCOMMODATION OPTIONS REVIEW 

STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  
 
The Committee considered the report. 
  
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 

2



 

3 

  
In Favour: 5 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 4 
  
The Committee; 
  
RESOLVED  

1. To acknowledge and note the contents of the Strategic Outline Case (SOC). 
 

2. To note the SOC indicates the preferred way forward for Barnet Council’s office 
accommodation is to proceed on the basis of a new build development at 
Colindale. 
 

3. That an Outline Business Case (OBC) should be prepared for consideration by 
LBB in June 2015.  

 
9. TOWN CENTRE REPORT  

 
The Committee considered the report. 
 
Councillor Cooke read a letter from a local business suggesting a way in which  the 
council can engage with local businesses. The committee agreed that officers should 
meet with ward councillors to discuss the idea further.  
  
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
In Favour: 9 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 0 
  
The Committee; 
  
RESOLVED –  

1. To approve and confirm the town centres set out in paragraph 2.6 as Main town 
centres. 
 

2. To approve the amendments to the “town centre offer” set out in table 1. 
 

10. DEPOT RELOCATION PROJECT  
 
Councillor Barry Rawlings, Councillor Andreas Ioannidis and Councillor Lisa Rutter had 
requested to address the Committee on this item and made comments in relation to the 
item.  
 
The Committee considered the report. The Chairman invited Members to indicate 
whether they had any questions regarding the information contained in the exempt 
report, which would require the Committee to go into private session. The questions were 
answered in the private session. 
  
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
In Favour: 5 

3



 

4 

Against: 0 
Abstain: 4 
  
Immediately following the decision, four members of the Committee supported a referral 
of the decision to Full Council, because it was considered that the large sum of money 
being paid to secure the deal, in addition to the annual rent, for a short term lease was a 
decision that should be taken by all councillors, not just the members of the committee.  
  
The referral was supported by: 
  
Councillor Phil Cohen 
Councillor Geof Cooke 
Councillor Pauline Coakley Webb 
Councillor Alison Moore 
  
The Committee; 
 
RESOLVED – That having received the requisite number of support for referral, the item 
will be placed on the agenda for consideration by Full Council. 
 

11. BARNET DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE - TRANCHE 1  
 
The Committee considered the report. 
  
Councillor Cooke moved a motion that was seconded by Councillor Moore, 
 
“That all developments by the council on council owned land should be 100% affordable 
housing”  
 
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
For: 4 
Against: 5 
Abstain: 0 
  
The motion was lost. 
 
The Chairman invited Members to indicate whether they had any questions regarding the 
information contained in the exempt appendix, which would require the Committee to go 
into private session. There were none. 
  
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
In Favour: 5 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 4 
  
The Committee; 
  
RESOLVED –  

1. To agree in principle to take forward the development opportunities at Broadfields, 
Whitings Hill, Northway/Fairway, with Coppetts Road and Moxon Street to follow. 
 

4



 

5 

2. To receive a report in June with the preferred development option, and funding 
route for all five sites. 

 
12. DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE PROGRAMME TRANCHE 2  

 
The Committee considered the report. 
 
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
In Favour: 5 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 4 
  
The Committee; 
  
RESOLVED – To approve the principles of the projects within Tranche 2 of the 
Development Pipeline Programme.  
 

13. DAWS LANE  
 
The Committee considered the report. 
 
Having been put to the vote the Committee voted: 
  
In Favour: 9 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 0 
  
The Committee; 
  
RESOLVED – To agree the principle of a community hub on the Daws Lane site and 
instructs officers to come back to the June committee with detailed proposals around the 
redevelopment of Daws Lane as a community hub.   
 

14. COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee noted the work programme. 
 

15. ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were none.  
 

16. MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
The Committee; 
 
RESOLVED – that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended). 
 

17. DEPOT RELOCATION PROJECT - EXEMPT  
 

5



 

6 

The Committee; 
 
RESOLVED - that the information contained in the exempt report be noted. 
 

18. ANY OTHER EXEMPT ITEM(S) THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were none.  
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 10.00 pm 
 
 

6



 

 

Summary 

The report informs the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee of a Member’s Item 
and requests instructions from the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee. 
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee instructions in relation 

to this Member’s item are requested. 

 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 
1 June 2015   

Title  

Member’s Item –  Former Copthall School 
Grounds – Councillor Daniel Thomas  

 

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         None 
 

Officer Contact Details  
Paul Frost, Governance Team Leader  
Email: paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk   
Tel: 020 8359 2205 

AGENDA ITEM 6

7



 

1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 Councillor Daniel Thomas has requested that a Member’s Item be considered 
on the following matter: 
 

1.2 Camden Community Sports and Football Association and Cllr Sury Khatri have 
approached the Council with a proposal regarding the former site of Copthall 
School (adjacent to Chase Lodge Playing Fields).   The attached document 
contains a summary of the proposal and the land required.  Although in need of 
full and proper assessment, this proposal is to be welcomed for its community 
sports focus and for being self-financing. 
 

1.3 I would like the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee to consider this 
item with a view to instruct Officers to work with Camden Community Sports 
and Football Association to help them realise their proposal in time for the 
September 2015 start of season.   

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 No recommendations have been made.  The Assets, Regeneration and 

Growth Committee are therefore requested to give consideration and provide 
instruction. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not applicable.  
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Post decision implementation will depend on the decision taken by the 
Committee. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 As and when issues raised through a Member’s Item are progressed, they will 
need to be evaluated against the Corporate Plan and other relevant policies. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
5.3.1 The Council’s Constitution Meeting Procedure Rules (section 6) states that a 

8



Member, including appointed substitute Members of a Committee may have 
one item only on an agenda that he/she serves.  Members items must be 
within the term of reference of the decision making body which will consider 
the item.  
 

5.3.2 There are no legal references in the context of this report. 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 None in the context of this report.    
 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 Member’s Items allow Members of a Committee to bring a wide range of 

issues to the attention of a Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution.  All of these issues must be considered for their equalities and 
diversity implications.  
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 Email to the Governance Service on 19 May 2015.  
 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



11



12



 

 

Summary 

At the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee meeting on Monday 16th March the 
Committee resolved to agree to receive a report at the next meeting to provide a 
breakdown for each regeneration area since 2003 and aggregation over all areas of the 
number of housing units in each tenure type, before and after the regeneration, the 
difference between them, and the time during construction when no housing units are 
available for occupation. 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee meeting note the information 

on appendix A of the report.  

 
  

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 
11 June 2015  

Title  
Breakdown of Existing and Proposed 
properties for each Regeneration Estate 

Report of Commissioning Director for Growth and Development 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix A -  Forecast Housing Completions & Demolitions 
 

Officer Contact Details  
Paul Frost, Governance Team Leader  
Email: paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk   
Tel: 020 8359 2205 

AGENDA ITEM 7

13



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 As outlined within the summary this report is required in order to provide a 
breakdown for each regeneration area since 2003 and aggregation over all 
areas of the number of housing units in each tenure type, before and after the 
regeneration, the difference between them, and the time during construction 
when no housing units are available for occupation.  
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
1.2 There are no formal recommendations required.  The Assets, Regeneration 

and Growth Committee are therefore noting the information within appendix A.  
 

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

2.1 Not applicable.  
 

3. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

3.1 Not applicable.  
 
 

4. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

4.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

4.2 Not applicable in the context of this report.  
 
 

4.3 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

4.3.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

4.4 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
4.4.1 The Council Constitution under Responsibility for Functions sets out the terms 

of reference for the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes: 
 

• Develop strategies which maximise the financial opportunities of growth; 
and 

• Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings owned, 
rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council 

• To approve any non-statutory plan or strategy within the remit of the 
Committee that is not reserved to Full Council or Policy and Resources. 

 
4.4.2 There are no legal references in the context of this report. 

 

14



4.5 Risk Management 
 

4.5.1 None in the context of this report.    
 
 
4.6 Equalities and Diversity 

  
4.7 Not applicable in the context of this report.  
 
4.8 Consultation and Engagement 

 
4.8.1 None in the context of this report. 

 
5. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
5.1 None  
 
 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A            May 2015 
 

Breakdown of Existing and Proposed properties for each Regeneration Estate 
 

Tables of Data 
 

Table 1 – Breakdown of Existing and Proposed properties for each Regeneration Estate by Tenure 

 
  

Table 2 - Grahame Park: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 

Table 3 – West Hendon: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 

Table 4 – Stonegrove Spur Road: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 

 

Existing Proposed Net Existing Proposed Net Existing Proposed Net Existing Proposed Net

Grahame Park 349 1,867 1,518 1,428 1,076 -352 0 0 0 0 363 363

Existing figures from 2003. 

Proposals are subject to 

change following the 

Stage B Review and the 

new SPD consultation. 

The figure for private 

homes includes retained 

Leaseholders/freeholders 

homes.

West Hendon 171 1,651 1,480 478 258 -220 0 0 0 0 285 285

Existing figures from 2003. 

Includes Pilot Phase (8 

social rented homes) and 

Lakeside (186 homes, 151 

private and 35 social 

rented).

Stonegrove Spur 

Road
201 548 347 402 280 -122 0 0 0 0 109 109

Existing figures from 2003. 

The initial phase 

produced an additional 61 

affordable homes.

Dollis Valley 77 381 304 189 230 41 174 0 -174 0

Existing figures from 2010. 

The "Low Cost 

Ownership"  figure is a 

minimum, and will 

depend on the demand 

for Shared Equity from 

existing owners.

TOTAL 3,649 -653 -174 757

Scheme Comment

Private Ownership 

(Inc. Leaseholder and 

Freeholder)

Social Rent (Secure)

Low Cost Ownership 

(Inc. Shared Ownership & 

Shared Equity)

Social Rent (Non-Secure)

Grahame Park 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Private Homes Built 0 107 48 39 36 52 381 144 154 0 243 78 177 56 116 16 152

Affordable Homes Built 0 106 70 0 55 0 65 0 90 0 53 132 190 56 91 67 57

Total homes taken out of 

supply
tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc 0 176 277 177 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total social rent homes 

taken out of supply
191 0 0 0 0 0 161 257 148 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

West Hendon 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Private Homes Built 0 0 151 0 0 142 0 280 0 0 0 423 0 0 0 178 425

Affordable Homes Built 0 8 35 0 71 3 0 76 0 0 0 116 0 0 0 109 90

Total homes taken out of 

supply
tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc 163 0 125 61 0 0 242 0 0 0 0 0

Total social rent homes 

taken out of supply
4 0 0 0 0 135 0 88 39 0 0 182 0 0 0 0 0

Stonegrove Spur Road 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Private Homes Built 38 98 0 0 58 18 118 126 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Affordable Homes Built 78 67 107 0 35 159 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total homes taken out of 

supply
tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc 84 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total social rent homes 

taken out of supply
61 0 0 187 142 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

17



0

100

200

300

400

500

Private Completed

Affordable Completed

Private

Affordable

Demolition Total

Demolition Social

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700  Private Homes Built

Affordable Homes Built

Total homes taken out of supply

Total social rent homes taken out of supply

Forecast Private Homes Built

Forecast Affordable Homes Built

Forecast total homes taken out of supply

Forecast total social rent homes taken out of

supply

0

100

200

300

400

500

Private Completed

Affordable Completed

Private

Affordable

Demolition Total

Demolition social

Table 5 – Dollis Valley: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 
Table 6 – All Four Regeneration Estates: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 

Note: It has not been possible to provide exact numbers for the ‘Total Number of Homes taken out of Supply’ figures 
as the records are incomplete for prior years. 

 
 
Graphical Representation of Data 
 
Graph 1 - All Four Regeneration Estates: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Graph 2 - Grahame Park: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Graph 3 – West Hendon: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Dollis Valley Phase 2 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Private Homes Built 0 0 0 0 7 61 69 77 79 88 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Affordable Homes Built 0 0 0 0 0 40 46 48 44 72 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total homes taken out of 

supply
tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc 15 102 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total social rent homes 

taken out of supply
0 0 0 0 0 9 47 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All four Regeneration 

Estate schemes total
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Private Homes Built 38 205 199 39 101 243 568 627 233 88 243 501 177 56 116 194 577

Affordable Homes Built 78 181 212 0 161 202 133 124 134 72 53 248 190 56 91 176 147

Total homes taken out of 

supply
tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc 262 278 402 238 0 0 242 0 0 0 0 0

Total social rent homes 

taken out of supply
256 0 0 187 142 150 208 345 187 0 0 182 0 0 0 0 0

18



0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Private Completed

Affordable Completed

Private

Affordable

Demolition Total

Demolition Social

0

50

100

150

200

Private Completed

Affordable Completed

Private

Affordable

Demolition Total

Demolition Social

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Private Completed

Affordable Completed

Total social rent homes taken out of suppy

Private

Affordable

Demolition Total

Forcast Demolition Social

 
 
Graph 4 – Stonegrove Spur Road: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Graph 5 – Dollis Valley: Completions & Forecast Demolitions & Completions 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Graph 6 – All four Regeneration Estates demolitions in the context of the Regeneration Programme  
 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Graph 6: The graph shows the aggregated demolitions across all Regeneration Estates within the context of completions across 
the Regeneration Programme as a whole. 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

The Community Asset Strategy is a key document which sets out the London Borough of 
Barnet’s objectives, focussing on how the Council intends to utilise or re-provide buildings 
for community use over the next five years.   
 
The proposed objectives and aims of the Strategy were presented to the Assets, 
Regeneration and Growth Committee on 15 December 2014 where it was proposed that 
the key principles laid out in the document formed the basis of the full Strategy and be 
taken forward for further consultation with the public and key stakeholders. 
 
At the Assets, Regeneration and Growth committee on 15th December 2014 it was also 
recommended that following consultation a version of the proposed Strategy would be 
presented to the Committee in March 2015.  However, it was decided that to allow further 
consultation to take place, an update would be sent to Committee members with the 
proposed Strategy being prepared for June Committee.    
 
Consultation between December and March took the form of an online survey and three 
public workshops run by an independent company. The feedback from this consultation 
has been incorporated into the proposal attached.  
 
The proposed Community Asset Strategy is set out in Appendix 1.  
 
 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

1
st

 June 2015 
  

Title  Community Asset Strategy  

Report of Chief Operating Officer 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix 1: Draft Community Asset Strategy 

Officer Contact Details  

 
Lesley Meeks, Director Estates and Property Management, 
lesley.meeks@capita.co.uk 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

21



 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee approve Appendix 1 - Draft Community Asset Strategy 
and note the contents of the report. 

2. That the Committee note that, following engagement with existing occupiers 
of community buildings, an implementation plan will be presented to Assets, 
Regeneration and Growth Committee on 07 September 2015. 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee agreed a draft of the 

Council’s Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) in September 2014. 
Following public and stakeholder consultation the SAMP was approved in 
December 2014. The SAMP contained principles for the governance of the 
Council’s estate, and set out the need for a Community Asset Strategy (CAS) 
to decide how to govern these assets in the most effective way.  This report 
presents the proposed Community Asset Strategy – at Appendix 1   
 

1.2 The Council recognises the social and economic contribution voluntary and 
community sector (VCS) organisations make to the Borough and the way in 
which assets can support their work, making their services more sustainable 
and able to provide better value for money in the long term.   
 

1.3 However, part of the Council’s strategy for meeting the current and future 
financial challenges is to maximise the value it gains from its land and assets, 
by ensuring it receives the best possible income or receipts from Council-
owned properties and lands which generate rent or which are sold. This will 
help it fulfil its Duty of Best Value, as set out under the Local Government Act 
1999.  The Council will therefore need to strike a balance between 
commercial use of its assets and opportunities to encourage community 
participation.   
 

Defining the community estate 

 

1.4 In considering the overall portfolio, the SAMP broke the asset base into six 
individual asset types to allow the portfolio to be reviewed and managed in a 
focussed way. The six asset types are: 
 

• Operational estate – held for the delivery of Council services, such as 
libraries, schools, day centres, etc..    

• Community estate – retained primarily for the benefit of the community such 
as community centres and sport facilities.  

• Investment estate - held primarily in order to provide an income and 
investment opportunity 

• Housing portfolio – managed by Barnet Homes  

• Highways and green spaces  

• Development portfolio.     
 

22



1.5 The document approved in December 2015 described the key principles that 
would be taken forward for consultation. This document proposed that 
community assets were buildings or land available to VCS organisations for 
community use such as: community centres and community halls; sport and 
leisure facilities, and various other types of buildings let to community groups, 
such as shops or garages. However, it also noted the potential for a very 
broad definition of community assets, in which any public sector asset can be 
a community asset because of the social and community benefit it provides.  
This could, therefore, also include the Council’s operational buildings.  
 

1.6 The feedback from the consultation was that all Council owned buildings 
should be considered as community buildings and the use of the building 
should dictate whether it is considered to provide community benefit. In the 
revised CAS (Appendix 1) the Council has listened to this feedback and 
proposes that it does consider the majority of its assets as being used for 
community benefit and that where possible it will seek to promote local 
priorities through their use.  
 

1.7 However, the measures set out in this Strategy relate most closely to those 
buildings and land which are occupied by third parties and can both give and 
achieve the greatest benefit by using them to support VCS organisations. 
Therefore asset such as schools, for example, which clearly provide facilities 
for community use, have been excluded from the scope of this Strategy at this 
time as they are subject to a different set of governance arrangements.  It is 
recognised that the list of buildings that fulfil these criteria is not fixed and that 
it will change as some buildings are taken out of use and others become 
available for community participation. In addition, when specific proposals for 
change in an area arise, the Council will be pragmatic about which buildings 
could be included for consideration (for example, the use of libraries).   
 

1.8 Further information about the proposed definition is set out at section 3 of 
Appendix 1.  
 

Consultation 
 

1.9 Prior to development of this Strategy the Council engaged with the community 
formally and informally in a number of ways, including: 
 

• A general survey about civil society and community activism carried out by 
CommUNITY Barnet in 2009 

• A qualitative needs assessment in 2010 

• A review of compliance issues across the estate in 2012 

• A stakeholder engagement meeting in 2013 

• Consultation exercises relating to the Council’s Priorities and Spending 
Review, carried out in 2013 and 2014 

• A series of informal interviews with a range of voluntary and community 
groups in 2014 

• Barnet internet on-line survey, December 2014 to March 2015, which was 
advertised in the local press and through letters sent to community building 
users asking them to complete the survey and indicate if they would be 

23



interested in participating in workshops 

• Three workshops were organised and facilitated by an independent company 
during February/March 2015. They were held on different evenings and 
across the borough so that it was convenient for as many people to participate 
as possible. Community building users were invited by letter and those 
accessing the on-line survey were given a telephone number to register their 
interest.  45 people attended these sessions.  
 

1.10 The consultation carried out between December 2014 and March 2014 was 
designed to seek stakeholders’ and the general public’s response to the 
following specific key areas: 
 

• The definition of community buildings.  

• The objectives and aims of the Strategy. 

• The principles for the governance of community assets. 

• The proposed respective rights and responsibilities for the Council and users 
of the community estate. 

• The proposed policy for community asset transfer. 

• The proposed criteria by which the Council will offer support to voluntary and 
community groups. 
 

1.11 The online survey, launched in December 2014, on the Engage Barnet 
website resulted in 19 responses to the questionnaire by the closing date of 
Friday the 13th February 2015. The questionnaire closing date was extended 
by two weeks and those participating in the workshop were encouraged to 
take part but there were no further responses received. The responses 
showed that approximately 60% of respondents agreed with the Council’s 
proposals whilst about 30% did not agree, as summarised in the table below: 
 
 

Question Strongly 
agree/Tend to 

agree 

Strongly 
disagree/ Tend 
to disagree 

Neither  agree 
nor disagree/ 
Don’t know 

Are these the right 
objectives? 

 

11 5 3 

Will the aims ensure we 
meet our objectives? 

10 5 2 

Have we considered right 
areas for our governance 
principles? 

7 4 2 

Will support criteria help 
achieve the aims of the 
strategy? 

8 4 1 

 
 
1.12 In addition the themes that emerged from the three workshops undertaken 

jointly by LBB, Capita and Futuregov, an independent company who facilitated 
the events, were: 
 

24



• Community Assets should be given a broad definition. 

• The Community Asset Strategy should focus on community need. 

• That LBB should ensure it “gets the basics right” with a focused customer 
service. 

• That the Council should increase the capacity of the community assets over a 
longer term taking an enabling role. 

• That the Council should continue to work with the broader community to better 
match needs with services including the potential for community hubs. 

 
1.13 The full output and summary of the consultation exercises can be found in 

section 4 and a copy of the output from the workshops report prepared by 
Futuregov can be found as Appendix 2 within the CAS document (Appendix 1 
of this report).  
 
 
Hubs and Co-location 
 

1.14 Community hub is a term used in different ways but which usually refers to a 
location where a number of different organisations with a social or community 
focus work in close proximity to each other. Some community hubs contain a 
mix of any of the following: VCS groups, public services, social enterprises 
and small medium enterprises.  Some are in a single building, while others 
may be a network of buildings.  
 

1.15 The Council is keen to establish community hubs in Barnet as they offer an 
opportunity to use the public estate more efficiently. By co-locating groups 
currently based in different buildings, the Council can rationalise the remaining 
community estate. Any capital or revenue receipts can be re-invested in 
Council buildings and /or services. 
 

1.16 A more detailed description of community hubs can be found in section 5 of 
Appendix 1. 
 

Criteria relating to support for community groups, and routes for 
engagement 
 

1.17 The Council recognises the need to be consistent and transparent about the 
circumstances under which it will commit to supporting VCS groups through 
use of its assets and the level of support it is willing to give and what it 
expects in return. This is particularly important in the challenging economic 
climate, as part of the Council’s focus on fairness, responsibility and 
opportunity.  
 

1.18 The CAS aims to ensure that the Council’s community estate is governed 
according to clear, consistent criteria.  Historically, the portfolio has been 
administered on a case by case basis which has made it responsive to the 
needs of individual groups but which has made it difficult to implement a 
consistent approach or to ensure fair, common treatment for different groups.   
 

25



1.19 The CAS contains four criteria which will aim to ensure that the Council can 
realise its objectives with regard to the community estate, as well as fair and 
consistent treatment for all community groups using Council assets. 
 

The criteria relate to: 
 

1. The type of services the group or organisation provides 
2. The extent to which the organisation and its use of the asset supports 

community participation and involvement  
3. The robustness and sustainability of the organization  
4. The ability to maximise utilisation of the asset contributing to the commercial 

viability of the building.  
 

1.20 The Council will operate a standard policy in which rental value of each of its 
community buildings is assessed on full market rental value for community 
use. Where the occupier is deemed to be contributing to local priorities and 
fulfilling other criteria for support, the Council may choose to grant financial 
assistance to provide support (through an agreement with the occupier), at a 
level which reflects the community benefit the organisation is providing. 
 

1.21 The Strategy confirms that in general, the Council will see a full commercial 
rent for a property. This should result in an increased income to the Council, 
some of which will be utilised to fund the grant increases needed to support 
those groups that meet the criteria for funding outlined above.  
 

1.22 The Council is also fully aware that it needs to proceed with caution in terms 
of seeking any changes to rent levels and lease agreements and will seek to 
do this in ways that minimise disruption to the groups involved. 
 

1.23 The detail proposed criteria for governance of the community estate are set 
out in section 6 of Appendix 1. 

   
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 It is important that the Council takes a strategic approach to its community 

asset portfolio and the way in which it can be fully utilised with as many local 
residents and VCS groups taking full advantage of Council owned buildings 
and land. The document sets out guidelines and criteria in relation to the 
overall management and will be used as a reference point for future decisions 
relating to community assets, their use and commercial arrangements.  
 

2.2 The paper recommends that the CAS is approved and during the next three 
months the Council develops an engagement plan (see section 4.2 of this 
report) with users of community buildings to provide an implementation plan 
that can be reviewed by the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee in 
September 2015. This step will allow users of the Council’s buildings to make 
comment on how the Strategy will impact on them from a practical 
perspective. This feedback, together with available information on the building 
condition will enable the Council to build an implementation plan that is 

26



deliverable. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 The Council could decide to continue to manage its community assets on an 
ad hoc basis, considering each building and its use in isolation, but this would 
fail to address the current inconsistencies, or deliver a better utilised and 
compliant community estate in accordance with the Council’s priorities.  

 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 If the recommendations are approved by the Committee, the next steps over 
the period June to September 2015 will be to engage with users of community 
buildings, further improve the information about building conditions, and 
develop an Equalities Impact Assessment which will underpin a detailed 
implementation plan.  This plan will be presented to the Assets, Regeneration 
and Growth committee in September 2015.  The scope of this plan is set out 
in more detail in 4.2.1- 4.2.4 below. 
 

4.2 Within the Community Asset Strategy we have classified the portfolio into 
different categories (see 2.3 of appendix 1) to give us a better overall 
understanding of the constraints on the estate to help us develop our 
implementation plan.  However, this is just an initial rating and the plan itself 
will not be developed without engagement with occupiers of our community 
buildings as described in 4.2.1 below.  

 
4.2.1 During the next three months we will engage with occupiers of community 

properties by: 
 

• Writing to the occupiers with a copy of the Strategy, requesting feedback 
and questions and asking for comments on how they would see this 
impacting their own circumstances; 

• Prioritising the review of those properties highlighted in the CAS as 
requiring action or having potential for community hubs; 

• Holding preliminary discussions on individual arrangements where they 
are occupied and the lease has expired; 

• Building a profile of our users working together to meet local needs and 
ensure the building are used for the benefit of the community.   
 

 
4.2.2 In addition, we will continue to review the data that is available on the current 

community asset base, including information on the condition and compliance 
of the buildings, along with the likely level of need for community facilities in 
Barnet.   
 

4.2.3 For assets where condition and compliance surveys of the buildings are not 
currently available, we will establish a plan and timeline for gathering the data 
in order to further inform our analysis of the financial implications of delivering 
the Strategy.  

27



 

4.2.4 Establish how the Council will measure social benefit through a fair, open, and 
transparent process which is in line with the criteria set out in the CAS 
document attached at Appendix 1. The process will need to establish who will 
make the assessments and how the users of community buildings will be 
engaged in the assessment process. In addition, the Council will need to 
establish what resources are needed to support work between 
commissioners, the Estates team and the building occupiers and to establish 
who will take the role of  facilitator in the development of individual business 
cases.  These business cases will need to demonstrate financial 
sustainability, full utilisation of the building and support for local priorities. 

 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The Corporate Plan 2013 – 2016 includes objectives to “promote responsible 
growth, development and success across the Borough” and to “improve the 
satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough of Barnet 
as a place to live, work and study”. 
 

5.1.2 Relevant outcomes are “to maintain the right environment for a strong and 
diverse local economy” and “to promote family and community well-being and 
encourage engaged, cohesive and safe communities”. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The recommendations to approve the CAS and implement a plan for 
engagement (see section 4.2 of this report) with users of community buildings 
will enable the development of a detailed, evidence-based implementation 
plan highlighting resource and financial implications likely to be required to 
implement the Strategy. 
 

5.2.2 The proposals are designed to allow the Council to realise both financial and 
social/community value from its community estate, recognising that the long-
term benefits of having stronger, more resilient communities also helps the 
Borough to meet current and future financial challenges. 
 

5.2.3 A project will be set up to establish the condition of the community buildings. 
This will consist of an initial desktop study and, where it is deemed necessary, 
full condition and compliance surveys. The full costs of this project will not be 
known until the desktop review is undertaken – however, in addition to the 
costs of project management, if all the buildings were to require condition 
surveys this would be likely to cost in the order of £400k. This will be funded 
from existing reserves. 
 

5.2.4 There is a known backlog of necessary work on a number of community 
buildings, which would cost in the order of £2.7m. However, once condition 

28



surveys have been carried out and a full picture of the condition of these and 
the other community buildings is established, this figure could be significantly 
higher. The data will enable informed decision-making, based on building and 
local needs. It is the Council’s intention to work closely with the individual user 
of each building and, if necessary due to the condition of the building or for 
other reasons, to re-provide an appropriate facility.  The Council will also 
engage with local residents when decisions on community facilities are being 
considered. Funding for the backlog of work required will be addressed in the 
implementation plan brought to ARG later in the year. 
 

5.2.5 Resources will also be required to:  
 

• Support the Council and voluntary and community groups in facilitating the 
development of business cases that demonstrate financial sustainability, full 
utilisation of the building and support for local priorities. 
 

• Develop the criteria and implement and support the process for assessing 
how the Council will consider the relationship between financial value 
obtained from the community estate and the social and community benefit 
delivered by its occupiers, informing the Council’s potential decision to offer 
financial assistance in the form of a rebate in any individual case.  
 

• The Council will consider whether or not a community liaison post may be 
required to carry out these functions. 
 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – sets out the 
terms of reference for the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes: 

• Develop strategies which maximise the financial opportunities of growth;  

• Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings owned, 
rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council; and 

• To approve any non-statutory plan or strategy within the remit of the 
Committee that is not reserved to Full Council or Policy and Resources. 

 
5.4 Risk Management 

 
5.4.1 There is a risk that if the proposed CAS is not approved and used as a 

document to allow engagement with users of community buildings the 
preparation of a detailed evidence based implementation plan will not be 
finalised and it will not be possible to come to an accurate assessment of the 
cost and benefits of the proposed Strategy.  
 

5.4.2 The combined engagement programme and evidence base development 
period to August 2015 (described in section 4 of this report) is designed to 
mitigate the above risks. 
 

5.4.3 There is a risk that the delay to the approval of the final Strategy may have 

29



negative consequences for the Council’s relationship with local voluntary and 
community groups who are keen to engage on the subject of asset use and 
ownership.  Engagement with groups likely to be affected has been planned 
during the next three months to mitigate the impact and to maintain a positive 
relationship.  

 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 The Equality Act 2010, and the Public Sector Equality Duty outlined at section 

149 of the Act, require the Council and all other organisations exercising 
public functions on its behalf to pay due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under the Act; advance equality of opportunity between those 
with a protected characteristic and those without; and to promote good 
relations between those with a protected characteristic and those without.  
The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual 
orientation. The Act also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 
 

The Community Asset Strategy reflects the requirements of the PSED and the 
objectives of the Council’s equal opportunities policy.  In particular it  
 

• Aims to ensure that that the management and use of community assets 
reflect the needs and aspirations of the diversity of Barnet and are used for 
the benefit of the whole community 

• Aims to promote active engagement with all Barnet’s diverse communities 

• Pays due regard to cultural and religious difference where 
locations/facilities are shared by different members of the community  

• Builds on community strengths to promote strong, cohesive communities 
and local resilience. 
 

5.5.2 An Equalities Impact assessment will be carried out as part of the next steps 
(see section 4 of this report) to assist the Council in meeting the requirements 
of the Public Sector Equalities Duty.  
 

5.5.3 The Council will ensure that the consultation and engagement process for the 
Strategy is accessible to all and engages with a wide variety of voluntary and 
community groups. 
 

5.5.4 The policy proposals set out in the Strategy are designed to ensure fair and 
equitable treatment of all Barnet’s communities in relation to their access to 
community assets. 
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 This report and the proposals for the CAS draw on past consultation and 
engagement, which was carried out as is set out in section 4 of Appendix 1. 
 

5.6.2  Further engagement will be carried out as described in section 4 of this 

30



report.  
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
6.1 Approval of the draft Strategic Asset Management Plan, Assets, Regeneration 

and Growth Committee, 8 September 2014 
 
6.2 Approval of the Strategic Asset Management Plan, Assets, Regeneration and 

Growth Committee, 15th December 2014 
 
6.2 Approval of Community Asset Strategy – Draft proposals for consultation, 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 15 December 2014. 
 

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Community 

Asset 

Strategy 

June!

2015

33



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!2!

!

Contents 

1 Introduction!!and!Executive!Summary Page!3

2 The!Community!Estate!in!Barnet Page!6

3 Consultation! Page!12

4 Opportunities!for!Hubs!and!Co"location Page!15

5 Support!for!Community!Groups!and!Routes!for!Engagement! Page!17

6 Governance!Arrangements Page!19

7 Approach!to!Ownership!and!Occupancy Page!22

8 Next!Steps! Page!24

! Appendix!1!
Buildings!and!sites!included!in!the!list!of!Community!Assets

Page!26

! Appendix!2!
FutureGov!Consultation!Report

Page!!"

! Appendix!3!
A!sample!Lease!Agreement!

Page!#$

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!3!

!

Community Asset Strategy  

1. Introduction and Executive Summary 

This!document!sets!out!the!Council’s!strategy!for!making!best!use!of!its!land!and!property!portfolio!

to!support!community!and!voluntary!sector!organisations!whilst!ensuring!that!financial!and!

community!benefits!are!maximised!for!the!benefit!of!residents!and!to!help!deliver!objectives!in!our!

Corporate!Plan.!!

The!Council!has!already!put!in!place!a!Strategic!Asset!Management!Plan
1
!(SAMP)!which!sets!out!our!

vision!for!Council!land!and!property!over!the!next!five!years!and!provides!a!framework!for!

management!of!our!community!assets!(known!collectively!as!the!community!estate)!in!the!context!

of!our!wider!portfolio!of!assets.!!

Whilst!all!Council!assets!and!some!private!assets!

such!as!pubs!and!sports!facilities!have!the!potential!

to!delivery!community!benefits,!this!strategy!

focuses!primarily!on!141!properties!from!our!overall!

portfolio!that!are!used!primarily!for!community!

purposes.!This!strategy!defines!these!as!Council!

owned!land!and!buildings!which!are!used!for!social,!

recreational!or!leisure!purposes,!and!are!occupied!

by!a!variety!of!organisations!ranging!from!charitable!

and!voluntary!groups!to!commercial!leisure!

organisations.!!!!

We!have!consulted!extensively!with!community!and!voluntary!groups!in!developing!this!strategy!and!

will!continue!to!work!closely!with!them!to!implement!this!strategy.!!

Executive Summary  

The!Council!owns!141!sites!across!the!Borough!which!can!be!classed!as!community!assets!because!

they!are!used!primarily!by!third!parties!for!community!activities!rather!than!for!providing!

operational!Council!services.!These!assets!include!sports!facilities,!playing!fields,!bowling!greens,!

gyms!and!sports!centres,!and!a!variety!of!buildings!including!community!halls,!offices,!nurseries!and!

a!community!library
2
.!Some!of!these!sites!are!operated!on!a!commercial!basis!by!the!private!sector!

whilst!others!are!managed!and!used!by!voluntary!and!community!organisations.!

There!are!a!variety!of!lease!arrangements!in!operation!reflecting!the!wide!range!of!uses.!A!number!

of!assets!have!been!transferred!on!long!leases!passing!the!responsibilities!and!financial!benefits!to!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
1
!http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19827/Appendix%201%20"

%20Strategic%20Asset%20Management%20Plan.pdf!

!
2
!Libraries!run!directly!by!the!Council!are!not!included!in!the!scope!of!this!strategy!as!there!is!a!separate!

approach!for!these!

35



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!4!

!

the!lessee,!while!others!have!been!let!on!short!leases!or!licences,!resulting!in!an!element!of!control,!

responsibility!and!rental!income!falling!to!the!Council.!!Whilst!it!is!important!to!maintain!some!

flexibility!in!agreement!of!leases,!moving!forward!the!Council!would!like!to!take!a!more!standardised!

approach!which!provides!clarity!about!the!responsibilities!of!occupiers!and!the!authority!in!relation!

to!the!management!and!maintenance!of!community!assets.!!

The!Council!recognises!the!important!!social!and!economic!contribution!that!the!voluntary!and!

community!sector!(VCS)!makes!to!the!borough!and!appreciates!the!role!it!has!in!helping!to!deliver!

the!objectives!in!the!Council’s!Corporate!Plan!to!ensure!that!Barnet!is!a!place:!

! Of!opportunity,!where!people!can!further!their!quality!of!life.!

! Where!responsibility!is!shared,!fairly.!

! Where!people!are!helped!to!help!themselves,!recognising!that!prevention!is!better!than!

cure.!

! Where!services!are!delivered!efficiently!to!get!value!for!money!for!the!taxpayer.!

!

The!Council!has!also!agreed!a!Community!Participation!Strategy.!!This!sets!out!how!it!will!work!with!

local!residents!and!community!groups!in!order!to!increase!self"sufficiency,!reduce!reliance!on!

statutory!services,!and!make!the!best!possible!use!of!community!strengths!to!tailor!services!to!local!

need.!!Voluntary!and!community!groups!have!a!key!role!to!play!in!achieving!this!vision!and!the!

Strategy!commits!to!making!sure!the!resources!and!assets!which!are!available!to!support!their!work!

are!used!as!effectively!as!possible.!!!

!

Barnet!is!also!facing!severe!financial!pressures!and!has!a!duty!to!ensure!that!it!is!realising!Best!Value!

from!all!its!assets,!including!those!that!are!used!for!community!purposes.!A!key!challenge!for!this!

strategy!is!to!ensure!that!the!social!and!wider!economic!value!provided!by!community!assets!is!

properly!taken!into!account!whilst!maximising!their!contribution!to!helping!the!Council!balance!its!

books.!!

!

The!Council!has!adopted!a!Strategic!

Asset!Management!Plan!(SAMP)!which!

sets!out!the!principles!for!how!it!will!

manage!the!community!estate!within!

the!context!of!its!overall!portfolio!of!land!

and!properties.!The!SAMP!commits!to!

making!efficient!and!effective!use!of!

Council!assets!to!support!community!

groups.!

!

The!Council!recognises!the!importance!

of!ensuring!that!the!community!estate!is!

fit!for!purpose,!maintained!to!a!good!

standard!and!flexible!enough!to!meet!

the!needs!of!local!communities,!whilst!

also!helping!the!Council!to!meet!its!

objectives.!

!!

Building!upon!the!framework!provided!by!the!SAMP,!the!following!objectives!and!principles!for!the!

Community!Asset!Strategy!have!been!identified!and!consulted!upon:!

! !The!Council!will!generate!a!commercial!yield!on!

community!assets,!but!this!could!be!subsided!

where!an!organisation!is!clearly!supporting!the!

Council’s!objectives!or!assisting!with!service!

delivery.!

! The!Community!Asset!Strategy!will!prioritise!

utilisation!of!buildings!and!identifying!

opportunities!for!organisations!to!share!and!co"

locate.!

! The!Community!Asset!Strategy!will!also!set!out!the!

approach!to!community!“right!to!bid”,!and!explore!

how!community!assets!can!be!used!as!a!tool!for!

encouraging!community!engagement.!

!

Fig.!1!–!Principles!for!Community!Estate,!Strategic!

Asset!Management!Plan!2014

36



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!5!

!

!

! To!provide!communities!with!the!best!possible!assets!to!meet!their!local!needs,!investing!in!

modern,!flexible,!functional!space!for!residents!and!VCS!groups!

! To!enable!communities!to!become!active!and!independent,!and!able!to!take!on!more!

responsibility!for!their!local!areas!and!reduce!the!need!for!Council!services!

! To!rationalise!the!Council’s!estate,!without!compromising!these!aims,!to!ensure!it!is!being!

used!efficiently!to!support!the!Council’s!priorities!and!create!the!best!possible!value!for!

residents.!This!should!include!exploring!partnership!working!with!other!public!bodies,!and!

finding!opportunities!to!create!‘community!hub’!facilities!in!which!groups!might!be!co"

located.!

!

To!achieve!these!objectives!the!Council!will!adopt!the!following!approach!to!management!of!

community!assets:!

! We!will!seek!to!generate!a!commercial!yield!on!all!community!assets.!

! Use!some!of!the!additional!income!raised!by!charging!commercial!rents!to!consider!

providing!a!subsidy!where!an!organisation!is!clearly!supporting!the!Council’s!objectives!or!

assisting!with!service!delivery!and!would!not!be!able!to!do!so!without!financial!assistance.!

! Seek!to!maximise!the!use!of!buildings!and!identify!opportunities!for!organisations!to!share!

and!co"locate.!

! Develop!community!hubs!in!the!borough!which!will!provide!a!facility!that!can!be!used!by!a!

variety!of!community!groups.!

! Take!a!positive!approach!to!the!transfer!of!assets!to!the!VCS!where!this!can!be!

demonstrated!to!be!of!benefit!to!the!wider!community!and!help!the!Council!deliver!its!

objectives.!

! Ensuring!that!the!use!of!community!buildings!and!land!fits!with!the!Council’s!objectives!and!

identified!needs!of!the!local!community!

! !

37



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!6!

!

2. The Community Estate in Barnet 

 

2.1 What do we mean by Community Asset? 

 

‘Community!asset’!is!a!term!used!in!a!variety!of!ways,!

from!the!very!narrow!–!in!which!only!land!and!

buildings!owned!or!managed!by!community!

organisations!and!where!profit!is!invested!back!into!

the!community!are!considered!community!assets!–to!

the!very!broad!–!in!which!all!public!and!some!private!

sector!assets!are!considered!a!community!asset!

because!its!use!is!for!the!benefit!of!the!community.!

!

The!feedback!from!consultation!carried!out!in!early!

2015!was!that!all!Council!owned!buildings!should!be!

considered!as!community!buildings!and!the!use!of!

the!building!should!dictate!whether!it!is!considered!

to!provide!community!benefit.!The!Council!has!

listened!to!this!feedback!and!proposes!that!it!does!

consider!the!majority!of!its!assets!as!being!used!for!

community!benefit!and!that!where!possible!it!will!

seek!to!promote!local!priorities!through!their!use.!

!

However,!the!measures!set!out!in!this!Strategy!relate!most!closely!to!those!buildings!and!land!which!

are!occupied!by!third!parties!and!can!both!give!and!achieve!the!greatest!benefit!by!using!them!to!

support! VCS! organisations! –! such! as! community! centres! and! community! halls,! sport! and! leisure!

facilities,! and! various!other! types!of!buildings! let! to! community! groups.!Therefore! assets! such! as!

schools,! for!example,!whose!facilities!are!clearly!provided!for!community!use,!have!been!excluded!

from! the! scope!of! this! Strategy! at! this! time! as! they! are! subject! to! a!different! set!of! governance!

arrangements.!!It!is!recognised!that!the!list!of!buildings!that!fulfil!these!criteria!is!not!fixed!and!that!it!

will! change! as! some! buildings! are! taken! out! of! use! and! others! become! available! for! community!

participation.! In!addition,!when! specific!proposals! for! change! in!an!area!arise,! the!Council!will!be!

pragmatic! about! which! buildings! could! be! included! for! consideration! (for! example,! the! use! of!

libraries).!!!

!

Opportunities!may!also!be!identified!where!there!is!scope!to!share!operational!buildings!with!third!

party!organisations!based!on!local!need!and!the!commissioning!priorities!of!the!respective!services.!!

This!means!there!could!be!circumstances!in!which!particular!assets!or!buildings!currently!used!for!

delivery!of!Council!services!could!become!part!of!the!community!estate.!!It!is!possible,!therefore,!

that!a!Council!service!might!be!co"located!in!a!building!with!voluntary!or!community!groups!or!other!

parties,!either!by!making!use!of!some!of!the!space!in!a!new!building!or!by!reducing!use!of!an!existing!

building,!allowing!other!tenants!to!move!in.!Certain!services!are!more!likely!to!be!well"suited!to!this!

approach!than!others!as!follows:!!

!

! services!where!community!participation,!volunteering,!and!co"production!with!community!

members!are!seen!as!significant!opportunities,!such!as!children’s!centres!or!libraries!

! Projects!which!benefit!from!opportunities!to!integrate!different!services!around!a!particular!

place!or!community.!An!example!of!such!a!project!might!be!a!training!scheme!giving!young!

38



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!7!

!

people!catering!skills,!in!which!part!of!their!training!involves!running!a!lunch!club!for!older!

residents.!

! Services!which!are!developing!a!commissioning!model!which!focuses!on!community!activity.!

!

In!other!cases,!a!Council!asset!may!become!surplus!to!the!requirements!of!the!service!and!the!

Council!may!look!to!dispose!of!it!or!put!it!to!another!use.!In!such!circumstances!the!asset!could!

potentially!be!made!available!for!community!use.!

!

Some!buildings!currently!leased!by!the!Council!solely!for!commercial!purposes!also!have!the!

potential!to!move!in!and!out!of!the!community!estate!–!for!example,!shops!which!fall!into!disuse!

could!be!taken!over!by!a!community!occupier.!!

!

There!is!also!the!potential!for!mixed"use!developments!which!co"locate!commercial!and!community!

occupiers!through,!for!example,!commitments!by!developers!to!provide!community!facilities!as!part!

of!new!developments!through!Section!106!or!Community!Infrastructure!Levy!arrangements.!!

!

It!is!not!the!aim!of!this!strategy!to!seek!to!make!assumptions!about!which!buildings!may!fall!into!this!

category,!but!to!ensure!that!there!is!an!appropriate!policy!framework!in!place,!so!that!when!

opportunities!or!needs!arise,!there!are!no!significant!barriers!in!place!that!prevent!the!right!changes!

taking!place.!

!

The!Council!therefore!recognises!that!there!are!potential!benefits!which!can!be!derived!from!the!

relationship!between!the!community!estate!and!other!assets!used!by!the!Council,!other!public!

sector!bodies!and!commercial!occupiers!(including!privately!owned!assets),!and!that!as!specific!

propositions!in!particular!areas!are!considered!a!wider!view!may!need!to!be!taken.!

!

2.2 What do we know about Barnet’s Community Estate? 

 

Location of Community Assets 

 

As!the!map!opposite!

shows,!the!community!

estate!is!widely!

dispersed!around!the!

borough!providing!the!

potential!for!

rationalisation.!The!table!

attached!at!Appendix!1!

provides!a!complete!list!

of!these!assets.!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

39



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!8!

!

Fig.2 Map of Community Assets in Barnet 

!

 

Types of Asset 

Table!1!below!provides!an!overview!of!Council!owned!buildings!and!land!that!provide!community!

benefit!and!are!let!to!third!parties!and!have!been!consulted!on!as!community!assets:!

 

Description Count Description Count 

Community!Centre! 24 Bowling!Club! 4

Youth!Club! 13 Rugby!Club! 3

Sports!Club!! 10 Gym! 2

Office! 10 Leisure!Centre! 2

Retail! 10 Sports!Pitches! 2

Hall! 8 Nursery! 2

Football!Club! 7 Animal!Clinic! 1

Golf!Club! 7 Garage! 1

Cricket!Club! 7 Library! 1

Miscellaneous! 7 Museum! 1

Vacant! 7 Stadium! 1

Tennis!Club! 5 Community!Transport! 1

Day!Centre! 5

Grand Total 141

Table 1. Community assets in Barnet  

 

This!range!of!assets!provides!opportunities!for!working!with!existing!users!and!the!community!to!

ensure!that!potential!community!benefits!are!fully!realised!as!well!as!providing!value!for!money.!This!

will!be!achieved!by!a!process!of!review!which!is!described!in!more!detail!below.!

 

Current Lease Arrangements 

 

Lease Status   % Notes 

Expired! 30 20% The!majority!of!agreements!currently!in!place!are!

leases!which!grant!an!interest!in!the!land!and!

generally!transfer!exclusive!occupation!and!liabilities!

for!the!building!to!the!lessee.!Other!arrangements!

include!Licences,!which!provide!permission!to!use!

the!property!and!generally!responsibility!for!the!

building!is!retained!by!the!landlord.!

Expires!before!2021! 21 15%

Expires!between!2021!and!2025! 5 4%

Expires!after!2025! 51 39%

Other!Agreements!(e.g.!licences)! 34 22%

Total  141

Table 2. Lease  status for community assets in Barnet 

!

As!shown!in!the!Table!2!above,!a!significant!proportion!of!leases!have!expired!or!will!expire!in!the!

next!5!years,!providing!opportunities!for!reviewing!existing!arrangements!against!the!criteria!set!out!

in!this!strategy.!!The!Council!will!may!also!seek!changes!to!leases!that!are!not!due!to!expire!through!

negotiation!with!occupiers!where!this!would!assist!in!delivery!of!our!aims!and!objectives!as!set!out!

in!this!document.!

!

40



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!9!

!

The!variety!of!lease!arrangements!currently!in!place!means!that!lessees!are!often!unclear!about!

their!obligations,!for!example!on!repairs!and!maintenance,!and!the!Council!will!seek!to!put!in!place!

more!standardised!terms!across!its!portfolio!as!leases!are!renewed!or!agreed.!

!!!

Condition and Costs  

!

Estimated!costs!for!repairs!and!maintenance!are!available!for!just!over!half!of!the!community!assets.!

The!estimated!cost!is!in!the!region!of!£2.7m!with!a!breakdown!provided!below.!

 
Fig.3 Estimated repair costs for community assets in Barnet 

 

A!key!part!of!our!strategy!is!to!develop!a!better!understanding!of!the!condition!of!the!community!

estate,!and!there!is!still!significant!work!to!do!to!understand!the!outstanding!potential!repair!bill!–!

not!just!for!the!62!classified!as!“not"known”!but!also!to!get!a!more!detailed!understanding!of!the!

others.!In!most!cases,!the!lease!arrangements!mean!that!the!repairs!are!the!responsibility!of!the!

lessee.!However,!given!that!several!of!the!occupants!of!current!buildings!may!not!have!the!financial!

resources!to!fully!fund!all!the!work!that!needs!to!take!place,!understanding!the!potential!liability!is!a!

key!element!in!developing!any!option!appraisals!for!change.!

!

Work!is!currently!being!undertaken!to!agree!the!arrangements!for!a!programme!of!conditions!

surveys!during!2015/16!which!will!help!fill!the!data!gap!in!this!area.!This!will!also!provide!data!to!

better!understand!the!extent!to!which!these!buildings!are!currently!compliant!with!the!full!range!of!

lease!conditions.!However,!this!is!a!programme!for!all!the!properties!within!the!Council’s!property!

portfolio!and!therefore!other!assets!may!be!considered!priorities!over!those!included!within!this!

strategy!(e.g.!Children!Centres,!Libraries!etc.).!

!

2.3 Review Process 

 

An!initial!review!of!the!141!properties!on!the!list!has!been!undertaken!to!start!the!discussion!with!

the!community!about!where!most!effort!needs!to!be!directed!in!the!next!stage!of!this!process.!!We!

have!classified!the!portfolio!into!different!categories!to!give!us!a!better!overall!understanding!of!the!

constraints!on!the!estate!and!how!much!room!we!have!to!influence!it,!to!help!us!develop!the!

implementation!plan!for!this!Strategy.!!However,!this!is!simply!an!initial!rating!and!the!plan!itself!will!

not!be!developed!without!in"depth!engagement!with!occupiers!of!the!community!buildings.!!!

!

The!portfolio!was!therefore!reviewed!and!classified!as!follows:!

!

44

21

10
4

62

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Less!than!25K >=25K!and!<

50k

>=50K!and!<

100k

>=100k Not!known

C
o

u
n

t

Cost

Estimated Costs 

Total!!Est. Costs!"

£2.7M

41



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!10!

!

Key Definition No of buildings in 

this group 

Green! Limited!or!no!opportunity!for!change!in!next!5"10!years!–!long!

lease!or!commercial!use,!but!opportunities!for!community!use!

will!be!considered!as!review!of!community!assets!progresses!

65!

Blue! Requires!some!review!due!to!lease!arrangements,!building!

conditions!or!other!reasons!–!but!not!priority!for!change!in!next!

1"2!years!

11!

Orange! Requires!some!action!due!to!a!range!of!factors!(lease!expires,!

development!opportunities,!vacant!sites!etc.)!!

43!

Yellow! Collection!of!sites!that!have!some!issues!to!be!addressed!where!

there!would!appear!to!be!potential!for!location!of!a!community!

hub!type!arrangement!as!set!out!in!section!4!below.!

18!sites!with!21!

separate!lease!

arrangements!

Table 3! Initial assessment  of community assets 

!

Fig.4!shows!the!geographical!location!of!

these!buildings.!It!should!be!noted!that!this!

initial!classification!is!designed!to!provide!a!

focus!for!discussion!and!no!formal!proposals!

are!being!made!at!this!time.!!

However,!the!implementation!plan!is!likely!to!

include!these!areas!to!enable!the!Council!to!

discuss!these!in!more!detail!with!the!local!

community,!and!the!process!for!this!will!be!

included!in!an!implementation!plan!that!will!

be!developed!over!the!summer!(2015).!

!! 

When!exploring!proposals!for!a!potential!

‘community!hub’!at!the!Old!Barn!in!East!

Finchley,!the!Council!worked!with!local!

community!groups!and!representatives!to!explore!what!opportunities!there!were!in!the!local!area!

for!groups!to!co"locate!within!the!new!hub,!and!for!rationalisation!of!the!Council’s!existing!

estate.!!A!mapping!exercise!was!carried!out!showing!Council!assets,!which!is!shown!fig.!5!below.!!!

Fig. 4 Map of community assets following initial 

assessment

42



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!11!

!

!

Fig.5 Map showing community assets close to Old Barn N2. 

This!was!used!as!the!starting!point!for!a!discussion!about!what!would!be!provided!from!the!Old!

Barn,!forming!part!of!a!longer!programme!of!engagement!with!the!community!to!make!use!of!local!

knowledge!and!ensure!the!proposals!for!the!hub!met!local!needs.!!!

Demonstrating!the!benefit!of!local!knowledge,!community!members!also!identified!a!number!of!

non"Council!buildings!which!they!considered!community!assets!and!potential!opportunities!for!co"

location!as!part!of!this!exercise.!!

The!Council!will!continue!to!work!in!dialogue!with!community!groups!as!it!implements!this!Strategy,!

to!ensure!it!comes!up!with!the!right!solution!for!each!local!area!as!well!as!helping!to!deliver!its!

commissioning!priorities.!

More!information!about!community!hubs!is!available!in!section!4!below.!

!

!

! !

The Old Barn, Tarling Road

43



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!12!

!

3. Consultation  

Prior! to! development! of! this! strategy! the! Council! engaged! with! the! community! formally! and!

informally!in!a!number!of!ways,!including:!

• A! general! survey! about! civil! society! and! community! activism! carried! out! by! CommUNITY!

Barnet!in!2009!

• A!qualitative!needs!assessment!in!2010!

• A!review!of!compliance!issues!across!the!estate!in!2012!

• A!stakeholder!engagement!meeting!in!2013!

• Consultations!exercises!on!the!Council’s!priorities!and!spending!review!in!2013!and!2014!

• A!series!of!formal!interviews!with!a!range!of!voluntary!and!community!groups!in!2014!

!

The! following! issues!emerged! from! these!exercises!and! these!have! informed! the!development!of!

proposals!for!the!Community!Asset!Strategy!which!were!then!subject!to!a!public!consultation!which!

started!in!December!2014:!

!

Issues How addressed in CAS 

The quality and use of the community estate: 

Existing!assets!are!not!always!best!suited!to!the!

needs!of!the!groups!using!them,!with!inadequate!

parking,! poor! access,! lack! of! storage,! inflexible!

space!and!poor!energy!efficiency.!

!

Proposals!to!rationalise!and!make!!more!efficient!

use!of!existing!assets! to!provide!modern!builds!

in! the! form! of! community! hubs! and! generate!

additional! income! for! reinvestment! in!

community!portfolio!!

Rights and responsibilities: 

Confusion! around! what! rights! and!

responsibilities!community!groups!have!and!how!

best! to! engage! with! the! Council.! Lack! of!

appreciation!of! the!varied!capacity!of!occupiers!

to!meet!repairing!obligations.!

!

Clarification! of! rights! and! responsibilities! and!

intention!to!take!a!more!standardised!approach!

to!agreements.!!

Helping!community!groups!to!work!together!and!

co"locate! and! identify! groups! that! will! take!

responsibility!for!management!and!maintenance!

of!community!assets.!

Being fair in relation to funding:!

A!need! for! grant! funding! or! subsidy! for! groups!

that! do! not! have! access! to! alternative!

fundraising!routes.!

!

Policy! of! charging! commercial! rate! in! all! cases!

supported!by!a!clear!and!fair!subsidy!system!for!

community!groups!who!are!helping! the!Council!

to! deliver! its! objectives.! This!will! be! funded! by!

the!additional!income!raised.!

Relationship between growth and 

development:! Opportunities! for! promote!

growth! and! regeneration,! through! disposal! of!

some!sites!and!opportunities!for!new!community!

facilities.!

Review! and! rationalisation! of! existing!

community!estate.!

Working with other public sector bodies: 

The! Council! should! consider! the! potential! for!

working! with! other! public! sector! organisations!

and!neighbouring!authorities!

!

As! the! CAS! is! implemented,! opportunities! for!

working!with!other!public! sector!bodies!will!be!

considered,! particularly! where! there! are!

potential! opportunities! for! co"location! of!

services!and!VCS!groups.!

Table 4 – consultation issues!

!!

44



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!13!

!

The!public!consultation!exercise!held!from!December!2014!through!to!March!2015!gave!community!

groups!the!opportunity!to!express!their!views!and!opinions! in!relation!to!the!emerging!Community!

Asset!Strategy.!!!

!

The!consultation!exercise!was!designed!to!seek!stakeholder!and!the!general!public’s!response!to!the!

following specific!key!areas:!

! The!definition!of!community!buildings.!!

! The!objectives!and!aims!of!the!Strategy.!

! The!principles!for!the!governance!of!community!assets.!

! The! proposed! respective! rights! and! responsibilities! for! the! Council! and! users! of! the!

community!estate.!

! The!proposed!policy!for!community!asset!transfer.!

! The! proposed! criteria! by! which! the! Council! will! offer! support! to! voluntary! and!

community!groups.!

An!online!survey!was!launched!in!December!2014!on!the!Engage!Barnet!website!which!resulted!in!19!

responses!to!the!questionnaire!by!the!closing!date!of!Friday!the!13
th
!February!2015.!The!responses!

to!these!showed!that!approximately!60%!of!respondents!agreed!with!the!Council’s!proposals!whilst!

about!30%!did!not!agree,!as!summarised!in!the!Table!5!below:!

 Question 

Strongly 
agree/Tend to 
agree 

Strongly disagree/ 
Tend to disagree 

Neither  agree nor 
disagree/ Don’t 
know 

Are these the right objectives? 
 

11 5 3 

Will the aims ensure we meet our 
objectives? 

10 5 2 

Have we considered right areas 
for our governance principles? 

7 4 2 

Will support criteria help achieve 
the aims of the strategy? 

8 4 1 

Table 5 – summary of responses to on line consultation 

!

In!addition,!a!series!of!workshops!was!arranged!in!relation!to!the!Community!Asset!Strategy.!A!copy!

of!the!consultation!report!undertaken!jointly!by!LBB,!Capita!and!Futuregov!is!attached!at!Appendix 

2.  

The!issues!that!emerged!from the!workshops!were!as!follows:!

Issue How addressed in CAS 

Community! Assets! should! be! given! a! broad!

definition.!

!

The! Council! accepts! that! as! a! public! body,! its!

entire! asset! portfolio! essentially!belongs! to! the!

community! and! that! it!manages! it!on!behalf!of!

the!residents!of!Barnet,!and!this!has!been!taken!

into!account!in!the!definition!in!3.1!above,!which!

recognises! they! need! to! consider! opportunities!

that!may!be!offered! for!other!Council!and!non"

Council! facilities! to! support! the! activities! of!

community!and!voluntary!groups.!

45



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!14!

!

That!the!Council!should!ensure!it!“gets!the!basics!

right”!with!a!focused!customer!service.!

!

Section!6!of! the!CAS! sets!out! clear! governance!

arrangements! for! management! of! the!

community! estate! going! forwards! and! the!

implementation!plan!will!also!consider! the!case!

for!a!specific! liaison!post! to!support!community!

groups! who! wish! to! engage! with! the! Council!

about!use!of!its!assets.!

The!Community!Asset! Strategy! should! focus!on!

community!need.!

!

The! aim! of! the! CAS! is! to! ensure! that!

communities! have! the! best! possible! facilities!

available! to! them! to!meet! local! need! and! the!

criteria! for! considering! how! we! will! support!

community!groups! through!use!of!our!portfolio!

reflects!the!group’s!ability!to!meet!the!needs!of!

the!wider!community.!!!

That!the!Council!should! increase!the!capacity!of!

its!community!assets!over!a! longer! term,! taking!

an!enabling!role.!

!

The! Council! will! seek! to! increase! capacity!

through! a! rationalisation! of! the! existing!

community!estate,!which!will!focus!on!delivering!

modern! fit! for!purpose! facilities!which!are! fully!

utilised! and! which! give! community! groups! the!

resources!they!need!to!carry!out!their!work.!

That! the! Council! should! continue! to!work!with!

the! broader! community! to! better!match! needs!

with! services! including! the! potential! for!

community!hubs.!

!

The!Council!will!work!with!the!wider!community!

as!well! as! its! community!occupiers! as! it! carries!

out! a! review! of! the! community! estate! and!

explores! opportunities! for! the! development! of!

community!hubs.!

!

The!consultation! indicates!a!degree!of!broad!support! for! the!principles! that!were!consulted!upon,!

albeit! with! limited! feedback.! ! However,! the! Council! ! recognises! as! organisations! will! be! more!

concerned! about! the! specific! impact! of! changes! on! their! current! arrangements,! it!will! ! need! to!

consult!on!specific!proposals,!on!an!area!by!area!basis,!as!options!for!change!emerge.!!

!

In!addition,!the!Council!has!recently!agreed!a!new!Corporate!Plan!and!set!of!Commissioning!Plans!

through!to!2020.!Opportunities!for!delivering!these!thorough!new!arrangements!will!be!part!of!the!

detailed! implementation!phase!of!this!strategy.!This! is!an! important!first!step! in!ensuring!that!any!

discussion!between!the!Council!and!community!groups!can!take!place!with!a!good!understanding!of!

what!the!Council!is!likely!to!be!able!to!support!going!forward!given!the!difficult!financial!settlements!

likely!over!the!next!4"5!years!up!to!2020.!

! !

46



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!15!

!

4. Opportunities for Hubs and Co!location 

The!Council,!through!this!Strategy,!is!keen!to!explore!opportunities!to!make!more!efficient!use!of!its!

estate!by!maximising!the!times!during!which!its!assets!are!being!used!by!community!groups.!!One!

way!to!do!this!is!to!encourage!different!groups!to!co"locate!within!an!asset.!!This!could!involve!a!

community!group!using!the!same!facility!as!a!Council!or!public!sector!service!or!could!involve!a!

range!of!groups!working!together!in!a!‘community!hub’!arrangement.!

This!approach!has!a!number!of!benefits:!

! Residents!are!more!easily!able!to!access!a!number!of!different!services!if!these!are!provided!

in!a!single!location!–!which!can!facilitate!a!more!holistic!approach!to!residents’!needs!

! Community!groups!gain!opportunities!to!work!together,!by!networking,!cooperating!with!

and!supporting!one!another!

! Services!can!be!grouped!together!to!meet!the!needs!of!a!local!area!and!share!infrastructure,!

which!enables!community!groups!to!operate!in!a!more!sustainable!way!

! It!also!enables!the!Council!to!rationalise!its!estate!–!using!assets!more!efficiently!could!allow!

the!disposal!of!those!which!are!surplus!to!requirements!and!reinvestment!in!the!remaining!

estate!to!improve!the!condition!of!community!facilities.!

The!Council!will!therefore!encourage!community!groups!to!co"locate!more!often!than!is!the!case!at!

present,!and!will!review!the!spread!and!current!usage!of!its!assets!and!the!distribution!of!community!

groups!and!services!across!the!Borough!to!identify!opportunities!to!do!this.!!This!could!potentially!

also!involve!co"locating!a!community!group!with!a!Council!or!other!public!sector!service!–!especially!

where!these!services!complement!one!another.!!When!a!number!of!services!are!co"located!in!a!

single!building!or!a!local!area,!they!can!be!thought!of!as!a!community!‘hub’.!

The!Council!will!also!consider!investing!in!a!number!of!purpose"built!community!hubs.!!These!would!

be!multi"use!facilities!built!specifically!with!a!view!to!maximising!the!benefits!of!co"location!and!

enabling!as!wide!a!range!of!groups!as!possible!to!benefit!from!the!use!of!Council!assets.!!Community!

hubs!can!be!underpinned!by!flexible!lease!and!management!arrangements!which!can!facilitate!more!

use!by!smaller!groups!who!may!not!wish!to!take!on!overall!responsibility!for!an!asset,!and!this!is!

discussed!in!more!detail!in!section!6!below.!

The!Council!will!look!to!ensure!that!hubs!are!distributed!across!the!Borough!in!a!way!which!reflects!

the!needs!of!local!communities!and!the!Council’s!commissioning!priorities!for!that!local!area.!!Initial!

mapping!of!the!community!estate!has!suggested!that!from!a!pure!property!perspective!there!may!

be!opportunities!associated!with!those!assets!marked!as!yellow!in!the!table!shown!in!section!2.3!

above.!

The!Council!will!use!clear!criteria!to!prioritise!opportunities!which!come!forward!to!invest!in!hubs,!

focusing!on!the!proposed!location,!the!opportunities!it!would!provide,!its!financial!sustainability,!and!

whether!capacity!exists!in!the!local!community!to!manage!a!hub.!!These!criteria!are!fully!set!out!in!

Fig.!6!below:!

47



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!16!

!

!

Fig. 6! Criteria for prioritising investment in community hubs 

!

The!Council!has!so!far!identified!three!

potential!opportunities!for!community!hubs,!

at!80!Daws!Lane!(NW7),!the!‘Brethren’!site!at!

Chandos!Avenue!(N20),!and!the!Old!Barn!at!

Tarling!Road!(N2).!!These!are!shown!on!map!

in!fig!7!opposite.!!!

!

The!Council!will!also!explore!options!to!

incorporate!a!hub!into!the!development!of!

its!new!headquarters!in!Colindale,!looking!in!

particular!at!services!which!could!

complement!the!Council’s!activities.!

We!will!use!these!opportunities!as!pilots!

which!identify!best!practice!for!the!future!

development!of!hubs!in!Barnet,!with!a!

focus!on!understanding!the!practical!

issues!involved,!developing!a!robust!

framework!for!joint!working!with!

communities,!and!developing!sustainable!

business!models!and!approaches!to!

managing!hubs.!

Proposed location of the hub 

! Would!it!support!a!logical!distribution!of!hubs!across!the!Borough?!

! Is!it!accessible?!Does!it!have!good!public!transport!links?!Could!it!have!access!to!parking!

for!older!people,!disabled!people,!or!people!with!young!children?!

! Is!the!proposed!location!in!an!area!with!demonstrable!demand!for!premises!or!for!

services!of!the!types!proposed?!

New opportunities provided by the hub 

! Would!this!hub!have!the!potential!to!attract!investment!from!other!sources?!

! Will!it!provide!an!opportunity!to!rationalise!other!public!sector!buildings!in!that!area?!

! What!investment!would!be!required!to!set!this!up?!

Sustainability of the business model 

! Would!a!hub!make!local!groups!more!sustainable!by!giving!them!the!chance!to!join!up!

and!share!back!office!costs?!

! Would!the!projected!rental!income!and/or!business!activity!cover!the!core!running!

costs!of!the!facility?!

! Would!space!be!available!for!rent!by!either!public!bodies!or!private!sector!

organisations?!

Existing community capacity to support the hub 

! Is!there!interest!among!local!community!groups!in!being!part!of!a!hub?!

! Do!local!groups!have!any!existing!knowledge!or!capacity!of!the!requirements!for!

managing!community!buildings?!

! Does!the!local!community!have!fundraising!skills!or!capacity?!

Fig. 7 Map of !"#$%#&'()*+,)-&#$-!

48



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!17!

!

5. Support for Community Groups and Routes for Engagement 

 

5.1 Support 

 

The!Council!recognises!the!need!to!be!consistent!and!transparent!about!the!circumstances!under!

which!it!will!commit!to!supporting!VCS!groups!through!use!of!its!assets,!the!level!of!support!it!is!able!

to!give!and!what!it!expects!in!return.!This!is!particularly!important!in!the!challenging!economic!

climate,!as!part!of!the!Council’s!focus!on!fairness,!responsibility!and!opportunity.!!

!

To!achieve!this,!the!following!criteria!will!be!taken!in!account!when!consideration!is!given!to!

supporting!community!groups!both!to!ensure!that!VCS!organisations!are!able!to!operate!in!a!way!

that!is!sustainable,!and!that!the!Council!maximises!the!use!of!its!assets!to!support!the!work!of!

groups!which!contribute!to!its!goals:!

!

Criteria 1"!The!type of service!the!group!or!organisation!provides,!taking!into!account:!

! The!work!of!the!organisation!contributes!to!one!or!more!of!the!Council’s!strategic!priorities!

and!supports!its!commissioning!plans.!

! The!work!of!the!organisation!is!carried!out!in!response!to,!and!meets,!a!defined!local!need.!

! The!work!of!the!organisation!delivers!a!service!of!a!kind!from!which!the!Council!is!

considering!withdrawing!or!where!community!provision!could!produce!better!outcomes.!

! The!work!of!the!organisation!is!delivered!in!a!way!which!provides!additional!value,!such!as!

the!use!of!apprenticeships!or!volunteering!opportunities.!

! The!organisation!caters!for!many!different!sections!of!the!community.!

!

Criteria 2 –!The!extent!to!which!the!organisation!and!its!use!of!the!asset!supports community 

participation!and involvement,!taking!into!account:!

! The!organisation!is!committed!to!the!on"going!consultation!and!involvement!of!the!

community,!particularly!around!managing!the!asset.!

! The!local!community!is!involved!in!designing!and/or!delivering!the!organisation’s!activities.!

! The!organisation!enables!the!local!community!to!take!action!to!address!issues!which!matter!

to!them.!

! The!organisation!encourages!entrepreneurialism!and!social!enterprise.!

 

Criteria 3 – The robustness and sustainability of the organisation,!taking!into!account:!

! If!the!group!is!already!receiving!support!from!the!Council,!it!is!performing!well!against!

agreed!measures.!

! The!organisation!is!viable!and!sustainable,!and!passes!an!accredited!vetting!process!for!

community!organisations!(such!as!the!VISIBLE!standard)!

! The!organisation!is!purely!not"for"profit!and!has!limited!income!from!commercial!support!

(for!example,!a!paying!bar).!

! The!organisation!has!capacity!to!raise!additional!funds!or!bring!in!external!investment. 

 

Criteria 4 – Effective utilisation and management of the asset!

• The!building!is!fully!utilised!by!one!or!more!community!groups!to!ensure!maximum!benefit!is!

being!derived!from!the!asset.!

• The!building!is!managed!effectively!and!fully!compliant!

!

49



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!18!

!

These!criteria!will!form!the!basis!of!a!toolkit!that!will!be!used!to!determine!support!when!we!are!

working!with!the!VCS!to!determine!lease!arrangements!as!they!are!reviewed!as!part!of!this!strategy!

or!come!up!for!renewal.!

 

5.2 Engaging with the Council 

 

As!the!Council!implements!this!strategy,!it!will!develop!a!first!point!of!contact!for!community!groups!

who!are!already,!or!who!wish!to!enquire!about,!occupying!or!owning!a!Council!asset!and/or!other!

matters!relating!to!community!assets.!!The!Council!will!make!this!available!through!its!website!at!

www.barnet.gov.uk!as!part!of!its!broader!offer!of!support!to!community!groups.! 

  

50



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!19!

!

6. Governance Arrangements  
!

It!is!essential!that!the!Community!Estate!is!governed!according!to!a!set!of!clear!and!consistent!

principles,!to!ensure!that!there!is!fair!and!common!treatment!for!different!groups!who!wish!to!use!

community!assets.!To!achieve!this,!the!Council!will!adopt!the!following!principles!to!state:!

1. How!the!Council!will!consider!the!relationship!between!financial!value!obtained!from!the!

community!estate!and!the!social!or!community!benefit!delivered!by!its!occupiers!

2. The!Council’s!approach!to!the!rent!charged!on!community!properties!and!arrangements!for!

determining!subsidy!

3. The!Council’s!approach!to!lease!and!licence!arrangements!

4. The!Council’s!approach!to!ownership!and!occupancy!

 

6.1 Community benefit and financial value 

!

The!Council!will!seek!to!agree!a!level!of!social!or!community!benefit!to!be!delivered!by!organisations!

making!use!of!its!assets,!including:!

• the!provision!of!additional!activities!or!opportunities!such!as!volunteering!or!apprenticeships!

in!delivering!services!

• coordination!with!other!Council!strategies!or!with!plans!for!particular!localities!or!

communities!

• full!utilisation!of!the!building!as!far!as!is!practicable!

• value!for!money!for!Barnet’s!residents!

• financially!sustainable!arrangements!for!groups!using!our!community!assets!

! Ensuring!that!a!compliant!building!is!maintained.!

 

6.2 Rental value and subsidy 

 

The!Council!will!operate!a!standard!policy!in!which!the!rental!value!of!each!of!its!community!

buildings!is!assessed!on!the!basis!of!full!market!rental!value!for!community!use.!Where!the!occupier!

is!deemed!to!be!contributing!to!local!priorities!and!fulfilling!other!criteria!for!support,!the!Council!

may!choose!to!grant!financial!assistance!in!the!form!of!a!rebate!to!provide!support!(through!an!

agreement!with!the!occupier),!at!a!level!which!reflects!the!community!benefit!the!organisation!is!

providing.!!

!

The!benefits!of!this!approach!are!that!it!

• Allows!a!clear!assessment!of!the!value!of!the!support!the!Council!is!offering!the!occupier,!

without!this!affecting!the!investment!value!of!the!asset!

• Allows!the!level!of!support!to!be!set!in!relation!to!the!benefit!provided!by!the!organisation!

• Enables!asset"related!support!to!be!weighed!up!against!other!kinds!of!support!being!offered!

to!community!groups!

• Allows!the!Council!to!support!community!groups!to!become!more!independent!and!resilient!

by!encouraging!them!to!move!towards!meeting!the!rental!obligations!themselves!through!a!

phased!withdrawal!of!the!subsidy.!

• Encourages!full!utilisation!of!the!asset!

 

The!overall!costs!of!subsidies!provided!by!the!Council!to!support!the!use!of!community!assets!will!be!

met!from!the!additional!income!raised!through!the!application!of!commercial!rents!across!the!

51



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!20!

!

portfolio,!and!will!not!exceed!the!existing!costs!incurred!by!the!Council!associated!with!management!

of!the!community!estate.!

!

The!allocation!of!subsidy!will!reflect!the!criteria!set!out!in!6.1!above,!and!a!clear!process!for!dealing!

with!applications!for!subsidy!will!be!in!place!and!published!by!September!2015!to!support!the!

implementation!plan.!

 

6.3 Leases and occupation of community buildings 

!

The!length!of!lease!for!community!buildings!can!have!a!significant!impact!on!occupiers,!affecting!

their!ability!to!raise!funds!and!ensure!sustainability.!A!lease!which!runs!for!less!than!25!years!can!

make!it!more!difficult!for!community!organisations!to!raise!funds.!However,!long!leases!also!have!a!

significant!effect!on!the!Council’s!ability!to!use!its!assets!flexibly!and!to!respond!to!changes!in!

circumstances.!!

!

The!Council!needs!to!be!able!to!nuance!its!approach!to!lease!arrangements!so!that!it!can!respond!to!

this.!For!example,!a!community!group!might!lose!the!skills!of!a!key!staff!member!who!had!been!

enabling!it!to!fulfil!its!maintenance!liabilities.!Alternatively,!a!group!may!be!granted!a!lease!on!a!

Council!property!on!the!basis!of!the!work!it!is!doing!at!present!but!its!role!may!shift!to!the!point!that!

its!work!no!longer!directly!supports!Council!priorities.!

!

Each!lease!agreement!will!be!preceded!by!a!clear!statement!setting!out!the!heads!of!terms!

(contractual!principles)!applying!to!the!agreement,!including!the!relative!rights!and!responsibilities!

of!each!party.!!A!sample!heads!of!terms!statement!is!included!at!Appendix!3!of!this!Strategy.!

!

In!general!terms,!where!an!occupier!is!offered!a!leasehold!interest,!it!is!proposed!that!this!will!be!for!

a!term!of!25!years,!on!full!repairing!and!insuring!terms!(which!means!that!the!tenant!is!responsible!

for!all!repair!and!insurance!obligations).!It!will!be!contracted!outside!the!Landlord!and!Tenant!Act!

1954,!subject!to!5!yearly!upward!only!rent!reviews!and!a!6"month!rolling!break!clause!which!can!be!

brought!into!effect!by!the!Council!only.!Asking!for!leases!to!be!contracted!outside!of!the!Landlord!

and!Tenant!Act!1954!means!that!there!is!no!automatic!right!to!renewal!or!right!to!compensation!on!

the!lease!expiring.!In!addition,!the!lease!will!contain!a!provision!where!if!the!primary!use!of!the!asset!

no!longer!supports!Council!priorities,!the!lease!may!be!determined!on!3!months!written!notice!by!

the!Council.!

!

If!community!occupiers!need!leases!guaranteed!for!up!to!25!years!in!order!to!secure!funding,!the!

terms!may!include!a!provision!where!a!suitable!lease!may!be!granted!if!the!occupier’s!funding!bid!

depends!on!it!and!a!sustainable!business!plan!is!presented.!

!

The!Council!will!assess!the!skills!and!capacity!of!any!community!group!interested!in!the!use!of!a!

building!to!manage!the!maintenance!and!compliance!issues!which!may!arise,!and!will!offer!the!

group!an!arrangement,!based!on!this!assessment,!as!to!whether!the!Council!or!the!group!should!be!

liable!for!maintenance.!Depending!on!the!level!of!liability!assumed!by!the!Council,!alternative!terms!

may!be!offered!to!the!group!with!regard!to!the!level!of!subsidy!and!length!of!lease,!potentially!also!

on!different!repairing!and!insuring!terms.!This!will!be!decided!on!a!case!by!case!basis.!!

!

!

!

!

!

52



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!21!

!

6.4 Landlord/tenant relationship 

 

This!is!a!direct!contractual!relationship!between!the!Council!and!the!occupier!of!a!community!

property.!Each!occupier!has!their!own!agreement!with!the!Council!and!agrees!clear!contractual!

responsibilities!in!relationship!to!the!maintenance!of!the!building!and!compliance!with!the!terms!of!

the!lease.!The!Council!is!responsible!for!monitoring!compliance!with!the!lease.!This!model!may!be!

suitable!for!discrete!community!facilities,!or!for!standalone!buildings!and!sites!with!a!single!

occupant.!

!

Single head lessee 

This!is!a!direct!contractual!relationship!between!the!Council!and!one!occupier!of!a!community!

property,!who!then!takes!on!responsibility!for!managing!the!other!organisations!who!are!using!the!

building.!

!

This!model!would!work!particularly!well!for!community!hubs,!in!which!the!head!lessee!might!also!

take!on!responsibility!for!the!day!to!day!management!and!maintenance!of!the!building.!Community!

groups!who!only!want!to!use!a!building!for!part!of!the!week!have!the!opportunity!to!request!a!

licence!to!do!so!without!having!to!take!on!responsibility!for!running!and!operating!a!building.!

!

Licences 

!

A!licence!has!different!legal!status!to!a!lease.!It!is!a!permission!to!occupy!land!or!property!rather!

than!a!legal!interest.!It!has!the!advantage!of!being!a!flexible!arrangement!which!either!the!licensor!

or!the!occupier!can!terminate!at!any!time,!with!a!short!notice!period.!However,!licences!also!have!

some!limitations.!They!cannot!be!used!by!community!groups!to!attract!external!funding!or!grants!as!

they!do!not!grant!the!licensee!an!interest!in!the!property.!A!licence!is!generally!only!used!for!short"

term!or!shared!occupation.!

!

Licences!therefore!will!be!offered!to!community!organisations!that!need!part"time!or!temporary!use!

of!a!community!property!(for!example,!less!than!three!days!a!week).!They!should!also!be!offered!to!

any!party!who!does!not!wish!to!be!considered!for!either!a!head!lessee!or!a!landlord!and!tenant!style!

arrangement.! !

53



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!22!

!

7. Approach to Ownership and Occupancy 

 

Under! the! Localism! Act! there! are! a! number! of!

routes! whereby! communities! have! been!

empowered!to!seek!control!of!local!assets!that!are!

important! to! them! and! these! are! summarised! in!

the!table!below.!!

The! Council!will!work! positively!with! community!

groups!who!seek!ownership!of!a!community!asset!

where!this! is!of!benefit!to!the!Authority!and! local!

residents,! and! in! future,! in! the! first! instance,!

contact!should!be!made!through!the!route!which!

will!be!developed!as!set!out!in!5.2!above.!

The!Council!will! advise! communities!of! the!most!

appropriate! route! to! achieve! their! objectives!

relating!to!ownership!of!an!asset.!

The!various!legislative!options!for!communities!to!

take!control!of!public!assets!set!out!in!the!Table!6!

below.!!!

As! part! of! the! implementation! of! this! Strategy,! the! Council!will! explore! opportunities! to!work!

strategically! with! community! groups,! where! appropriate,! on! transfer! of! the! ownership! or!

management!of!assets,!focusing!in!particular!on!areas!where!this!may!enable!a!community!group!to!

contribute!to!public!sector!outcomes!and!the!Council’s!commissioning!priorities.!

Options for Community Ownership!

Community 

Asset Transfer

!

Process!by!which!a!public!body!and!proactively!and!voluntarily!choose!to!transfer!

ownership!or!management!of!assets!to!a!community!organisation,!often!at!less!

than!market!value.!The!Council!will!consider!this!where:

• Social!!or!community!benefits!outweigh!benefit!from!rental!income!or!a!

capital!receipt!

• Transfer!would!result!in!a!reduction!in!costs!or!demand!for!Council!services!

• The!proposal!would!support!the!Council’s!strategic!priorities!

• The!proposal!is!considered!financially!viable!and!sustainable!

This!is!the!best!route!for!engagement!for!groups!wishing!to!take!control!of!a!

community!asset.!

!

Community 

Right to Bid

!

Gives!community!organisations!opportunity!to!nominate!a!building!or!piece!of!land,!

including!a!Council!asset,!to!be!listed!as!an!“asset!of!community!value”!(ACV).!!

!

If!listed!as!an!ACV,!if!the!owner!wishes!to!sell!the!asset,!it!must!allow!community!

organisations!6!months!to!put!together!a!proposal!and!raise!funds!to!buy!the!asset!

on!the!open!market.!!The!Community!Right!to!bid!does!not!oblige!the!asset!owner!

to!sell!to!the!community!group!and!the!Community!Asset!Transfer!is!a!more!

effective!route!for!this.!

54



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!23!

!

!

Decisions!on!AVC!status!are!made!by!the!Council’s!Community!Leadership!

Committee.!!

!

The! register! of! assets! of! community! value! already! registered! in! Barnet! can! be!

found!on!the!Council’s!website!!www.barnet.gov.uk!

!

Community 

Right to 

Contest

!

This!can!be!used!to!trigger!the!sale!of!land!or!property!owned!by!the!Council!or!the!

Government!where!it!can!be!demonstrated!that!the!asset!is!empty!or!underused,!

and!there!are!no!plans!to!bring!it!back!into!use.!!The!Council!will!encourage!

community!groups!considering!this!approach!to!explore!options!with!the!authority!

first.!

Table 6 – options for community ownership!

!

! !

55



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!24!

!

8. Next Steps  

The!following!actions!will!be!required!in!order!to!implement!this!Strategy.!!!

!

Over!the!period!between! June!and!September!2015,!the!Council!will!develop!a!detailed!evidence"

based! implementation!plan!highlighting!the!resources!and!time! likely!to!be!required!to! implement!

the!Strategy.!!!

!

The!Council!will!engage!with!current!users!of!its!community!buildings,!by!

!

! Writing!to!the!occupiers!with!a!copy!of!the!Strategy,!requesting!feedback!and!questions!and!

asking!for!comments!on!how!they!would!see!this!impacting!their!own!circumstances;!

! Prioritising!the!review!of!those!properties!highlighted!in!the!CAS!as!requiring!action!or!

having!potential!for!community!hubs;!

! Holding!preliminary!discussions!on!individual!arrangements!where!they!are!occupied!and!

the!lease!has!expired;!

! Building!a!profile!of!our!users,!working!together!to!make!sure!that!use!of!our!buildings!

meets!local!needs!realises!benefits!for!the!wider!community.!!!

!

This! initial! engagement!will! be! completed! by! September! 2015! and! reported! back! to! the! Assets,!

Regeneration!and!Growth!Committee.!

!

The!Council!will!further!improve!the!information!it!holds!about!the!condition!of!its!buildings,!by!

!

! reviewing! the! data! that! is! available! on! the! current! community! asset! base,! including!

information!on!the!condition!and!compliance!of!the!buildings!!

! assessing!the!likely!level!of!need!for!community!facilities!in!Barnet!

! establishing! a! plan! and! timeline! for! gathering! data! for! assets! where! condition! and!

compliance!surveys!are!not!currently!available,!in!order!to!further!inform!our!analysis!of!the!

financial!implications!of!delivering!the!Strategy.!!

!

A!project!will!be!set!up!to!establish!the!condition!of!the!community!buildings.!This!will!consist!of!an!

initial!desktop!study!and,!where!it!is!deemed!necessary,!full!condition!and!compliance!surveys.!!It!is!

the!Council’s!intention!to!work!closely!with!the!individual!user!of!each!building!and,!if!necessary!due!

to! the! condition! of! the! building! or! for! other! reasons,! to! re"provide! an! appropriate! facility.! ! The!

Council! will! also! engage! with! local! residents! when! decisions! on! community! facilities! are! being!

considered.! !This!project!will! include!a!prioritised!detailed!programme!of! inspections,!analysis!and!

consultation!with! lessees! to! determine! options! for! individual! buildings! and!will! be! completed! by!

December!2015!and!reported!back!to!the!Assets,!Regeneration!and!Growth!Committee.!

!

The! Council! will! develop! a! detailed! implementation! plan! for! taking! forward! the! three! pilot!

community!hubs!identified,!including!early!engagement!with!appropriate!stakeholders.!!This!will!be!

completed! by! September! 2015! and! reported! back! to! the! Assets,! Regeneration! and! Growth!

Committee.!!!

!

The!Council!will!review!the!outcomes!of!these!three!pilots!and!develop!appropriate!toolkits,!policies!

and!procedures! relating! to! such!matters!as! the!measurement!of! social!value,!appropriate! level!of!

engagement,!processes!for!grant!applications.!!This!will!be!completed!by!March!2016!and!reported!

back!to!the!Assets,!Regeneration!and!Growth!Committee.!

56



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!25!

!

!

In!particular,!the!Council!will!establish!how! it!will!measure!social!benefit!through!a!fair,!open,!and!

transparent!process!which!is!in!line!with!the!criteria!set!out!in!section!5!of!this!Strategy.!The!process!

will!need!to!establish!who!will!make!the!assessments!and!how!users!of!community!buildings!will!be!

engaged!in!the!assessment!process.!

!

The!Council!will!establish!what!resources!are!needed!to!support!work!between!commissioners,!the!

Estates!team!and!the!building!occupiers!and!to!establish!who!will!take!the!role!of!facilitator! in!the!

development!of! individual!business!cases.! !These!business!cases!will!need!to!demonstrate!financial!

sustainability,!full!utilisation!of!the!building!and!support!for!local!priorities.!

!

The!plan!will!be!underpinned!by!the!development!of!a!detailed!Equalities!Impact!Assessment.!!!

!

The! full! implementation! plan! setting! out! the! above! steps! will! be! presented! to! the! Assets,!

Regeneration!and!Growth!committee!in!September!2015.!!!

! !

57



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!26!

!

Appendix 1 – Buildings and sites included in the list of Community Assets 

Property  Name Postcode 

Tower!Gym,!Church!Farm,!Church!Hill!Road!! EN4!

St!John's!Ambulance,!Church!Farm!Garage,!Church!Farm,!! EN4!!

3
rd
!East!Barnet!Scout!Group,!Vernon!Crescent,!! EN4!8QG!

The!Whale!Centre,!Church!Farm,!Church!Hill!Road!! EN4!8XE!

New!Barnet!Community!Centre!48"50!Victoria!Road,!! EN4!9PF!

Nightingale!Nursery,!23!Victoria!Road,!! EN4!9PH!

East!Barnet!Rifle!Club!Albert!Road,!! EN4!9SH!!

Quinta!Club,!Mays!Lane,!! EN5!

Barnet!1
st
!Scout!Group,!Priory!Grove,!! EN5!

St!John's!Ambulance,!Priory!Grove,!! EN5!

Oakhill!Park!Bowls!Club,!Oakhill!Park,!! EN5!

Arkley!Village!Hall,!Brickfield!Lane,!!! !EN5!3LD!

Barnet!Lawn!Tennis!Club,!Gloucester!Road,!! EN5!1RS!

Old!Elizabethans!Cricket!Club,!Gypsy!Corner,!Mays!Lane,!! EN5!2AG!

Barnet!Table!Tennis!Club,!Barnet!Lane!Playing!Fields,!! EN5!2DN!

The!Stables!Horse!Activity!Centre,!Barnet!Lane,!! EN5!2DN!

Former!Old!Stationers!Barnet!Lane!Playing!Fields,!! EN5!2DN!

The!Barnet!Club,!Barnet!Lane,!!! EN5!2DN!

Ludgrove!Club,!Dollis!Brook!Walk,!!! EN5!2PU!

Rainbow!Community!Centre,!Dollis!Valley!way,!! EN5!2UN!

Arkley!Golf!Club,!Rowley!Green!Road,!! EN5!3HL!

Hadley!F.C,!Brickfield!Lane,!Arkley,!! EN5!3LD!

Barnet!Museum,!31!Wood!Street,!Barnet!! EN5!4BE!

1374!East!Barnet!Squadron,!Gloucester!Road,!! EN5!4BP!

Old!Fold!Manor!Golf!Club,!Old!Fold!Lane,!! EN5!4QN!

East!Barnet!Golf!Club!Tudor!Sports!Ground!Pavilion,!Clifford!Road,!! EN5!5NY!

Golfwise!Ltd,!Tudor!Sports!Ground!Pavilion,!Clifford!Road,!! EN5!5NY!

Queen!Elizabeth’s!Leisure!Centre,!Meadway,!! EN5!5RR!

The!Old!Bull,!Suzie!Earnshaw!Theatre!School,!68!High!Street!,! EN5!5SJ!

Oakhill!Park!Golf!Course,!Oakhill!Park,!Parkside!Gardens!! EN5!8JS!

Montrose!Tram!Shed,!Montrose!Park,! HA8!

Burnt!Oak!Spiritualist!Church,!Watling!Community!Centre,!Orange!Hill!Road,!! HA8!

Former!Scout!Hut,!Market!Lane,!Burnt!Oak,!! HA8!

TAVRA,!Watling!Park!Former!Bowling!green,!Colchester!Road,!! HA8!!

Pavilion!Way!sports!ground,!Pavilion!Way,!Burnt!Oak,! !HA8!

Sangam!Centre,!210!Burnt!Oak!Broadway,!! HA8!0AP!

North!Road!Community!Centre,!230!North!Road,!! HA8!0AP!

Minotaur!!Thai!Boxing!Gym,!Back!Lane,!! HA8!0AS!

Stag!House,!94!Burnt!Oak!Broadway,!! HA8!0BE!

Thorne!Hall,!Parnell!Close,!! HA8 0DX 

58



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!27!

!

Property  Name Postcode 

Watling!Community!Centre,!143!Orange!Hill!Road,!! HA8!0TR!

Algernon!Road!Multi!Cultural!Centre,!Algernon!Road,! HA8!3TA!

Nomads!Community!Gym,!3a!Hamonde!Close,!! HA8!8TG!

Rendezvous!Centre!Coppetts!Rd,!! N10!

Powerleague,!Bobby!Moore!Way,!Trott!Road,!! N10!1ST!

Freehold!Community!Centre,!9!Alexandra!Road,!! N10!2EY!

Barnet!Talking!Newspaper,!Wetherill!Road,!! N10!2LS!

Friern!Barnet!Library,!Friern!Barnet!Road,!! N11!3DS!

Incognito!Theatre,!Holly!Park!Road,!! N11!3HB!

Great!North!Leisure!Park,!Chaplin!Square,!! N12!0GL!

Hindu!Cultural!Centre,!3!Lyndhurst!Avenue,!! N12!0LX!

Former!British!Legion,!Legion!way,!! N12!0PD!

Bishopswood!Bowling!Club,!Summers!!Lane,!!! N12!0PD!

Glebelands!Indoor!Bowls!Club,!Summers!Lane,!! N12!0PD!

Finchley!Rugby!Football!Club,!Summers!Lane,!! N12!0PD!

The!Albanian!Association,!Summers!Lane,!!! N12!0PD!

Wingate!!and!Finchley!FC,!Summers!Lane,!! N12!0PD!

Society!of!Model!Engineers,!1!Legion!Way,!!! N12!0PZ!

Compton!Academy!Sports!Centre,!Compton!School,!Summers!Lane,!! N12!0QG!

Comfort!Hotel,!!3!Leisure!Way,!! N12!0QZ!

David!Lloyd!Leisure!Club,!Leisure!Way,!! N12!0QZ!

Barnet!Housing!Aid!Centre,!part!36b!Woodhouse!Road,! N12!0RG!

Homeless!Action!in!Barnet,!part!36!b!Woodhouse!Road,!! N12!0RG!

Old!Finchleians!Club,!12!Southover,!!! N12!7JE!

Woodside!Park!Club,!Southover!,!! N12!7JG!

Friary!House!"!Rooms!Pf10/Pg11!,!Friary!Park,!! N12!9DE!

Friary!House,!1st!Fl,!Pt!2nd!Fl!&!Store!In!Stable,!Friary!Park,!! N12!9DE!

Friary!House,!Room!Pf11,!Friary!Park!! N12!9DE!

Friary!House,!Room!Ps2!(Shared!)M!R!2!,!Friary!Park,!! N12!9DE!

East!Barnet!Scout!Hut,!Osidge!Lane,!! N14!5DU!

Former!Association!Of!Veterans!Of!Foreign!Wars,!Osidge!Lane,!! N14!5DU!

Bishopswood!Bowling!Club,!Lyttelton!Playing!Fields,Norrice!Lea!! N2!0DD!

RSPCA,!28!Market!Place,!! N2!8BB!

Grange!Community!Centre,!Red!Lion!Hill,!! N2!8EB!

The!Old!Barn,!Tarling!Road,!! N2!8LB!

North!Middlesex!Golf!Club,!Manor!House,!Friern!Barnet!Lane!! N20!0NL!

Totteridge!Millhillians!Cricket!Club!Totteridge!Green,!! N20!8PB!

Totteridge!Tennis!Club,!Great!Bushey!Drive,!! N20!8QL!

Finchley!Lawn!Tennis!Club,!Brent!Way,!! N3!1AR!

Finchley!Scouts,!R/O!190"192!Long!Lane,!!! N3!2HY!

Sea!Cadets,!184a!Long!Lane,!! N3!2RA!

Wilf!Slack!Memorial!Ground,!19!East!End!Road,!!! N3!2SU!

59



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!28!

!

Property  Name Postcode 

Wilf!Slack!Memorial!Ground,!19!East!End!Road,!former!Smiths!Field,!! N3!2SU!

Middlesex!County!Cricket!Club,!East!End!Road,!! N3!2TA!

Avenue!House,!!17!East!End!Road,!! N3!3QE!

Wilf!Slack!Memorial!Ground,!19!East!End!Road,!former!car!park,!! !N3!2SU!

Finchley!Cricket!Club,!Arden!Playing!Fields,!33"45!East!End!Road,! !N3!2TA!

Little!Wood!Garden!Suburb!Theatre,!Little!Wood,!Oakwood!Road,!! NW11!

Northway!Tennis!Centre,!Northway!Gardens,!! NW11!6RJ!

Claremont!Community!Centre,!Claremont!Road,!! NW2!1BP!

Brondesbury!Cricket,!Tennis!and!Squash!Club!5A!Harman!Drive! NW2!2EB!

Greyhound!Hill!All!Weather!Pitch,!!Greyhound!Hill,!! NW4!

Metro!Golf,!Copthall!Sports!Centre,!Champions!Way,!! NW4!1PX!

Hendon!!Rugby!FC,!Copthall!Sports!Centre,!Greenlands!Lane,!! NW4!1RL!

Allianz!Stadium,!Copthall!!Sports!Centre,!Greenlands!Lane,!! NW4!1RL!

Cheshir!House,!1"28!Foster!Street,!! NW4!2AA!

Brampton!Lawn!Tennis!club,!Prothero!Gardens,!! NW4!3SJ!

Hendon!Mosque!and!Islamic!Centre,!4a!Park!Road,! !NW4!3QB!

Kennedy!Leigh!Family!Centre,!Edgeworth!Close,!! NW4!4HJ!

Barnet!CAB,!40/42!Church!End,!!! NW4!4JT!

Barnet!CAB!44!Church!End,!NW4!4JT! NW4!4JT!

Meritage!Club,!Church!End,!NW4!4JT! NW4!4JT!

Sherrick!House!(Pt)!30!Church!End,!! NW4!4JX!

Sherrick!House(!Pt)!28!!Church!End,!NW4!4JX! NW4!4JX!

!Former!Cricket!Pavilion,!Mill!Hill!Park,!! NW7!

Frith!Grange!Camping!Ground,!Frith!Lane,!! NW7!

Mill!Hill!Village!Sports!Club,!Burtonhole!Lane,!! NW7!1AS!

Old!Camdenians!Sports!and!Social!Club,!Burtonhole!Lane,!! NW7!1AS!

Hendon!16
th
!Scout!Group,!Brownsea!Walk,!Sanders!Lane,!! NW7!1BF!

Community!Transport!Mill!Hill!Depot,!Bittacy!Hill,!! NW7!1BL!

Finchley!Golf!Club,!Nether!Court,!Frith!Lane,!! NW7!1PU!

Mill!Hill!Rugby!FC,!Copthall!Sports!centre,!Champions!Way,!! NW7!2EL!

Mill!Hill!Golf!Club,!100!Barnet!Way,!! NW7!3AL!

Old!Cholmeleians!Sports!Ground,!Hendon!Wood!Lane,!! NW7!4HR!

Sea!Cadets,!Former!Civil!Defence!building,!80!Daws!Lane,!! NW7!4SL!

Grahame!Park!All!Weather!Pitch,!Grahame!Park!Way,!! NW9!

Noel!Lounge,!Grahame!Park,!! NW9!

Tedder!Lounge,!Wiggins!Mead,!! NW9!

Hendon!Sea!Training!Corps,!Woodfield!Park,!Cool!Oak!Lane!! NW9!!

Former!Scout!Hut,!Avion!Crescent,!off!Grahame!Park!Way,!! NW9!5QY!

Independent!Living!Centre!(Former!Flightways)!The!Concourse,!! NW9!5UX!

Grahame!Park!Community!Centre,!The!Concourse,!! NW9!5XB!

Chin!Woo!Ltd,!Lower!Ground!Floor!West!Hendon!Playing!Fields!Pavilion,!Goldsmith!Avenue!! NW9!7EU!

Parkside!View!Nursery,!West!Hendon!Playing!Fields!Pavilion,!Goldsmith!Avenue!! NW9!7EU!

60



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!29!

!

Property  Name Postcode 

Hendon!Rifle!Club,!Woodfield!Park,!Cool!Oak!Lane,!! NW9!7NB!

Phoenix!Canoe!Club(Former!North!Circular!Sailing!Club),!Woodfield!Park,!Cool!Oak!Lane,!! NW9!7ND!

Princes!Park!Youth!FC,!Woodfield!Park,!Cool!Oak!Lane,!! NW9!7ND!

Hanuman!Community!Centre,!Marquin!Centre,!Marsh!Drive,!! NW9!7QE!

West!Hendon!Community!Centre,!Marsh!Drive,!! NW9!7QE!

! !

List of retail units leased for community purposes 
37!Homefield,!Dollis!Valley!! EN5!2UJ!

38!Homefield,!Dollis!Valley!! EN5!2UJ!

11!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park!! NW9!5XB!

12!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park!! NW9!5XB!

14!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park!! NW9!5XB!

15!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park!! NW9!5XB!

20!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park! NW9!5TX!

4!and!5!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park! NW9!5XB!

7!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park!! NW9!5XB!

8!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park!! NW9!5XB!

!9!The!Concourse,!Grahame!Park! NW9!5XB!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

61



!"##$%&'()*++,')
-'./',0()1)
!"##$%&'()0."$2)
3"%+$4'/'&"%

“ e connection we have with 
the local people is the most 
powerful community asset”

!"##$%&'()#*#+*,

Appendix 2

62



!"#$%&'(")%*'"'*+,$+-)"$&')."//%$,%'+$'

0%%1+$,'*%#2+)%*',3+$,4'56&'"/*3'5%+$,'(")%7'

8+&.'*+,$+-)"$&'567,%&')6&*'3('32%#'9:;<'

&3'=>?@A=>B''C&D*'&.%#%(3#%'+<13#&"$&'&."&'&.%'

<3*&'2"/6%'+*',"+$%7'(#3<')3<<6$+&E'"**%&*B''

F.#36,.'&.%'G3<<6$+&E'H**%&'I&#"&%,E'

JGHIK'!"#$%&'+*'"77#%**+$,'&.+*')."//%$,%B

F.+*'1"1%#'#%L%)&*'&.%'-$7+$,*'3('&.#%%'

)3$*6/&"&+3$'83#0*.31*'8.+).'&330'1/")%'+$'

M%5#6"#E'=>?N'8.+).'8+//'(%%7'+$&3'&.%'GHI'

"/3$,*+7%'*+<6/&"$%36*')3$*6/&"&+3$*B

F.%'&.#%%'83#0*.31*'5#36,.&'&3,%&.%#'"'

&3&"/'3('ON'#%1#%*%$&"&+2%*'3('7+((%#%$&'PGI'

organisations in Barnet. 

Q3#0*.31*'31%$%7'61'&.+*'5#3"7'"#%"'"$7'

,"2%')3<<6$+&E',#361*'&.%'*1")%'&3'%R1#%**'

&.%+#'7+((%#%$&'13+$&*'3('2+%8*B''F.+*'+$)/67%7'

1#35/%<'*3/2+$,'%R%#)+*%*4'+$'*65S%)&*'*6).'

"*')3T/3)"&+3$4'"**%&'<"11+$,4'/%"*%*'"$7'

&.%'#%/"&+3$*.+1'8+&.'&.%')36$)+/B

The community and the council: 

how can Barnet get the most from 

it’s assets?

Representatives 

of di erent VCS 

organisations contributed 

their opinions about 

how to better manage 

the community assets 

thorugh

Discovery workshops

45

3

63



!"%',%'+

1.  Defining the community estate

2. Objectives and aims

3. Governance principles

4. Supporting community groups

The findings align with the structure of the 

Community Asset Strategy:

64



QUHF'QV'UVHWX

F.%'G3<<6$+&E'H**%&'I&#"&%,E'"*0*'8.%&.%#'

&.%'7%-$+&+3$'3('Y)3<<6$+&E'"**%&D'$%%7*'&3'

5%'8+7%$%7B''!6+/7+$,*'(#3<'8.+).')36$)+/'

*%#2+)%*'"#%'1#32+7%74'*6).'"*'/+5#"#+%*4'

/%+*6#%')%$&#%*4'3(-)%'3#'1"#0*4'"#%'$3&'

)6##%$&/E')3$*+7%#%7'Y)3<<6$+&E'"**%&*DB''

G3<<6$+&E',#361*'"&&%$7+$,'(%/&'&."&'&.%*%'

Y3&.%#D'56+/7+$,*'8%#%'2+%8%7'"$7'"#%'6*%7'

"*'Y)3<<6$+&E'"**%&*DB''Z36&.')%$&#%*'"$7'

/+5#"#+%*'."2%'"/#%"7E'5%%$'."$7%7'32%#'&3'

&.%')3<<6$+&E'"$7'/%+*6#%')%$&#%*'"#%'#6$'5E'

*3)+"/'%$&%#1#+*%*B

H'0%E')3$)%#$'(#3<'"&&%$7%%*'8"*'&."&'&.%'

)36$)+/'8"*'53&.'."$7+$,'32%#'&.%'*%#2+)%'

7%/+2%#E'(6$)&+3$*4'"*'8%//'"*'&.%'6/&+<"&%'

#%*13$*+5+/+&E'(3#'&.3*%'*%#2+)%*'&3'%R+*&'+$'

"$E',+2%$'"#%"B

QUHF'FUCI'[VH\I

F.%#%'+*'"$'3113#&6$+&E'(3#'!"#$%&'&3'<"0%'

"')/%"#%#'7+*&+$)&+3$'5%&8%%$'!"#$%&D*'

7%/+2%#E'"$7'Y%$"5/+$,D'#3/%B'!#3"7/E'&.+*'+*'

&.%'7+((%#%$)%'+$'1#32+7+$,'(#3$&T/+$%'*&"(('"$7'

*6113#&+$,'3&.%#*'&3'1#32+7%'&.%<B''F.+*',3%*'

5%E3$7'&.%'1#32+*+3$'3('"**%&*'"$7'836/7'

+$)/67%'.38'&.%')36$)+/'8+//'5%'*6113#&+$,'

$%&83#0*4'&#"+$+$,'"$7'1#32+7+$,'"'#%*13$*+2%'

"**%&'<"$",%<%$&'*%#2+)%B

F.%'#%"*3$*'&.+*'+*'+<13#&"$&'+*'5%)"6*%4'

/+0%'"//'/3)"/'"6&.3#+&+%*4'!"#$%&')"$'<"0%'

1/"$$+$,'7%)+*+3$*'"*'53&.'"'/"$7/3#7'"$7'

#%,6/"&3#'")#3**'%2%#E'&E1%'3('"**%&''T'<"$E'

3('8.+).'"#%'#%L%)&%7'+$'&.%'G3<<6$+&E'W+,.&'

&3'!+7B''F.%')36$)+/'"/*3'."*'+$L6%$)%'32%#'

$%8'7%2%/31<%$&*4'"$7')"$',%&'2"/6%'(#3<'

&.%')3<<6$+&E'(#3<'Y]/"$$+$,'^"+$D'J*%)&+3$'

?>_'",#%%<%$&*4'G3<<6$+&E'C$(#"*&#6)&6#%'

`%2+%*K'"$7'*3<%'+$L6%$)%'32%#'*).33/*4'

.36*+$,'"$7')3<<%#)+"/'56+/7+$,*B''!"#$%&'

"#%'3$%'3('&.%'-#*&'/3)"/'"6&.3#+&+%*'&3'8#+&%'

"'G3<<6$+&E'H**%&'I&#"&%,E4'"$7'&.%#%'+*'

"$'3113#&6$+&E'&3'&"0%'"'#36$7%7'2+%8'&.%*%'

assets.

F.+*'8"*'#%L%)&%7'5E')3<<6$+&E',#361*'8.3'

(%/&'&."&'!"#$%&'+*'$"&6#"//E'2+%8%7'"*'."2+$,'

Y*0+$'+$'&.%',"<%D'T'"$7'6/&+<"&%'#%*13$*+5+/+&E'

(3#'*6113#&+$,'*%/('*6*&"+$+$,')3<<6$+&+%*4'

%2%$'8.%$'&.%'-$"$)+"/'*+&6"&+3$'+*'

#%*&#+)&+2%4'3#'13/+&+)"/'1#+3#+&+%*'<"E'5%'

(3)6*%7'%/*%8.%#%B'

F.%')36$)+/'&.%#%(3#%'."*'"$'3113#&6$+&E'&3'

&"0%'"'5#3"7'2+%8'3(')3<<6$+&E'"**%&*4'&3'

%$*6#%'&.%'73&*'/+$%'61'<3#%')/%"#/E'&."$'

&.%E')6##%$&/E'73B

“ e connection we have with the local people is 
the most powerful community asset”

Defining Community Estate
GHI4'IVGFCa\';B>

65



F.%'8+7%*&'13**+5/%'7%-$+&+3$'3('Y)3<<6$+&E'

"**%&*D'+*'#%)3<<%$7%7'(3#'&.%'GHIB''

G3<<6$+&E',#361*'<"7%'+&')/%"#'&."&'$3&'3$/E'

7+7'&.%E')3$*+7%#'"'5#3"7'#"$,%'3('56+/7+$,*'

"*'"**%&*4'56&'"**%&*'8%#%'$3&'56+/7+$,*'

"/3$%B''!%E3$7'"%*&.%&+)'"$7'.+*&3#+)'2"/6%4'

&.%'1#+<"#E'2"/6%'3('56+/7+$,*'"#%'&.%'*%#2+)%'

&."&'"#%'#6$'(#3<'&.%<'"$7'&.%'*0+//*'"$7'

%R1%#+%$)%*',"+$%7B''F.%'GHI'$%%7'&3'

#%)3,$+*%'1%31/%'"$7',#361*'8.3'1#32+7%'

*%#2+)%*'"*')3<<6$+&E'"**%&*B

F.+*'"/*3'%R&%$7*'&3'!"#$%&'%<1/3E%%*B''C&'

8"*')/%"#'(#3<'#%*+7%$&*'&."&'!"#$%&')36/7'

&"0%'"'<3#%'Y)6*&3<%#'*%#2+)%D'"11#3").'

&3'&.%')3<<6$+&EB''U"2+$,'.+,./E'*0+//%7'

%<1/3E%%*'*6113#&+$,')3<<6$+&+%*')"$'

7%)#%"*%'&.%'/+0%/+.337'3('56+/7+$,'6$7%#6*%4'

"$7'/3*&'+$)3<%B''!"#$%&'$%%7'&3')3$*+7%#'

.38'&.%E'+$2%*&'+$'*&"(('+$'&.%')36$)+/'&3'

%$*6#%'&."&'&.%'"6&.3#+&E'."*'&.%'*0+//*'&3'1/"E'

"$'%$"5/+$,'#3/%'<3#%'%((%)&+2%/E'J*%%'Y#3/%*'

"$7'#%*13$*+5+/+&+%*DKB''

F.%'<3#%'1%31/%4'&%"<*'"$7',#361*'"#%'

+$2%*&%7'+$4'&.%'<3#%'%(-)+%$&/E'56+/7+$,*'"#%'

6*%74'"$7'&.%'<3#%'/+0%/E'!"#$%&'8+//'5%'"5/%'

&3'<%%&'+&*'-$"$)+"/'#%*13$*+5+/+&+%*'8.+/*&'

)3$&+$6+$,'&3'*6113#&')3<<6$+&+%*B

WVGa[[V\XVX'\VbF'IFV]I

66



services.  

“We need to move from one party knowing everything and the 
other needing to ask, to where both parties know what there is 
to know”

Objectives and Aims

67



F."&'&.%'GHI'."*'"$'32%##+7+$,'"+<'(3)6*+$,'

3$'6*%#'$%%7*B''M3#'%R"<1/%'&.+*')36/7'5%c'

&3'1#32+7%'&.%',#%"&%*&'#"$,%'3('*%#2+)%*'&3'

&.%',#%"&%*&'#"$,%'3('1%31/%'"&'&.%'/38%*&'

13**+5/%')3*&'"*'"$'%R"<1/%B''a5S%)&+2%*'

)"$'&.%$'L38'(#3<'&.+*B''!"*%7'3$'&.%'

7+*)6**+3$*'8+&.')3<<6$+&E',#361*'&.%E'

)36/7'5%'&.%'(3//38+$,c'

F3'%$*6#%'&."&'&.%')36$)+/'"$7')3<<6$+&E'

."2%'"',337'6$7%#*&"$7+$,'3('&.%'$%%7*'

3('"//'3('!"#$%&D*'#%*+7%$&*

F3'*6113#&'&.%'1#32+*+3$'3('*%#2+)%*'&."&'

836/7'<%%&'&.%*%'$%%7*

F3'%$*6#%'&.%'-$"$)+"/'*6*&"+$"5+/+&E'3('

&.%*%'*%#2+)%*'"$7'&.%'1.E*+)"/'*1")%'

(#3<'8.+).'&.%E'31%#"&%

F3'*6113#&'&#"$*1"#%$)E4'31%$$%**'

"$7')3//"53#"&+3$'8.%$'<"0+$,'*%#2+)%'

7%/+2%#E'7%)+*+3$*

F.+*')"$'+$)/67%'&.%'$%%7'&3'*"2%'<3$%E'"$7'

<"0%'&.%'6*%'3('56+/7+$,*'<3#%'%(-)+%$&'T'

)3<<6$+&E',#361*'"#%'"/*3'&"R1"E%#*B''

H*'&.%'GHI'<32%*'(#3<'*&#"&%,E'&3'13/+)E'

&3'7%/+2%#E4'!"#$%&'$%%7*'&3'%$"5/%'"$'31%$'

7+"/3,6%B'F.+*'+*'"536&',%&&+$,'"'7%%1%#4'

<3#%'<%"$+$,(6/'6$7%#*&"$7+$,'"536&'/3)"/'

$%%7*4'%*1%)+"//E'3('&.3*%')6##%$&/E'6$7%#T

#%1#%*%$&%7B

H*'36&/+$%'"532%'&.%')3<<6$+&E'."*'

*6,,%*&%7'&."&'&.+*'3$,3+$,'7+"/3,6%'"$7'

7%/+2%#E')"$'5%'7%/+2%#%7'5E'"'*%#2+)%'

(3)6*%7'"**%&'&%"<'&3'*6113#&'!"#$%&D*'

Y%$"5/+$,'#3/%D'8.+).'+$)/67%*'*1%"0+$,'8+&.'

"//'6*%#*B''F.+*'&%"<')"$'"/*3'5%'&"*0%7'"&'

+7%$&+(E+$,'6$7%#T6*%7'56+/7+$,*'3#'83#0+$,'

8+&.'&.%')3<<6$+&E'&3')3T/3)"&%B

G6##%$&/E'&.%'"+<*'"$7'35S%)&+2%*'"#%'$3&'

56+/&'"#36$7'6*%#'$%%74'"$7'&.%#%'+*'$3')/%"#'

*%$*%'&.%'&.%'GHI'+*'&.%'5%,+$$+$,'3('"'

)3$2%#*"&+3$4'$3&'&.%'5%,+$$+$,'3('&.%'%$7B''

F.%'7"$,%#'+$'$3&'&"0+$,'"'<3#%')3T7%*+,$%74'

+&%#"&+2%'"11#3").'&3'"+<*'"$7'&.%+#'7%/+2%#E'

8+//'5%'&."&'&.%')3<<6$+&E'<"E'(%%/'&.%E'."2%'

/%**'3('"'*&"0%'+$'&.%'*&#"&%,E4'#%76)+$,'&.%'

"5+/+&E'&3'7%/+2%#'3$'+&B'

H*0+$,'"536&'&.%'$%%7*'3('#%*+7%$&*4'53&.'

8.3'&.3*%'8.3')6##%$&/E'#%)%+2%'*%#2+)%*'"$7'

&.3*%'8.3'<"E'5%$%-&'(#3<'&.%<'+*')#6)+"/'+('

!"#$%&'+*'&3',%&'&.%'<3*&'(#3<'+&D*'"**%&*

M3#'%R"<1/%'"'(3)6*'3$'&.%'1#32+*+3$'3('

/+5#"#E'*%#2+)%*'"$7'56+/7+$,*'&"0%*'"8"E'

&.%'(3)6*'3$'&.%+#'5%$%-&'"$7'6*%B''F.+*'

836/7'+$)/67%'1#32+7+$,'8"#<'1/")%*'&3'

<%%&4'"'(")+/+&E'(3#'53##38+$,'5330*4'+$&%#$%&'

connections etc.  

a/7%#'"$7'<3#%'+*3/"&%7'1%31/%'."2%'"'

,#%"&%#'$%%7'(3#'8"#<%#'1/")%*'&3'<%%&4'

*&67%$&*'$%%7'5330*4'<3*&'&.%')3<<6$+&E'

$%%7*',337'8+T-B

C$*1+#"&+3$'1#32+7%7'(6#&.%#'5%/38'/330*'"&'

.38'"'1.3$%'53R'*."1%7'/+5#"#E'5#+$,*'5330*'

&3'1%31/%B''F.+*'1#+<"#+/E'<%%&*'&.%'$%%7'

(3#'5330*'+$'"#%"*'&."&'73$D&'."2%'&.%<4'56&'

73%*'$3&'<%%&'"'$%%7'(3#'8"#<'*1")%'3#'&.%'

internet.

Establishing user need

WVGa[[V\XVX'\VbF'IFV]I

68



Co-Location

QUHF'QV'UVHWX'

G3<<6$+&E',#361*'8%#%'7+2+7%7'3$'&.%'+7%"'

3(')3T/3)"&+3$B''F.%'(3//38+$,'#%*%#2"&+3$*'

"$7'3113#&6$+&+%*'*.36/7'5%')3$*+7%#%7'

8+&.+$'&.%'GHIc

I3<%'"**%&*'73'$3&'."2%'&.%'L%R+5+/+&E'3('

)3T/3)"&+3$B''VB,B'*13#&*'(")+/+&+%*'*6).'"*'

)#+)0%&'1+&).%*'3#'53R+$,'#+$,*B

I."#+$,'&.%'56#7%$c'I3<%',#361*4'

%*1%)+"//E'&.3*%'8.3'")&%7'"*'/"$7/3#7*'

."7'#%*%#2"&+3$*'"536&'*."#+$,'&.%+#'

"**%&*'8+&.',#361*'8.3'7+7$D&'."2%'&.%'

*"<%'#%*13$*+5+/+&EB

QUHF'FUCI'[VH\I'T'WVGa[[V\XVX'

\VbF'IFV]I

G3T7%*+,$')3T/3)"&%7'*1")%*'32%#'&.%'

/3$,%#'&%#<'&3'*%%'.38'&.%E'836/7'

5%*&'83#0'+$'%").'/3)"&+3$4'+$)/67+$,c'

&.%'7%*+,$'3('&.%'*1")%4'&.%'<37%/'3('

,32%#$"$)%4'&.%'6*",%'3('&.%'(")+/+&+%*B'

["$E'%R"<1/%*'3(')3T/3)"&+3$'%R+*&'"$7'

"#%'56+/7'"#36$7')3<1/%<%$&"#E'6*%#'

$%%7*4'*6).'"*c

a)&316*'+*'"'$%&83#0'3('?='

)3<<6$+&E'.65*'+$'C*/+$,&3$4'

8.%#%'')3<<6$+&E'*."#%'

#%*36#)%*'&3'+<1#32%'/3)"/'

services.

3)&316*)3<<6$+&+%*B3#,B60

X%*+,$'M")&3#E'+*'"'

)3<<6$+&E'*1")%'

+$*+7%'H"/&3'6$+2%#*+&EB'

G3//"53#"&+3$'5%&8%%$'/3)"/'

)3<<6$+&E4'*&67%$&*'"$7'

/3)"/'%$&#%1#%$%6#*

""/&37%*+,$(")&3#EB-

“Instead of trying to merge places 
together the council should think: 
How might we support and help 
transform this place into a vibrant 
valuable place that bring more 
people together”

“We run di"erent groups, early 
years in the morning, scouts in 
the evening.  We’re full all day, 
every day. It works”

Governance Principles
CAS, SECTION 6.0

69



C('&.%')36$)+/')#%"&%7'"$'"**%&'<"1'J+7%"//E'

3$/+$%K')3<<6$+&E',#361*')36/7'83#0'

"<3$,*&'&.%<*%/2%*'&3'83#0'36&'.38'5%*&'&3'

6*%'&.%*%'"**%&*B'I$)/67+$,'"2"+/"5+/+&E4'/%"*%'

/%$,&.4')3*&*'"$7')6##%$&'6*%B'

F.+*'8"E4'+&')36/7'%$"5/%'&.%'G36$)+/'"$7'

%2%#E'*&"0%.3/7%#'&3'$3&'3$/E'&3'6$7%#*&"$7'

.38'&3'<"&).'&3,%&.%#'7%<"$7'"$7'*611/E'

+$'"'*<"#&%#'"$7'<3#%'%(-)+%$&'8"E4'56&'"&'

&.%'*"<%'&+<%'+&'836/7'<"0%'&.%'*%#2+)%*'

"2"+/"5/%'+$'&.%')3<<6$+&E'<3#%'2+*+5/%'

"$7'"))%**+5/%'&3'&.%'#%*+7%$&*4'PGI'

3#,"$+*"&+3$*'"$7'&.%'G36$)+/B'U%/1+$,'&.%<''

&3'<"0%'<3#%'+$(3#<%7'"$7'<3#%'%(-)+%$&'

7%)+*+3$*'"#36$7')3<<6$+&E'"**%&*B

Map the assets

“We can’t create valuable 
collaborations if we don’t know 
what other organisations are out 
there and what they are doing”

70



QUHF'QV'UVHWX'

G3<<6$+&E',#361*'8%#%'$3&')/%"#'8."&'

*6113#&'&.%')36$)+/'+$&%$7*'&3'1#32+7%4'56&'

,%$%#"//E'&.36,.&'+&'8"*'+$)3$*+*&%$&B''I3<%'

,#361*'(%/&')3<<6$+)"&+3$'"$7'*6113#&'

8"*'2%#E'133#4'3&.%#*'."7'*3<%',337'

%R1%#+%$)%*'8+&.')36$)+/'*&"((4'"$7'(%/&'&.%'

"72+)%'8"*',337B

F.%'#"$,%'3('%R1%#+%$)%'"$7'(")&3#*'"((%)&+$,'

&.%'*&"&%'3('/%"*%*'<%"$*'&."&'&."&'&.%'

1#+<"#E'#%)3<<%$7"&+3$'+*'&3'(3)6*'3$'

,%&&+$,'"',337'5"*+)'*&"$7"#7'3(')6*&3<%#'

*%#2+)%'1#32+*+3$B''H')3<<3$'(#6*&#"&+3$'(#3<'

)3<<6$+&E'/%"7%#*'8"*'&.%'+$)3$*+*&%$&'

*&"$7"#7*'+$')3<<6$+)"&+3$4'&.%'/")0'3('"'

$"<%7'*&"(('<%<5%#4'3#')3$L+)&+$,'"72+)%B''

F.%#%'"#%'"'$6<5%#'3('#%"*3$*'8.E'/%"*%*'

"#%'$3&'#%$%8%74'56&')3<<6$+)"&+3$'$%%7*'

&3'5%')/%"#%#'"$7'7%)+*+3$*'<3#%'&#"$*1"#%$&B“It’s common to be in a vicious 
cycle of not having funding, 
because you have no space, 
because you have no funding”

“I’m new to the borough, but 
have found the council really 
helpful”

WVGa[[V\XVX'\VbF'IFV]I'T'^WVHF'

GdIFa[VW'IVWPCGV

H*'1"#&'3('&.+*')3$*6/&"&+3$'&.%'(3//38+$,'

"#%"*'836/7'5%'83#&.'(3)6*+$,'3$c

^%&&+$,'&.%'5"*+)*'#+,.&B''V<"+/*'8%#%$D&'

"/8"E*'#%*13$7%7'&34'3(-)%#*'7+(-)6/&'

&3')"//4'+$(3#<"&+3$'+$)3$*+*&%$&'"$7'$3&'

"/8"E*')/%"#4'#%,6/"#'*&"(('&6#$32%#

U38')"$'&.%')36$)+/'5%&&%#'*6113#&'

&.%'PGI'-$7+$,'"/&%#$"&+2%'*36#)%*'3('

(6$7+$,

`+$0+$,'/%"*%'#%$%8"/*'&3'#3/%*'"$7'

#%*13$*+5+/+&+%*'J*%%'Y*6113#&+$,'

)3<<6$+&E',#361*DK

“when I look to lease something in the 
private sector there is a whole range of 
data available to help me make a good 
decision.   e council don’t share any 
of that data”

Leases and Occupation - 

A great customer service 

experience

H11/%'I6113#&'G3<<6$+&E'+*'

"$'31%$'(3#6<'8.+).'%$"5/%*'

1%31/%'&3'*."#%'&.%+#'7365&*'

"$7')3$)%#$'8+&.'&.%'#%*&'3('

&.%')3<<6$+&E4'8.+).')#%"&%*'

"8"#%$%**'"536&'&.%'<3*&'

#%)6##%$&'+**6%*'"$7'"&'&.%'

*"<%'&+<%')3$$%)&*'6*%#*'

&3'.%/1'%").'3&.%#'*3/2%'

1#35/%<*B

.&&1*cAA7+*)6**+3$*B"11/%B

)3<A8%/)3<%

71



“We’re not just a football club, we 
are also providing a place for people 
to come together around something 
they love, which e"ectively addresses 
social isolation”

“We need to rede#ne the 
relationship between the 
Council and the communities, 
today is extremely di$cult to 
get things done or even have 
access to information, there are 
too many intermediaries”

Supporting community groups - 

creating mutual benefit
GHI4'IVGFCa\'eB>

QUHF'QV'UVHWX

Q3#0*.31'"&&%$7%%*'(%/&'&."&'+('!"#$%&'7+7'

$3&'(6//E'6$7%#*&"$7'8."&'2"/6%'8"*'5%+$,'

5#36,.&'5E'%").'+$7+2+76"/')3<<6$+&E'

,#3614'8."&'*6))%**'/330%7'/+0%'"$7'

8.%&.%#')3<<6$+&E',#361*'8%#%'1%#)%+2%7'

"*'5%+$,'Y*6))%**(6/DB

QUHF'FUCI'[VH\I

]#313*+$,')#+&%#+"'","+$*&'Y&.%')36$)+/D*'

*&#"&%,+)'1#+3#+&+%*D4'Y7%-$%7'/3)"/'$%%7D'"$7'

Y"77+&+3$"/'2"/6%D'+*'1#35"5/E'&33'5#3"7B'C&')"$'

5%'"11/+%7'&3'"/<3*&'"$E',#361'3#'*%#2+)%'

"#%"B''F.+*'+*'%*1%)+"//E'7+(-)6/&'&3'7%-$%'"*'

)3<<6$+&E'%$,",%<%$&'3(&%$'."11%$*'+$'

"$'Y%"#/E'+$&%#2%$&+3$D'*1")%'T')3$*+*&%$&/E'

&#+)0E'&3'<%"*6#%'"$7'6/&+<"&%/E'1#+)%'","+$*&'

costs.

F.+*')#%"&%7'6$%"*%'"<3$,*&'&.%',#361*'

"$7'*3<%'(%/&'"''(%"#'&."&'&.%+#'*%#2+)%*'

)36/7'5%')/3*%7'"&'"$E'13+$&4'#"&.%#'&."$'

5%+$,'*6113#&%7'&3'#%<"+$'31%$B

72



WVGa[[V\XVX'\VbF'IFV]I

!"#$%&'$%%7'&3'&"0%'"'/%"7'3$'5%&&%#'7%-$+$,'

&.%'#3/%*'"$7'#%*13$*+5+/+&+%*'3('53&.'&.%'

)36$)+/'"$7')3<<6$+&E'/%"7%#*B''!3&.'."2%'

"'#%*13$*+5+/+&E'&3'&.%+#')3<<6$+&+%*4'."2%'

)3<1%&+$,'1#%**6#%*'3$'&.%+#'-$"$)%*'"$7'

7%/+2%#'*%#2+)%*'6$7%#'+$)#%"*+$,')3<1/%R+&EB''

G3<<6$+&E',#361*'8%#%')/%"#'&."&'<3#%'

7%-$%7'#%/"&+3$*.+1*'836/7'.%/1')6&'&.#36,.'

*3<%'3('&.+*')3<1/%R+&EB

!"#$%&D*'G3#13#"&%']#31%#&E'X%1"#&<%$&'

"#%'&.%'1#+<"#E'&%"<'8.+).'+$&%#")&'8+&.'

)3<<6$+&E',#361*4'&.%+#'#%/"&+3$*.+1'8+&.'

6*%#*'+*'"'0%E'7#+2%#'3('32%#"//'*"&+*(")&+3$'

8+&.'!"#$%&'G36$)+/B''H'&%"<'8+&.'"',#%"&%#'

#"$,%'3('*0+//*'"$7'#%*13$*+5+/+&+%*')36/7'

%$*6#%'&."&'"**%&*'"#%'<3#%'%(-)+%$&/E'

<"$",%7'"$7'&.%'#%/"&+3$*.+1'8+&.'

)3<<6$+&E',#361*'+<1#32%7B

!HW\VFDI'Wa`V'T'V\H!`C\^'FUV'

Ga[[d\CFZ

F3'1/"E'"'<3#%'%((%)&+2%'Y%$"5/+$,D'#3/%'!"#$%&'

$%%7'&3')3$*+7%#'&.%'(3//38+$,'*0+//*%&*c

Q3#0'8+&.'&.%'PGI'&3'7%-$%'&.%')#+&%#+"'

d$7%#*&"$7'&.%')."//%$,%*'(")%7'8+&.+$'

!"#$%&D*'<"$E')3<<6$+&+%*

d$7%#*&"$7'&.%'567,%&')."//%$,%*'3('&.%'

)36$)+/'"$7'&.%'+<1")&'3$'*%#2+)%*'"$7'

assets

d$7%#*&"$7'.38'"**%&*'"#%'#6$4'7%"/'8+&.'

/%"*%*4'<"+$&%$"$)%4'#%$&'%&)B

U"2%'"$'32%#*+,.&'3('&.%'*%#2+)%*'

7%/+2%#%7'5E'53&.'&.%')36$)+/'"$7'

&.%')3<<6$+&E'")#3**'&.%'53#36,.4'

)3<<+**+3$+$,'1#+3#+&+%*'"$7'(#"<%83#0*'

"$7'8.%#%'&.%#%'"#%'*%#2+)%',"1*

C$L6%$)%'&3'<"0%'7%)+*+3$*'8+&.+$'&.%'

)36$)+/

F.+*'<3#%'#36$7%7'&%"<'8+//'$%%7'&3'"731&'

"'<6).'<3#%')6*&3<%#'(3)6*%7'"11#3").'

+('!"#$%&'+*'&3'*6))%**(6//E'%$"5/%'&.%'

)3<<6$+&E'&3'5%)3<%'<3#%'+$7%1%$7%$&B''

F3'%$."$)%'&.%'#%/"&+3$*.+14'!"#$%&'$%%7'&3'

"//38'&.%')3<<6$+&E'&3'(%%75")0'"$7'.%/1'

+<1#32%'&.%'Y%$"5/+$,D'#3/%'3('&.%')36$)+/B'''

F.%#%'$%%7'3$/E'5%'&83'0%E')#+&%#+"c'

I"&+*(")&+3$'8+&.'*6113#&'1#32+7%7

!67,%&'13*+&+3$

!%)"6*%'%").')"*%'+*'/+0%/E'&3'5%'7+((%#%$&4'

&.%'#%"*3$*'5%.+$7'6*%#'*"&+*(")&+3$'8+//'5%'

7+((%#%$&4'56&')#%"&+$,'&#"$*1"#%$)E'"$7'&#6*&4'

"$7'5%&&%#')6*&3<%#'*%#2+)%4'8+//'#%76)%'

)3*&*'"$7')#%"&%'"'<3#%'%$"5/%7')3<<6$+&EB

73



FUV'Ga[[d\CFZ'Wa`V'T'!dC`XC\^'

]WaPCICa\

Vf6"//E'PGI',#361*4'8.3'2"#E'.6,%/E'+$'

*+g%4'1#32+*+3$4'#%/"&+3$*.+1'8+&.'&.%')36$)+/'

"$7'*36#)%*'3('+$)3<%'8+//'$%%7'&3'83#0'

8+&.'!"#$%&'&3'<3#%')/%"#/E'7%-$%'&.%'2"/6%'

&.%E'5#+$,4'"$7'.38'&.+*')"$'5%'%$."$)%7B''

G#+&%#+"'$%%7'&3'5%'I[HWF'T'I1%)+-)4'

[%"*6#"5/%4'H).+%2"5/%4'W%"/+*&+)'"$7'F+<%'

G3$*&#"+$%7B''G#+&%#+"')36/7'+$)/67%c

`%2%/'3('6*%c'.36#*'3))61+%74'$6<5%#*'3('

6*%#*4'#"$,%'3('")&+2+&+%*4'"$7'*&%1*'&"0%$'

&3''56+/7'1#32+*+3$

H<36$&'3('23/6$&"#E'.36#*A1%31/%'

7%7+)"&%7

\6<5%#'3('"/&%#$"&+2%*'8+&.+$'"')%#&"+$'

7+*&"$)%

a113#&6$+&E')3*&'

d*%#'*"&+*(")&+3$

C$')3<5+$"&+3$'&.%*%'<3#%')/%"#/E'7%-$%7'

#3/%*'"$7'#%*13$*+5+/+&+%*c

Q+//'1#32+7%'&.%'PGI'8+&.')/%"#/E'

7%-$%7'<%&#+)*'&3'*%%0'-$"$)+"/'

*6113#&'(#3<'&.%')36$)+/'"$7'%R&%#$"/'

organisations

["0%'&.%')36$)+/'"))36$&"5/%'&3'&.%'

)3<<6$+&E

["0%'&.%'PGI'"))36$&"5/%'&3'&.%'

)36$)+/'"$7'&.%')3<<6$+&E

H//38'&.%')36$)+/'&3'<"0%'8%//'

+$(3#<%7'*&#"&%,+)'"**%&'<"$",%<%$&'

"$7'*%#2+)%'1#32+*+3$'7%)+*+3$*

I6113#&*'<3#%'%((%)&+2%'"**%&'*"/%*'

"$7'16#)."*%*'"*'8%//'"*')3<<6$+&E'

#+,.&'&3'5+7'"$7'Y1/"$$+$,',"+$D'

7%)+*+3$*

“ e relationship is currently 
very paternalistic, it needs to 
be rede#ned to be more peer to 
peer  e relationship needs to be 
rede#ned to be more peer to peer”

74



Brickstarter

http://brickstarter.org

Airbnb

users opinions

Getting inspired

75



Here To

["0%*'+&'%"*E'(3#')3<<6$+&E'

3#,"$+*"&+3$*4'23/6$&%%#*'"$7'6*%#*'&3'

-'$7'"$7')3$$%)&'8+&.'%").'3&.%#'+$'"$'

.E1%#'/3)"/'/%2%/

["0%*'2+*+5/%'(3#'%2%#E3$%'3&.%#'

+$+&+"&+2%*'+$'&.%')3<<6$+&E

http://islington.hereto.org

Phone Box Library 

W%16#13*%*'"$'35*3/%&%4'E%&'2%#E'+)3$+)4'

165/+)'*1")%

H//38*'1%31/%'&3'*."#%'&.%+#'5330*'"$7'

get books for free

H&&#")&+2%'8"E'3('%$,",+$,'1%31/%'+$'

#%"7+$,c'(#%%4'3$'&.%'8"E'"$7'+&D*'(6$

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-

london-26734859

OpenCloset

^+2%*'&.%'3113#&6$+&E'&3'1%31/%'8.3'73$D&'

."2%'*1")%'+$'&.%+#'.3<%'&3'."2%'"'(#%%'

*&3#",%'#33<'(3#')/3&.%*'J8.+).'&.%E')"$'

"/*3'73$"&%K

H&'&.%'*"<%'&+<%'',+2%*'&.%')."$)%'&3'

6$%<1/3E%7'1%31/%'&.%')."$)%'&3'53##38'

$+)%#')/3&.%*'&3',3'&3'S35'+$&%#2+%8*

F.%')3<<6$+&E')"$'"/*3'*."#%'*0+//*'

/+0%'&%").+$,'.38'&3'1#%1"#%'"'GP'3#'"$'

interview

https://theopencloset.net

Getting inspired

76



In Summary

Give Community Assets a broad definition 

Focus objectives on user need

Get the basics right with good customer 

service

Build capacity over the longer term for an 

‘enabling’ role

Continue to work with the broader 

community to better match needs with 

services including the potential for hubs 

77



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!#$!

!

Appendix 3 – A sample Lease Agreement 
 

The! precise! details! of! any! lease!will! depend! on! a! range! of! factors.! However,! the! sample! below!

indicates!the!areas!that!all!leases!must!cover.!

Example of Best Practice Lease(s) 

Basic Heads of Terms for Community Occupiers 
 

The Parties 

Landlord;!London!Borough!of!Barnet!or!relevant!entity!that!will!enter!into!the!lease.!

Code!of!Leasing!Practice;!Confirmation!that!LBB!adhere!to!the!Code!of!Leasing!Practice.!

Tenant;! Clear! statement! as! to! occupying! entity,! correspondence! address,! ownership!

structure!and!financial!details.!

The Property 

The!Demise;!A!correct!postal!address! for! the!property!and!plan!where!available.!A!clear!

description!of!the!area!to!be!occupied.!

Floor!areas;!A!description! in! feet!and!metres!of! the!area!to!e!occupied!and!confirmation!

that!the!demise!has!been!measured!in!accordance!with!the!latest!edition!of!the!RICS!code!

of!measuring!practice.!

Ancillary! areas;! Details! of! the! ancillary! areas! or! facilities! from!which! the! occupier!may!

benefit!such!as!bike!storage!or!car!parking!spaces.!

The Lease/Licence or other instrument  

Occupational!document;!Clear!statement!as!Head!Lease/Sub"Lease/Assignment/Licence!or!

other!instrument.!

Term;!A!clear!statement!regarding!the!term!and!commencement!date.!

Break!provisions;!A!clear!statement!regarding!break!clauses!if!relevant.!

Rent;!A! clear! statement! regarding! the! initial! rent! either! o! he! basis! that! the! property! is!

occupied! in! its! present! condition! or! on! the! basis! that! LBB! refurbishes! to! an! agreed!

standard.!

Rent!Free!period;!A!clear!statement!as!to!any!rent!free!period!and!the!precise!date!upon!

which!rent!will!accrue!following!expiry.!

Rent! Reviews;! A! clear! statement! regarding! the! rent! review! periods! and! the! basis! upon!

which!rentals!will!be!increased.!!

Occupational!Rates;!The!current!rateable!value!and!rates!payable!along!with!a!statement!

as!to!whether!or!not!the!RV!has!been!appealed.!

78



!

!

!

Community!Asset!Strategy!–June!2015! Page!#%!

!

Repairing!Obligations;! The! repairing! clause!will! clearly! state! the! extent!of! the!occupiers!

liability! and! whether! internal! or! external! and! on! full! repairing! and! ensuring! terms.! In!

addition!the!extent!of!any!liability!for!common!parts.!

Estate!and!Service!Charges;!An!estimate!as!to!service!charge!levels,!if!appropriate!and!the!

proposed!apportionment!for!buildings!in!multi!occupation.!

!

Utilities;!Confirmation!of!responsibilities!in!relation!to!the!payment!of!utilities!for!both!the!

main!demise!and!any!common!parts.!

LBB!Landlords!areas;!A!statement!regarding!those!areas!for!which!LBB/The!landlord!retains!

responsibility.!

Future!LBB/!Landlords!works;!A!description!regarding!any!planned!or!anticipated!works!by!

LBB.!

Insurance;! Confirmation! regarding! who! retains! primary! responsibility! for! insuring! the!

building!and!the!commercial!risks!to!be!covered.!

VAT;!Confirmation!as!to!whether!or!not!the!building!has!been!elected!for!VAT.!

User;!A!clear!statement!regarding!the!permitted!use.!

Access;!A!clear!statement!regarding!the!hours/regularity!of!access.!

Shared! use;! A! clear! statement! regarding! both! current! shared! use! and! the! potential! for!

shared!use!at!some!future!date.!

Alteration;!Not!to!effect!any!alterations!without!the!consent!of!LBB/The! landlord!save!for!

minor!non!structural!internal!works.!

Alienation;!An!absolute!bar!against!assignment!except!with! the!prior!written! consent!of!

LBB!or!the!landlord.!!

LBB!Subsidy;!A!clear! statement!as! to! the! level!of!proposed! subsidy,! if!any,!and! the! time!

period!during!which!any!subsidy!will!apply.!

Legal!and!Professional!costs;!A!statement!regarding!who!will!bear!responsibility!for!fees.!

Conditions;! A! statement! as! to! the! conditions! of! the!Heads! of! Terms! including,! but! not!

limited!to;!

1.!Contract!

2.!Formal!LBB!approval!

3.!Funding!

4.!Subject!to!Survey.!

79



80

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

The report seeks approval for the appropriation of the Site as identified and edged red on 
the drawing attached, number 23839, for planning purposes in two stages under Section 
122 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 and for the grant of a Tenancy at Will pending 
grant of a permanent lease to enable the permanent development of a new two form entry 
primary school by the Department for Education at Pavilion Way HA8.  
 
The recommendations in this report follow the decision by Cabinet Resources Committee 
on 16 Dec 2013 to utilise the Site for education purposes subject to planning consent being 
granted. A proposal has been developed for the provision a new two-form entry non-
denominational primary free school (to be known as Watling Park) to provide 420 pupil 
places together with sporting facilities available to the local community outside school 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 
1 June 2015 

 

Title  

Land at Pavilion Way, Burnt Oak– 
Appropriation of the site for planning 
purposes and the grant of Tenancy at Will 
for a temporary school building. 

Report of  
Chief Operating Officer 

Commissioning Director - Children and Young People 

Wards Burnt Oak Ward 

Status Public  

Enclosures  
Appendix A – Drawing Number 23839/2 Site Plan 

Appendix B – Objections received from public advertising  

Officer Contact Details  

Chris Smith, Head of Estates  

Glenn Miller, Director of Estates and Valuation, Customer and 

Support Group (CSG) 

glenn.miller2@capita.co.uk 

George Church, Principal Valuer, Property Services. 
george.church@barnet.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM 9

81



hours. 
 
Subject to planning consent being granted and the approval of this report, a temporary 
building will first be constructed on part of the Site edged green on the Site Plan to allow 
the initial opening of the educational facilities in time to admit pupils in September 2015. 
 
A further planning application will be made for replacement of the temporary buildings with 
permanent buildings for the primary school. The permanent school development will be the 
subject of a subsequent committee paper and will comprise the whole Site.  
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee note the  responses to the public advertising of the 

Council’s intended appropriation of the Site as shown edged red on drawing 
number 23839 to planning purposes under Section 122 (2A) Local Government 
Act 1972: and 
 

2. That, subject to planning consent being granted for (1) the temporary school 
as shown edged green on drawing number 23839/2  and (2) the permanent free 
school on the Site, the Committee approves the  appropriation of the Site 
pursuant to S122 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 for the above planning 
purposes 

 
3. That, subject to planning consent being granted for the temporary school, the 

Committee approves the grant of a Tenancy at Will to the Bellevue Place 
Education Trust for the temporary school.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The report seeks approval for the appropriation of the Site as identified and 

edged red on the drawing attached, number 23839, for planning purposes in 
two stages under Section 122 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It also 
seeks approval for the grant of a Tenancy at Will pending the grant of a 
permanent lease to enable the permanent development of a new two form 
entry primary school by the Department for Education at Pavilion Way HA8. 

 
1.2 The proposals in the report reflect the decision by the Cabinet Resources 

Committee (CRC) on 16 December 2013 to utilise the Site for education 
purposes. The CRC report of that date, also allowed for the potential 
development of housing on the site. Developing a mixed use site has not 
proved to be possible. In order to meet the pressing need for school places 
in the area together with the provision of enhanced sporting facilities for the 
local community, it is proposed to lease the Site shown on drawing number 
23839 on an Education Funding Agency model free school lease to         

82



Bellevue Place Education Trust for a primary school and enhanced sports 
facility. The sports facility will be used by the school in school hours and will 
be available, once the lease has been completed, for community use outside 
these hours. 
 

1.3 The school, subject to planning consents being granted, will provide 420 
places for primary aged children within the Burnt Oak area and is due to 
admit its first pupils in September 2015. The school is to be known as 
Watling Park Academy and as at the 1st May 2015, a number of children 
within the area have been allocated a school place at Watling Park  to start 
in September 2015. 

 
1.4 The Site currently comprises approximately three acres of land, previously 

used as an all-weather pitch, sports pavilion with car park and a football 
field.  
 

1.5 A further planning application will be made for replacement of the temporary 
buildings with permanent buildings for a primary school. The permanent 
school development, which will be  subject to the grant of planning consent,  
will also be the subject of a subsequent committee paper, setting out the 
terms of the proposed lease to the Academy Trust to provide educational 
and sporting facilities, the latter being available for the local community 
outside school hours 
 

1.6 Subject to the grant of planning permissions for first, the temporary school 
structures, and thereafter for use as a permanent school site with associated 
sports facilities, authority is required to  enable the appropriation of  the Site 
for planning purposes under Section 122 (1) of the Local Government Act 
1972 (see paragraph 5.3.1 below). The decision to appropriate  will only take 
effect upon the relevant planning consents being granted.  
 

1.7 Paragraph 5.6.1 below summarises the result of the public advertising for 
the appropriation of the Site in accordance with S122 (2A) Local 
Government Act 1972 for the committee to consider. Two objections to the 
proposal were received.  
 

1.8 Authority is also sought for the grant of a Tenancy at Will to Bellevue Place 
Education Trust pending the grant of the permanent lease for the entire Site, 
to enable the construction and occupation of the temporary buildings and the 
installation of the required services in the interim. The principal heads of 
terms proposed for the Tenancy at Will are set out in paragraph 5.3.2 below. 

 
 

2.       REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To authorise, subject to planning, the appropriation of the Site for planning 

purposes to enable the development of a two form entry primary school 
(Watling Park) and a new community sports facility comprising an All Weather 
Pitch and changing rooms by way of the two stage development outlined 
above.  As considered by CRC on 16 December 2013, the development will 

83



provide school places in an area of pressing need together with sports 
facilities managed by the school that will deliver benefit to the community 
through a new all-weather pitch available outside school hours.  
 

2.2 To comply with the appropriation provisions of S122 (2A) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the Council must have regard to any representations 
made by members of the public  before making a decision to appropriate (see 
paragraph 5.6.1). 
 

2.3 The grant of a Tenancy at Will to enable the temporary school to lawfully 
occupy the site. 

  
 
3.        ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
3.1 Cabinet Resources Committee (CRC) on 16 December 2013 received 

representations from a number of residents and other interested parties 
before reaching its decision. The two objections received as a result of the 
public advertising for the appropriation of the Site in accordance with S122 
(2A) Local Government Act 1972 reflect the representations made to CRC in 
objecting to the appropriation of the Site to a different  planning use in favour 
of retaining the Site for use as a sports centre. The Site was originally laid for 
sports use in the late 1980s. It was run by the Council until 1995 but demand 
for the facilities on the Site was insufficient to make its long term use viable. 
The Council let the facility in 1995 on a commercial basis to an experienced 
sports partnership that ran the facility on the Site until 2003. The organisation 
was not able to run the facility on a viable commercial basis and they 
surrendered the lease in 2003. 
 

3.2 There would be a significant capital cost in setting up the Site again as a 
sports centre and it would require a sustainable management arrangement to 
repair and maintain the facilities into the future. Having heard representations, 
it was the view of CRC that the joint use proposal for the Site as a school with 
a new All Weather Pitch and changing rooms is the best way to provide a 
sustainable public sports recreational facility on the Site in the long term. The 
two objections now received and reported to this Committee do not contain a 
viable alternative sustainable arrangement. 
 

84



POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 The Council will utilise its powers under Section 122 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to appropriate the Site for planning purposes in 
accordance with the recommendations section of this report.  

 
4.2     The Tenancy at Will of that part of the Site edged green on the Site Plan for 

occupation by Bellevue Place Education Trust will be completed to enable 
Watling Park  to open to its first pupils in September 2015. 

 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION 
 
5.1     Corporate Priorities and Performance 

 
5.1.1 The Corporate Plan 2013-16 has a strategic objective to “promote responsible 
 growth, development and success across the Borough”. 
 
5.1.2 The Council’s Estates Strategy 2011-2015 sets out our commitment to 

continually review the use of Council assets so as to reduce the cost of 
accommodation year on year. 
 

5.1.3 The proposals in this paper will assist towards the Council’s priority set out in 
its Corporate Plan for 2013-2016 of promoting responsible growth 
development and success across the borough. The construction of a new 
school that will provide 420 primary school places in an area of high demand 
for school spaces and a new all weather pitch to be used both by the school 
and local people will address these Corporate plan objectives. 

 
5.2 Resources (Finance& Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
  

5.2.1 The cost of building the school and the community sporting facilities will be 
met by the Department for Education. In developing the permanent school 
and enhanced sporting facilities, the Department for Education is funding the 
All Weather Pitch and the Council will be contributing to upgrade the changing 
facilities to ensure maximum suitability for the wider community use. The 
contribution required is estimated to be a maximum of £350k, which will be 
funded either through section 106 or the Council’s education capital 
programme. 

 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – sets out the 

terms of reference of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 

includes, “Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings 

owned, rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council.”.   

 

85



5.3.2 The Council Constitution, The Management of Asset, Property and Land 

Rules provide the governance structure within which the Council may acquire, 

lease, act as landlord, licence, develop, appropriate, change use of, or 

dispose of Assets within its Asset Portfolio. , 

 
5.3.3 Barnet will utilise its powers under Section 122 (1) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 (“the LGA 1972”) to appropriate the Site for planning purposes. 
Section 122 (1) of the LGA 1972 enables a local authority to appropriate land 
which it owns to a different use where such land could have been acquired by 
agreement and where such land is no longer required for the original use for 
which it was acquired, subject to certain conditions, including as is the 
position in the present case, advertising the Council’s intention to make the 
decision to appropriate in accordance with the requirements contained at s 
122 (2A) of the LGA 1972. Appropriation undertaken on this basis affords the 
collateral benefit of the provisions of Section 237 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) which provide, inter alia,  for the 
extinguishment of certain rights including covenants relating to the land in 
question subject to the compensatory provisions as contained at Section 237 
(4). 
 

5.3.4 The principal heads of terms proposed for the Tenancy at Will are as follows: 
 

Tenant The governors of The  Bellevue Place 
Education Trust 

Property to be let  See drawing number 23839/2 (area edged 
green including the MUGA (Multi Use Games 
Area) 

Term Property to be held at the will of the landlord 
and the tenant  

Rent One peppercorn if demanded 
 

Use The construction and development of the 
temporary school in accordance with the 
relevant planning permission and the use as a 
school or college for educational use  

Assignment or subletting of 
the premises 

Not permitted 

Alterations Not permitted 

Repair The tenant shall keep the Property clean and 
tidy and make good 

 
Reinstatement 
 

To reinstate the Property to the extent required 
by the Landlord at the end of the Term or 
earlier determination  

Utilities The tenant is to be responsible for all water, 
gas, electricity and communications charged on 
the Property. 

Insurance  The tenant shall insure the Property and carry 
liability insurance reasonably required in 
respect of third party public liability  

86



Fire authority requirements The tenant must comply with all statutory 
requirements including of the fire authority in 
accordance with Health and Safety legislation 
and the Regulatory reform (Fire Safety) Order 
2005 and the Building regulations as to fire 
precautions relating to the Property. 

 

5.3 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 By withdrawing the proposal for residential development on part of the Site 
and providing a new, managed sports facility for local people, the risk of 
objection to the proposals from a planning perspective  have been 
significantly reduced. 
 

5.4.2 If planning consent for either the temporary or permanent school is not 
forthcoming the relevant stage of the decision to appropriate cannot proceed 
and the scheme as proposed will not proceed. The Council will be required to 
secure and fund the development of alternative school places for pupils 
allocated a place at Watling Park. 

 
5.4.3 The Site reflects the existence of a title restriction which inter alia confines its 

use to sports pitches for use by the general public with ancillary changing 
rooms and parking. The beneficiary of this restriction was the surrounding 
Deansbrook Estate, of which there are now a number of occupiers. One of the 
effects of appropriating  the Site for  planning purposes pursuant to s 237 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990  (“the TCPA”) is that this restrictive 
covenant will be extinguished.  This ensures that the development of the Site 
free of the covenant can proceed thereby reducing the risk of delay through 
challenge based on the covenant issue. The rights of those parties who believe 
that their rights have been affected would need to be able to prove a financial 
loss within the terms of any claim made against the Council  under s 237(4) of 
the TCPA . It is considered that the re-provision of an improved facility which 
will be available for community use, mitigates this risk. 
 

5.4.4   If the proposal does not proceed the Site will remain in its existing condition 
until an alternative option is secured which is likely to require significant 
capital investment. Management costs will continue to be incurred in the 
interim. 

 
5.5  Equalities and Diversity 

 
5.5.1 Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council must have due regard to the need 

to: a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; b) advance equality of 
opportunity between those with a protected characteristic and those without; 
c) promote good relations between those with a protected characteristic and 
those without. The ‘protected characteristics’ referred to are; age; disability; 
gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; 
sexual orientation. It also covers marriage and civil partnership with regards to 

87



eliminating discrimination. 
 
5.5.2 The Bellevue Place Educational Trust will offer non-denominational, co-

educational school places that will welcome children from all backgrounds in 
the area. As the school will be open to all children in the local area to apply for 
a school place, there are no adverse equalities implications. Establishing a 
high quality education offer in the west of the borough, open to all children is 
likely to have a positive impact on equalities. 

 
 

5.6  Consultation and Engagement 
 
5.6.1 The proposal to appropriate the Site for planning purposes in accordance with 

S122 (2A) of the Local Government Act 1972 has been advertised twice in the 
local press and copies of the advertisement and the Site plan have been 
displayed on Site. This has resulted in the receipt of the following 
representations: 

 
 

Date Name Representation 

24 March 2015 Londinium 
Football Group 

Letter from Londinium Football Group dated 
24 March 2015 and their proposal to the 
Head of Estates of Barnet Council of the 
same date. These are set out in full as part 
of Appendix B of this report. A summary of 
the representation is as follows: That the 
Council should support the rescue of the 
sports facility for use by members of the 
community aged 6-21, working in partnership 
with local businesses. 
 

13th April 
20105 

A local 
resident 

The following is part of a letter received by 
Chris Smith, Head of Estates dated 13th April 
2015. A full copy of the letter is attached as 
part of Appendix B to this committee paper. 
“I wish to lodge a complaint against Barnet 
Council for trying to convert the football pitch 
located in Pavilion Way, into luxury private 
residential houses plus a Chinese mandarin 
speaking school, on the land. It appears that 
Barnet Council is riding roughshod over local 
residents concerns and opposition to the 
proposed project. Barnet Council has 
deliberately left the Pavilion Way football 
pitch derelict for more than 15 years, prior to 
its present  decision to sell this land. My 
family has lived in Pavilion Way for 24 years 
and it was a joy to hear children’s laughter 
coming from the football ground in its 
heyday.  The burning issue here is the 
covenant covering the proposed Site, which 

88



states that it must be used for recreational 
purposes. This was written into the Deed 
dating back to the 1980s when Laing Homes 
started building works inside Pavilion Way.” 

 
5.6.2 The proposal to develop the Site for a school with enhanced sporting facilities 

available for community use will enable the community to have access to 
improved sporting facilities within a sustainable management arrangement 
through the school. No housing will be developed on the Site. It is therefore 
considered that the provision of a floodlit all weather sports pitch for public use 
outside school hours which will be built as part of the construction of the 
permanent school will satisfy the representation and the provision of 
continuing sports facility on the Site.  

 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

6.1 On 4th November 2013 the Council’s Cabinet Resources Committee 4 
November 2013, http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=7460 

 

Decision Item 6 resolved: 
 

1. That authority is given for the disposal of up to one acre of the southern 
end of the Site shown on drawing number 23839 to Taylor Wimpey UK 
Limited (“Taylor Wimpey”) for development as housing subject to receipt of 
a planning permission. 

 
2. That following agreement of the consideration to be received from Taylor 

Wimpey the proposal is referred to a future meeting of the Council’s 
Cabinet Resources Committee. 

 
3. That the Council enters into an agreement for lease with the Department 

for Education (DfE) and The Marco Polo Academy for funding by the DfE 
for the development of the remainder of the Site as a primary academy 
school with approximately 360 pupils together with a community sports 
facility. The agreement for lease will provide for the Council to grant a 125 
year Academy Lease of the completed school and sports facility to The 
Marco Polo Academy based on the DfE model form of lease in accordance 
with the Academies Act 2010. The Academy Lease will provide for the free 
school to maintain and run the sports facility for local people. 

 
 
6.2          Cabinet Resources Committee on the 16th December 2013  

            http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=7461 
          Confirmed this decision following a referral of the decision by Overview and      

                Scrutiny committee. 
 
6.3        On 15 December 2014 the Council’s Assets Regeneration and Growth      
               Committee resolved: 

           http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=7886    
 

89



1. Note the decision of the Department for Education to approve the 

Bellevue Place Education Trust to be the sponsor for the new free 

school to be provided as part of the development at Pavilion Way. 

 

2. Approve the replacement of the education sponsor, Marco Polo 

Academy Trust by the new education sponsor, Bellevue Place 

Education Trust, in relation to the decision confirmed by the Cabinet 

Resources Committee on 16th December 2013 for the development of 

the Pavilion Way site.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



 

 

Summary 
An Accommodation Options Review has been commissioned in relation to Barnet Council’s 
office accommodation provision from October 2015 onwards. The approach used is in 
accordance with HM Treasury Green Book, Five Case principles.  The Outline Business 
Case (OBC) has been prepared to enable officers and members to review the 
accommodation options and identify a preferred option for the Civic Estate. 
  

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee acknowledge and note the contents of the Outline 

Business Case (OBC). 

2. That the Committee note that the preferred option for Barnet Council’s office 
accommodation is to proceed on the basis of a new build development at 
Colindale. 

3. That the committee grants authority to procure a contractor through a 
framework panel. 

4. That the Committee delegate the authority to approve the appointment of the 
preferred contractor to enter into the pre-construction stage agreement to the 
Director of Commercial. 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

1 June 2015 

Title  

London Borough of Barnet 
Accommodations Options Review 
Outline Business Case (OBC) 

Report of Chief Operating Officer 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix A - London Borough of Barnet Accommodation 
Options Review Outline Business Case 

Officer Contact Details  
Chris Smith, Head of Estate Management, London Borough 
of Barnet  

AGENDA ITEM 10

101



5. That the Committee note that a Full Business Case (FBC) be prepared for 
consideration in December 2015. 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.2  Introduction and purpose  

 

1.2.1 There are a number of medium term options available to the Council from 

2017 onwards. These are: 

• ‘Do Nothing’ as a baseline – continuing with leases in both the NLBP sites 

and Barnet House; 

• ‘Do Minimum’ – exit from NLBP Unit 4 and consolidate into NLBP Unit 2 and 

Barnet House; and 

• ‘Do Maximum’ – having consolidated as per the ‘Do Minimum’ option 

beforehand, develop new, specialist accommodation at Grahame Park in 

Colindale to move into in 2017. 

 

1.2.2 The OBC has been completed in accordance with HM Treasury’s Green Book 

‘five-case’ business case principles and therefore includes the following: 

• Strategic Case – setting out the context for the Council’s office 

accommodation, current arrangements and the case for change, constraints 

and investment objectives; 

• Economic Case – appraising the options for office accommodation for Barnet, 

and the preferred way forward; 

• Commercial Case – indicating the commercial implications of the preferred 

way forward; 

• Financial Case – indicating how the preferred way forward could be funded; 

and 

• Management Case – outlining the initial plans for delivery to manage the way 

forward. 

 

1.2.3 The OBC has been prepared to enable officers and members to review the 

accommodation options in order to establish and agree the preferred way 

forward in terms of the Civic Estate from 2017 onwards. 

 

1.2.4 Subject to approval of the OBC, the scheme will move to the next stage in the 

process i.e. full planning permission and procurement of a construction 

contractor. A Full Business Case (FBC) will be prepared with additional detail 

for consideration in December 2015. 

 

1.3 LBB’s strategic objectives 

1.3.1 The Council’s ambition is to move to a more ‘agile working’ organisation and it 

is committed to providing a more flexible working environment. The current 

102



office accommodation includes a significant amount of unused space and it is 

considered that, alongside the introduction of flexible and agile working, LBB 

could occupy a much smaller footprint in the future.  

 

1.3.2 In addition, LBB has a medium term financial challenge of achieving savings 

around £90m between 2015 and 2020, with around £6m of that being targeted 

through the existing estate.  

 

1.3.3 The Council also has a number of regeneration objectives, in particular within 

the Colindale area of the borough and as such, the Council has investigated 

the potential benefits of relocation to this area. 

 

1.4 Existing Portfolio 

1.4.1 The current Civic Portfolio comprises four buildings situated at Units 2 and 4 

North London Business Park (NLBP), Barnet House and Hendon Town Hall. 

 

1.4.2 The key factor which enables the Council to restructure the Civic Estate is the 

ability to break the occupational lease in NLBP Unit 4 in October 2015.  This 

will enable the council to take a two stage approach to revising the Civic 

Estate by consolidating into the existing buildings in the short term (i.e. 2015-

2017) and exploring other options in the medium term (beyond 2017). 

1.8  Recommendation 

 

1.4.3 The preferred option as identified in the OBC (and in line with the decision 

made at SOC stage), is to build new office accommodation at the Grahame 

Park Site, Colindale. This option offers the greatest public value for money 

and meets all of the Council’s strategic objectives. It ensures that the 

Council’s future accommodation needs and investment objectives are met 

through securing the target savings required, it enables flexible working and 

will bring significant benefits to the Colindale regeneration area. The chosen 

solution is capable of being sourced and procured under the existing LBB / 

Capita contractual arrangements.  

 
2 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

 
2.2.1 Do Nothing represents the current status quo, and continues to lease office 

space at the current sites. This does not meet the medium term financial 

strategy and continues current under-utilisation of the existing estate.  

 

2.2.2 The Do Minimum option will increase utilisation in the existing estate, enable 

more agile working practices to be achieved and support greater collocation of 

services, supporting integrated working. However, it offers lower public value 

for money than the Do Maximum option. Furthermore, the estate will remain 

103



situated over a number of sites and this option does not contribute towards 

the Council’s regeneration objectives.   

 

3 POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

3.2.1 If the recommendation is approved by the Committee, the next step will be to 

progress to Full Planning and procurement of a supplier. An FBC will also be 

developed. 

 
4 IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
4.2 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 
4.2.1 Within the contractual arrangements between LBB and Capita, under the CSG 

contract, target minimum savings are identified in terms of reducing the cost 
of civic accommodation. 

 
4.3 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 
4.3.1 The basis of and approach to funding the proposed scheme at Colindale is set 

out in detail in the OBC. Savings profiled in the current MTFS, including 
savings put forward as part of the Priorities and Spending Review, assume a 
cumulative reduction of £45.1m in the cost of office accommodation up to 
2023/24. The preferred option in the OBC estimates a reduction of £46.1m 
over the same period. During FBC stage, the costs will need to be reviewed 
further to ensure the targets in the MTFS are continued to be fully met. 
 

4.3.2 The cost of build, including the cost of buying out the developer’s interest at 
Grahame Park, is estimated to be in the region of £36m. There will be further 
certainty on the cost of the build once a development partner has been 
procured and the FBC will set this out. 
 

4.3.3 The costs in relation to the interim move/consolidation into NLBP 2 and Barnet 
House are currently estimated at £4.5m and include the cost of fit out and 
refurbishments at Barnet House and the cost of IT infrastructure. These one-
off costs will be funded from reserves. 
 

4.3.4 Current projections indicate that there may be a requirement for an additional 
site of 20,000 sq ft in the first 2 years from October 2015 to October 2017. An 
estimate of this cost has been factored into the one-off costs but will be further 
set out in detail in the FBC once a site has been agreed. 
 

4.3.5 Costs to exit NLBP 2 and NLBP 4 have been estimated and factored into the 
OBC. However the OBC does not currently include a cost to exit or potential 
revenue from alternative tenants at Barnet House. This will be factored in at 
FBC stage. 
 
 

104



4.4 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
4.4.1 The Council Constitution under Responsibility for Functions sets out the terms 

of reference for the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes: 
 

• Develop strategies which maximise the financial opportunities of growth; 
and 

• Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings owned, 
rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council 

• To approve any non-statutory plan or strategy within the remit of the 
Committee that is not reserved to Full Council or Policy and Resources. 

 
4.5 Risk Management 
 
4.5.1 Key risks to the Colindale scheme are that (those in relation to the short term 

exit of NLBP 4 have been reported on separately as part of the 
Accommodation Implementation Programme): 
 

Implementation risks: 

• Planning permission is not obtained in time to meet the Council’s timescales; 

• The building overruns and target savings are not achieved; 

• That the space specified for the building is unrealistic and more space is 
required than has been specified to date. 

Business risks: 

• Business continuity arrangements are affected by consolidation into one 
building; 

• Customer access requirements are not suitable; 

• Limited parking or the new location affects staff retention or staff efficiency; 

• Staff new ways of working are not implemented properly resulting in a higher 
space requirement than planned; 

• Restrictions to space affect staff ability to work efficiently. 
 
4.5.2 The business case sets out mitigations to the above, which will be explored 

further by a series of programme arrangements which will report to Delivery 
Unit Board. These are as follows: 

• Smarter and Agile Working is responsible for focussing on how the 

organisation will change and adapt, opting new working practices and using 

new flexible tools and approaches to best meet customer needs, aligned with 

a new office base in 2017; 

• Delivering Colindale is responsible for the delivery of the move to new office 

accommodation in 2017. 

 

4.5.3 In particular, prior to FBC, further detailed work will be completed on the 
staffing, flexible working and IT arrangements to meet the space requirement 
set out, and detailed design work will take place to provide greater assurance 
on build and implementation costs. 
 

4.6 Equalities and Diversity 

105



 
4.6.1 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in the decision-

making of the Council. This requires elected Members to satisfy themselves 
that equality considerations are integrated into day to day business and that 
all proposals have properly taken into consideration what impact, if any, there 
is on any protected group and what mitigating factors can be put in place. 
 

4.6.2 The policy proposals set out in the FBC are designed to ensure fair and 
equitable treatment of all Barnet’s communities in relation to their access to 
The Civic Estate. 
 

5 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
5.2  None 
 

106



 
    

 

0 

 

 

 

 

  

London Borough of Barnet 

Accommodation Options Review 

Outline Business Case (OBC) 

June 2015 

 

 

 

107



 
    

 

1 

 

 

 

Contents 

1. Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Introduction............................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

3. Strategic Case ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.1. Strategic Context ............................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Organisational overview ......................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Strategic drivers ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.2. Case for Change ................................................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Current arrangements ............................................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Business needs ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

3.3. Investment objectives ....................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

3.4. Constraints ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

3.5. Dependencies.................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

3.6. Risks .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 9 

3.7. Conclusion ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

4. Economic Case ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

4.1. Critical Success Factors ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

4.2. Introduction to options ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

4.3. Do Nothing appraisal ....................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Qualitative appraisal ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Quantitative appraisal ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

4.4. Do Minimum appraisal .................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Qualitative appraisal ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Quantitative appraisal ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

4.5. Do Maximum appraisal ................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Qualitative appraisal ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Quantitative appraisal ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

4.6. Conclusion ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

5. Commercial Case .................................................................................................................................................................................. 16 

5.1. Existing arrangements ..................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

5.2. Required services ............................................................................................................................................................................ 16 

Refurbishment of NLBP 2 and Barnet House ................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Design and build of the new HQ ...................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Building services and facilities management ................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Future lease arrangements ............................................................................................................................................................................. 16 

5.3. Developer sourcing approach ......................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Refurbishment of NLBP 2 and Barnet House ................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Design and build of the new HQ ...................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

5.4. Note on the Principal Development Agreement to Genesis Housing Association ........................................................................... 17 

5.5. Procurement approach and implementation timescales ................................................................................................................ 18 

Proposed contractual arrangements ............................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Commercial implications ................................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

Planning permission ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 18 

5.6. Personnel implications .................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

5.7. Conclusion and next steps ............................................................................................................................................................... 18 

6. Financial Case ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

6.1. Funding requirements ..................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

6.2. Note on capital and one-off costs ................................................................................................................................................... 19 

6.3. Cost control in construction ............................................................................................................................................................ 20 

6.4. Projected income and expenditure account implications ............................................................................................................... 20 

6.5. Projected balance sheet .................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

6.6. Affordability considerations ............................................................................................................................................................ 21 

6.7. Conclusion ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

8. Management Case ................................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

108



 
    

 

2 

 

8.1. Smarter Working programme structure .......................................................................................................................................... 22 

Overarching governance arrangements .......................................................................................................................................................... 23 

8.2. AIP programme structure ................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

8.3. Smarter and Agile Working Programme .......................................................................................................................................... 24 

8.4. Colindale Programme ...................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

8.5. Programme plan.............................................................................................................................................................................. 26 

8.6. Risks and issues ............................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

8.7. Benefits realisation approach ......................................................................................................................................................... 28 

8.8. Change management and communications approach .................................................................................................................... 29 

8.9. Post project evaluation approach ................................................................................................................................................... 29 

8.10. Conclusion ................................................................................................................................................................................. 30 

9. Appendix A: Long list of options ........................................................................................................................................................... 31 

10. Appendix B: Site location ................................................................................................................................................................ 35 

11. Appendix C: Detailed economic analysis ......................................................................................................................................... 35 

11.1. Appraisal methodology and notes ............................................................................................................................................. 35 

11.2. Do Nothing appraisal ................................................................................................................................................................. 35 

11.3. Do Minimum appraisal .............................................................................................................................................................. 36 

11.4. Do Maximum ............................................................................................................................................................................. 36 

12. Appendix D: Building services and facilities management .............................................................................................................. 38 

Building services: ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 38 

Facilities management: ................................................................................................................................................................................... 38 

13. Appendix E: Re design brief ............................................................................................................................................................. 40 

14. Appendix F: AIP programme plan .................................................................................................................................................... 43 

15. Appendix G: Colindale programme plan ......................................................................................................................................... 45 

16. Appendix H: High level AIP and Colindale risk log ........................................................................................................................... 46 

17. Appendix I: Benefits realisation templates...................................................................................................................................... 48 

17.1. Financial benefits ....................................................................................................................................................................... 48 

17.2. Non-financial benefits ............................................................................................................................................................... 48 

18. Appendix J: 1:200 drawings ............................................................................................................................................................. 49 

18.1. Ground floor .............................................................................................................................................................................. 49 

18.2. 1st floor ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 50 

18.3. 2
nd

 floor ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 51 

18.4. 3
rd

 floor ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 52 

18.5. 4
th

 floor ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 53 

18.6. 5
th

 floor ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 54 

18.7. 6
th

 floor ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 55 

18.8. 7
th

 floor ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 56 

19. Appendix K: Schedule of areas ........................................................................................................................................................ 57 

 

  

109



 
    

 

3 

 

1. Executive Summary 

This document is the Outline Business Case for London Borough of Barnet’s (LBB) accommodation 

review. It follows a Strategic Outline Case (SOC), which was approved at Assets, Regeneration and 

Growth (ARG) Committee in March 2015. The purpose of the document is to approve the preferred 

option for the scheme, and move to the next stage in the process i.e. full planning permission and 

procurement of a construction contractor. 

LBB currently has an estimated office based staff requirement amounting to ~2,200 individuals, with 

the majority based at the North London Business Park (NLBP) in the east of the Borough.  LBB’s 

ambition is to move to a more ‘agile working’ organisation and it is committed to providing a more 

flexible working environment. The current office accommodation includes a significant amount of 

unused space and it is considered that alongside the introduction of flexible and agile working, LBB 

could occupy a much smaller footprint in the future.  In addition, LBB has a medium term financial 

challenge of around £90m between 2015 and 2020, with around £40m of that being targeted 

through the existing estate. The Council also has a number of regeneration objectives, in particular 

within the Colindale area of the borough and as such, the Council has investigated the potential 

benefits of HQ relocation to this area. 

This business case therefore appraises a number of options, as per the shortlisted options in the 

SOC: 

• ‘Do Nothing’ as a baseline – continuing with leases in both the NLBP sites and Barnet House; 

• ‘Do Minimum’ – exiting from NLBP Unit 4 and consolidating into NLBP Unit 2 and Barnet 

House; and 

• ‘Do Maximum’ – having consolidated as per the ‘Do Minimum’ option beforehand, develop 

new, specialist accommodation at Grahame Park in Colindale to move into in 2017. 

Do Nothing represents the current status quo, and continues to lease office space at the current 

sites. This does not meet the medium term financial strategy and continues current under-utilisation 

of the existing estate. The Do Minimum option will increase utilisation in the existing estate, Smarter 

Working will be achieved and more services will be co-located, support integrated working. However 

the estate will remain situated over a number of sites and this option does not contribute at all to 

regeneration. 

The Do Maximum option will increase utilisation further, and allow an end to all existing lease 

arrangements, consolidating all Council operations in one site. Smarter Working will be achieved and 

services will be collocated, support integrated working. Additionally, the scheme would support 

LBB’s regeneration plans in Colindale, bringing council offices closer to the community as well as 

new jobs and support to local businesses. However, one-off costs are higher than for Do Minimum 

and the requirement to carry out two relocations between 15/16 and 17/18 will create more 

disruption. In turn, higher build costs and the multiple relocations make this a higher risk option. 

The economic analysis in this business case (Economic Case) has shown that the Do Maximum option 

represents the greatest public value for money, with a Net Present Value (NPV) of £114.8m versus 

an NPV of £95.3m for Do Minimum. As such, and taking into account the qualitative analysis above, 

110



 
    

 

4 

 

the Do Maximum option remains the preferred option for LBB’s accommodation review as per the 

recommendation at SOC stage. 

It is currently assumed that Do Maximum option meets the Council’s MTFS plans and would be 

funded through borrowing. As such it is deemed, on current plans, to be affordable to the Council.  

The Programme will be governed in accordance with the Council’s Project Management Toolkit 

methodology, and using the Capital Programme Gateway method at set gateways. Progress will be 

evaluated at key stages of the Programme, such as at the end of the procurement phase and at post-

construction. This will include assurance from the Customer and Support Group subject matter 

experts, Re and Commissioning Group client teams. We will engage a third party to conduct reviews 

at set gateways for external challenge. 

It is therefore recommended that the Council moves to full planning and procurement of a 

construction supplier for the Colindale scheme. It is also recommended that a Full Business Case is 

developed and brought to Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee in December 2015. 

  

111



 
    

 

5 

 

2. Introduction  

A Strategic Outline Case (SOC) was signed off at Assets, Regeneration and Growth (ARG) Committee 

in March 2015. It was also recommended that an Outline Business Case (OBC) be developed for 

consideration at ARG in June 2015. 

This OBC has been completed in accordance with HM Treasury’s Green Book ‘five-case’ business 

case principles and therefore includes the following: 

• Strategic Case – setting out the context for the Council’s office accommodation, current 

arrangements and the case for change, constraints and investment objectives; 

• Economic Case – appraising the options for office accommodation for Barnet, and the 

preferred option; 

• Commercial Case – indicating the commercial implications of the option; 

• Financial Case – indicating how the preferred option could be funded; and 

• Management Case – outlining the initial plans for delivery to manage the way forward. 

  

112



 
    

 

6 

 

3. Strategic Case 

This section details the strategic context and case for change for London Borough of Barnet’s 

accommodation options. It also sets out the risks, constraints and dependencies in which the 

business need will be taken forward alongside the investment objectives. 

3.1. Strategic Context 

Organisational overview 

The London Borough of Barnet (LBB) has an estimated office-based staff requirement amounting to 

~2,200 individuals, with the majority based at the North London Business Park (NLBP) in the east of 

the Borough. 

Capita was retained in 2013 as LBB’s Strategic Partner providing a number of back office services 

including estates and accommodation strategy. Re (Regional Enterprise) Limited, or Re, is the Joint 

Venture between London Borough of Barnet and Capita plc. Re was formed under the 10-year 

contract between the Council and Capita to deliver development and regulatory services (DRS). 

Strategic drivers
1
 

The Council, like others nationally, has gone through major organisational change in recent years, 

and has implemented a ‘Commissioning Council’ approach. As a Commissioning Council, LBB sets the 

strategic priorities of the borough, in the context of the available resources, to agree a set of 

outcomes which reflect the needs of residents and which the full range of local partners work 

together to achieve. Services are then bought or ‘commissioned’ from a diverse mix of providers 

within the market (in-house and from the wider public sector, private and third sectors) to deliver 

these outcomes. The vision is that, by 2020, services will be commissioned jointly for the borough – 

by pooling resources and expertise from across the council, NHS, Jobcentre, police, education 

providers and other partners from the public, private and voluntary sectors - to create truly 

integrated services. For residents, this will mean more intuitive services and, for the Council and its 

partners, saving money and reducing bureaucracy. 

Demand on local services is continuing to rise, driven by a growing population, particularly young 

and older residents. This is a particular issue for Barnet, which in 2015 will become London’s most 

populous borough, with an estimated 393,000 residents. Also, expectations of the Council and local 

services are increasing, driven by advances in customer service across the private sector – including 

greater flexibility to transact online – people expect better services and more prompt responses 

from the Council. This will have implications for the Council’s estate, and LBB is currently exploring 

how the estate can enable improved community cohesion and cross-public sector integration. It is 

also currently reviewing the way that it interacts with customers, through development of a 

Customer Access Strategy – this will be reported on more fully in the FBC, but is likely to have 

implications for greater direct customer access in the future LBB Office HQ. 

In addition, LBB has made a commitment to regeneration of the borough, and in particular within 

the Colindale area. Specifically, the Colindale Area Action Plan (CAAP)
2
 sets out the framework for 

                                                           
1  LBB Corporate Plan 2015 – 2020, April 2015 

113



 
    

 

7 

 

future development and change in the local area. The CAAP was prepared in partnership with key 

stakeholders and local communities in the area and represents the outcome of an intensive period 

of public consultation covering an area of approximately 200ha. It includes an additional 10,000 new 

homes and a mix of retail, office and other land uses. The vision is that by 2021, Colindale ‘will be a 

vibrant, successful and diverse neighbourhood where people will want to live, work and visit. It will 

accommodate high quality sustainable developments within four ‘Corridors of Change’ and a new 

neighbourhood centre. Colindale will become a successful suburb in North London, providing 

existing and new communities with high quality local services, improved transport and access to 

enhanced green space and leisure facilities.’
3
 Co-locating an office on the site would likely bring 

additional employment opportunities, improvements in local infrastructure and support local 

businesses. 

LBB is committed to providing their staff and service users with office accommodation that provides 

a flexible working environment in line with modern working practices. In February 2014, LBB 

established a ‘Smarter Working Group’ to assess accommodation needs in the future. An ‘agile 

working’ survey was undertaken in March 2014 to review the then existing occupational 

arrangements to inform the development of a future strategy based on ‘agile working’ principles. 

The Vision for Smarter Working was developed in December 2014 and set out the following 

aspirations: 

• Accommodation that is the right size, in the right place and is flexible enough to respond 

to changing needs; 

• An attractive place to work, with working culture and practices supporting the delivery 

of our vision for Barnet; 

• Staff in the right locations and able to dedicate more time delivering frontline services 

face to face and to respond to changing needs and demands; 

• Staff with access to the information they need to fulfil their role effectively via efficient 

information systems and devices that are secure when required; 

• Effective partnership working, facilitated by systems and environments, increasingly 

including co-location, data sharing and collaboration. 

Finally, the Council faces a budget gap of £90.8 million between 2015 and 2020, in addition to the 

£75 million budget gap the Council has already dealt with since 2010. It is expected that 

accommodation will contribute to these savings. LBB’s medium term financial plan estimates 

accommodation savings of £40.3m, cumulatively over 2013-2023. These savings have been 

incorporated into budget baselines and Capita is working alongside the Council to achieve these 

savings, within their contractual obligations. 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
2
 https://www.barnet.gov.uk/citizen-home/planning-conservation-and-building-control/planning-policies-and-further-

information/colindale-aap/colindale-area-action-plan.html 
3
 Colindale Area Action Plan, https://www.barnet.gov.uk/citizen-home/planning-conservation-and-building-control/planning-policies-and-

further-information/colindale-aap/colindale-area-action-plan.html 

114



 
    

 

8 

 

3.2. Case for Change 

Current arrangements 

Barnet’s principal office accommodation is across three buildings as follows: 

• Unit 4 North London Business Park – 178,000 sq ft 

• Unit 2 North London Business Park – 43,000 sq ft 

• Barnet House – 80,000 sq ft 

Total – 300,000 sq ft Net Internal Area
4
 

The Council intends to retain Hendon Town Hall for Civic Meeting and Ceremonial space which has 

been excluded for the purposes of this accommodation review. 

The current office accommodation includes a significant amount of unused space and it is 

considered that alongside the introduction of flexible and agile working, LBB could occupy a much 

smaller footprint in the future.  It is currently envisaged that the revised estate footprint for the core 

civic accommodation is in the region of 120,000 sq ft from 2015 and from 2017 onwards 90,000 sq 

ft.  

There is a break clause, in October 2015, for NLBP Unit 4, which LBB served notice to determine in 

late 2014. The lease on NLBP Unit 2 expires in July 2020 and the lease on Barnet House expires in 

September 2032.  

Business needs 

An Agile Working Survey in 2014 established working practices at LBB, and the extent to which 

teams might adapt to a future agile shared desk policy. All office-based staff members (989) were 

invited to participate in the survey, with a 41% completion rate. In addition to the survey, additional 

interviews were undertaken with service delivery team leaders and other staff members. 

The outcome of the Agile Working Study was a recommended desk ratio for office based staff of 

69%, equivalent to a ratio of ‘7:10’. This is based on average office occupancy for all work style types 

including a ‘buffer’ allowance to absorb variations in work patterns.  

As a result, the Smarter Working Programme has approved an overall optimum office footprint of 

90,000 sq ft (NIA), with appropriate parking and catering arrangements to be incorporated 

(additional to 90,000 sq ft). 

Where possible, LBB has a strategic desire to regenerate the western side of the borough where a 

greater number of LBB service users are located. Within the CAAP area, a western Barnet location, 

there is a potential site – at Grahame Park – for a multi-storey scheme, incorporating offices, 

residential apartments, community use and public space. 

                                                           
4
 Net internal area (NIA); for office space only. NIA is the usable area within a building measured to the face of the internal finish of 

perimeter or party walls ignoring skirting boards and taking each floor into account. Gross internal area (GIA) is the whole enclosed area 

of a building within the external walls taking each floor into account and excluding the thickness of the external walls. 

 

115



 
    

 

9 

 

3.3. Investment objectives 

The core investment objectives for LBB accommodation are as follows: 

• Deliver a minimum of £40.3m gross savings in the civic accommodation by September 2023 

in accordance with the contractual obligations between LBB and Capita; 

• Provide modern, flexible office accommodation of 90,000 sq ft; 

• To use the Civic Estate as a regeneration tool; 

• To maximise the occupational use of the Civic Estate through smart working; 

• To focus the council’s facilities in a location which is accessible to the majority of users. 

3.4. Constraints 

There are a number of constraints for LBB to consider in its approach to office accommodation: 

• 2017 is the earliest date for delivery of ‘new’ office accommodation arising from major 

works, either from a refurbishment or new build; 

• LBB offices need to remain within the Borough and be accessible to service users; 

• Funding for any proposed changes would need to be within the parameters of the LBB 

Capital programme and existing resource budgets; and 

• Any new office provision needs to remain attractive and convenient for staff, including 

access to public transport and appropriate parking provisions. 

3.5. Dependencies 

The project has the following dependencies: 

• The accommodation requirement being signed off and agreed by the Smarter Working 

Group; 

• The successful implementation of changed working practices to meet a 50-70% reduction in 

the Council’s accommodation footprint (depending on the option); 

• Negotiations with the owners of Barnet House and NLBP Unit 2 will be required for any 

changes to lease end dates; 

• Negotiations with tenants will be required to define tenancy requirements; 

• The availability of sites being considered under other options. 

3.6. Risks 

The Strategic Risks for LBB to manage and mitigate as it considers its accommodation options are: 

• Potential cost and time overruns resulting in new accommodation not being available on 

time and budgetary pressures;  

• New accommodation being less attractive to staff or impeding their working arrangements; 

• Challenge in staff adapting new working practices including  potential adverse reaction to a 

reduction in the parking provision and greater reliance on public transport; 

• Resistance to cultural changes as the smart working initiative is instigated; 

• Delays in the internal decision making processes results in the accommodation not being 

available for occupation by late 2017. 

116



 
    

 

10 

 

Detailed risk analysis, with mitigations is found in Section 8, Management Case. 

3.7. Conclusion 

This section has out the strategic context and case for change for LBB’s office accommodation and 

the investment objectives for different potential options. 

In the following section, the Economic Case will set out and appraise the options for meeting these 

investment objectives.  

117



 
    

 

11 

 

4. Economic Case 

The Strategic Case set out the rationale, context and constraints for office accommodation for The 

London Borough of Barnet. The Economic Case sets out the Critical Success Factors (CSF’s) for the 

decision, appraising the short-listed options to indicate the preferred option.  

4.1. Critical Success Factors 

Based on the strategic drivers, business needs and constraints, the following Critical Success Factors 

(CSFs) have been established for LBB’s approach to office accommodation: 

• CSF1: Delivers required efficiency savings and affordable to implement 

• CSF2: Alignment with Smarter Working Group approach to desired working arrangements 

• CSF3: Alignment with the wider strategic aims of LBB 

• CSF4: Deliverability within appropriate timescales and with minimal disruption to service 

delivery 

4.2. Introduction to options 

At the SOC stage, we reviewed a long list of options (see Appendix A: Long list of options) and 

developed a shortlist for appraisal. The shortlist developed at SOC stage is as follows: 

• ‘Do Nothing’ as a baseline – continuing with leases in both the NLBP sites and Barnet House; 

• ‘Do Minimum’ – exit from NLBP Unit 4 and consolidate into NLBP Unit 2 and Barnet House; 

and 

• ‘Do Maximum’ – having consolidated as per the ‘Do Minimum’ option beforehand, develop 

new, specialist accommodation at Grahame Park in Colindale to move into in 2017. 

No further site options have arisen since sign off of the SOC and therefore the list above will be 

appraised in further detail at this OBC stage. 

4.3. Do Nothing appraisal 

Do Nothing involves maintaining the status quo, i.e. continuing with leases at both the NLBP sites 

(NLBP 2 and 4) and Barnet House. Under this option, there is no change to an ‘agile working’ 

organisation. 

Qualitative appraisal 

Do Nothing will have low implementation costs, but not achieve any of the benefits outlined as 

Critical Success Factors in terms of meeting the MTFS, implementing Smarter Working and 

supporting regeneration in the borough.  

Critical Success 

Factor 

Benefits Risks RAG 

Rating 

CSF1: Delivers 

required efficiency 

savings and 

affordable to 

implement 

• No implementation costs, as there 

is no change 

• Will not deliver any savings, 

leaving a significant budget gap 

• Will not be utilising the existing 

estate efficiently 

• Does not reduce current estates 

operating costs 

 

CSF2: Alignment 

with Smarter 

 • Does not meet the objectives of  

118



 
    

 

12 

 

Critical Success 

Factor 

Benefits Risks RAG 

Rating 

Working Group 

approach to desired 

working 

arrangements 

 

Smarter Working 

• Remains partially within an 

inefficient estate (several sites) 

• Maintains existing levels of 

underutilisation 

CSF3: Alignment 

with the wider 

strategic aims of LBB 

 

 • Does not meet regeneration plans 

set out in the Colindale Area Action 

Plan 

 

CSF4: Deliverability 

within appropriate 

timescales and with 

minimal disruption 

to service delivery 

 

• Achieves minimal disruption to 

staff and service delivery 

  

Quantitative appraisal 

The Do Nothing has a Net Present Value of -£187.5m, i.e. a net cost over the life of the investment. A 

detailed breakdown of the costs, income and assumptions made is at Appendix C: Detailed economic 

analysis. 

4.4. Do Minimum appraisal 

The Do Minimum option represents: 

• Termination of the lease for NLBP Unit 4 in October 2015 

• Consolidation of the HQ at NLBP Unit 2 and Barnet House in October 2015 (by leasing 

another floor of NLBP 2, Floor 2, currently occupied by Middlesex University) 

• This represents a reduction in footprint of 50% versus the current arrangements 

Qualitative appraisal 

The Do Minimum option provides savings towards the MTFS, has lower one-off costs than for Do 

Maximum, will increase utilisation and allow an end to part of the existing lease arrangements. 

Smarter Working will be achieved and more services will be collocated, supporting integrated 

working. However the estate will remain over a number of sites and this option does not contribute 

at all to regeneration. The accommodation move is imminent, and although robust plans are in place 

to mitigate against this, timescales are nonetheless tight and the move will create some disruption. 

Critical Success 

Factor 

Benefits Risks RAG 

Rating 

CSF1: Delivers 

required efficiency 

savings and 

affordable to 

implement 

• Delivers savings towards the MTFS  

• One-off costs are lower than for 

the Do Maximum option 

• Will deliver improved estate 

utilisation  

• Allows LBB to end one current 

lease arrangements 

 

 

 

CSF2: Alignment 

with Smarter 

Working Group 

approach to desired 

working 

• Delivers the planned changes 

under Smarter Working 

• More LBB services will be 

collocated, supporting more 

integrated working 

• Remains partially within an 

inefficient estate (several sites) 

 

 

119



 
    

 

13 

 

Critical Success 

Factor 

Benefits Risks RAG 

Rating 

arrangements 

 

CSF3: Alignment 

with the wider 

strategic aims of LBB 

 

 • Does not meet regeneration plans 

set out in the Colindale Area Action 

Plan 

 

CSF4: Deliverability 

within appropriate 

timescales and with 

minimal disruption 

to service delivery 

• Achievable within planned 

timescales, but requires very 

robust planning and delivery, given 

that October 2015 date is fast 

approaching 

• Requires an accommodation move 

in 2015, causing more disruption 

than a Do Nothing option 

 

Quantitative appraisal 

The Do Minimum option has a Net Present Value of £95.3m over the life of the investment. A 

detailed breakdown of the costs, income and assumptions made is at Appendix C: Detailed economic 

analysis. 

4.5.  Do Maximum appraisal 

The Do Maximum option represents: 

• Delivery of Do Minimum successfully from 2015 until 2017 

• Relocation of the HQ to a new site, Grahame Park in Colindale, in October 2017 

• This represents a reduction in footprint of 70% versus the current arrangements 

Figure 1: Artist impression of the proposed HQ at Grahame Park 

 

Qualitative appraisal 

The Do Maximum option provides savings towards the MTFS, will increase utilisation and allow an 

end to all existing lease arrangements, consolidating all Council operations in one site. Smarter 

Working will be achieved and services will be collocated, support integrated working.  Additionally, 

the scheme would support LBB’s regeneration plans in Colindale, bringing further additional benefits 

120



 
    

 

14 

 

to the area, in terms of jobs and infrastructure. Differing from other options, this site would be at 

the heart of a new community in Barnet. However, one-off costs are higher than for Do Minimum 

and the requirement to carry out two relocations between 15/16 and 17/18 will create more 

disruption than the Do Minimum option alone. In turn, higher build costs and the multiple 

relocations make this a higher risk option. 

Critical Success 

Factor 

Benefits Risks RAG 

Rating 

CSF1: Delivers 

required efficiency 

savings and 

affordable to 

implement 

• Delivers savings towards the MTFS  

• Will deliver improved estate 

utilisation  

• Allows LBB to end all lease 

arrangements 

• One-off costs are higher than for 

the other options 

 

CSF2: Alignment 

with Smarter 

Working Group 

approach to desired 

working 

arrangements 

 

• Delivers the planned changes 

under Smarter Working 

• All LBB services will be collocated, 

supporting more integrated 

working, and a more efficient 

estate 

  

CSF3: Alignment 

with the wider 

strategic aims of LBB 

 

• Meets regeneration plans set out 

in the Colindale Area Action Plan 

  

CSF4: Deliverability 

within appropriate 

timescales and with 

minimal disruption 

to service delivery 

• Achievable within planned 

timescales 

• However, requires very robust 

planning and delivery given that 

October 2015 date is fast 

approaching 

• Requires a first accommodation 

move in 2015 and a second move, 

in 2017, creating more disruption 

to staff, partners and customers 

than in other options 

• A higher risk option in terms of 

complexity of delivery 

 

Quantitative appraisal 

The Do Maximum option has a Net Present Value of £114.8m over the life of the investment. A 

detailed breakdown of the costs, income and assumptions made is at Appendix C: Detailed economic 

analysis. 

4.6. Conclusion 

The analysis in this business case shows that the Do Maximum represents the greatest public value 

for money (see table below). Although it is a higher risk option that the other two, and there will be 

more disruption than other options, it is the only option that meets all of LBB’s strategic objectives. 

The figures below show the Net Present Value of each option (discounted at 3.5%). 

Table 1: Economic analysis for all options 

 £ million Do Nothing Do Min Do Max 

One-off costs                            -   -                        9.1  -                      16.8  

Estates running costs (net of rental 

income) 
-                    325.4  -                    136.8  -                      83.9  

Savings assumed - baseline                            -                        325.4                       325.4  

121



 
    

 

15 

 

 £ million Do Nothing Do Min Do Max 

Net (cost) / saving of running costs 

against baseline 
-                    325.4                       179.5                       224.6  

Net discounted (cost) / saving of 

running costs against baseline 
-                    187.5                         95.3                       114.8  

 

  

122



 
    

 

16 

 

5. Commercial Case 

The Economic Case sets out the preferred option for Barnet’s office accommodation from October 

2015. This Commercial Case indicates how this could be ‘sourced’, including the high level 

commercial and negotiation approach.  

5.1. Existing arrangements  

The Do Maximum option assumes breaking the following leases: 

• Breaking the lease at NLBP 4 in October 2015 

• Breaking the lease at NLBP 2 in October 2017 

• Breaking the lease at Barnet House or sub-letting from October 2017 

Note that estimates for costs of exit from NLBP 4 and NLBP 2 have been made in this business case, 

but no estimates for exit from Barnet House have been made. This will be explored further prior to 

FBC stage. 

5.2. Required services 

As described within the Economic Case, the preferred option centres on consolidation of the existing 

estate in 2015, and constructing a new purpose built building for LBB’s HQ in 2017. 

Refurbishment of NLBP 2 and Barnet House 

The Policy & Resources Committee agreed on the 13th January 2015, under Item 10 of the Forward 

Plan procurement activity
5
, the proposal for building works in connection with the Accommodation 

Implementation Programme, which includes design and build (refurbishment) services for NLBP 2 

and Barnet House. 

Design and build of the new HQ 

LBB is able to utilise its existing contractual arrangements with Capita to facilitate a redevelopment 

at Colindale through a Design and Build Contract. Additional services will be required comprising 

three principle areas as follows: 

• Full development support services, delivered by Re as set out below 

• Development contractor: to be appointed by Re 

• Provision of funding: LBB 

Building services and facilities management 

Under the Customer and Support Group (CSG) Contract, Capita is contracted to deliver building 

services and facilities management. To ensure alignment within the wider Capita / LBB contracts, Re 

is currently responsible for delivery of those services. Detailed breakdown of these services is at 

Appendix D: Building services and facilities management. 

Future lease arrangements  

LBB will hold the freehold for the building and is expected to sub-lease to a number of tenants in the 

building, which are likely to be third sector and other public sector partners. This business case 

                                                           
5
 http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s20197/Appendix%201.pdf 

123



 
    

 

17 

 

assumes that existing tenants, Barnet Clinical Commissioning Group, Barnet Homes and Re continue 

to occupy space. Full details of tenancy arrangements will be detailed in the FBC. 

5.3. Developer sourcing approach 

Refurbishment of NLBP 2 and Barnet House 

Under a Delegated Powers report in March 2015, LBB agreed to appoint Shaylor Group for the 

design and building works at guaranteed maximum price (GMP). The contractor was appointed using 

the LHC (London Housing Consortium) Framework and the contract for the design and build will be 

carried out using the NEC Form of Contract. 

Design and build of the new HQ 

The physical development will be undertaken through a JCT (Joint Contracts Tribunal) Design and 

Build contract project managed by Re on behalf of the Council. The appointment of the contractor 

will be managed by Re, in association with the LBB procurement team and in line with EU public 

procurement regulations and The Public Contracts Regulations 2015. It is currently envisaged that 

the contractor would be appointed through the Southern Construction Framework.  

Re will provide the following development support services for the programme, under existing 

contractual arrangements: 

• Preparation of the outline design (see Appendix E: Re design brief); 

• Submission of a full planning application; 

• Cost consultancy; 

• Project management; 

• Development management. 

5.4. Note on the Principal Development Agreement to Genesis Housing Association
6
 

In January 2001 the Council embarked upon a scheme for the regeneration of the Grahame Park 

estate which aimed to transform it into a thriving, mixed tenure community with improved transport 

links and enhanced community facilities. In 2007 the Council entered into a Principal Development 

Agreement (PDA) with Choices for Grahame Park (CFGP) a special delivery vehicle created by 

Genesis Housing Association (GHA). 

The Grahame Park Regeneration Programme is divided into two distinct stages; A and B. Stage A is 

currently underway and Stage B is currently subject to review. Plot 8 on Stage A (Formerly A1) was 

scheduled in the original master plan to deliver around 90 private units with community uses on the 

ground and first floors. However the Authority is considering the site for new office accommodation 

and formal negotiations need to take place with GHA about potentially ‘carving out’ this site from 

the PDA.  

Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee authorised the Chief Executive in September 2014 to 

negotiate with GHA to deliver a ‘carve out’ from the PDA of land to facilitate the development of 

office facilities. Negotiations with GHA are currently taking place to agree a variation to the PDA and 

                                                           
6
 Grahame Park Regeneration Update, Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee, September 2014 

124



 
    

 

18 

 

agree the level of compensation payable to GHA to offset the loss of profit from sales of private 

housing planned for the site. An estimate of these costs has been included in this business case and 

full details of the contract variation will be included at Full Business Case (FBC). 

5.5. Procurement approach and implementation timescales 

Proposed contractual arrangements 

The contract is expected to be a standard a Design and Build agreement through the Southern 

Construction Framework. 

Commercial implications 

Through utilising the existing Capita / LBB contract alongside the Council’s internal procurement 

team, we believe that the commercial risks can be minimised and Capita’s extensive experience in 

development management will ensure that the commercial negotiations will be conducted to the 

maximum possible benefit of the council. 

Planning permission 

Pre-application meetings have taken place between Re and the Local Planning Authority who are 

positively engaging in the scheme. Consultation with members, residents and stakeholders is due to 

take place after the Election. 

5.6. Personnel implications 

The Re joint venture is for a term of ten years which will ensure continuity of approach and 

personnel throughout the development period enabling the scheme to be completed in a timely 

manner for occupation by 2017.  There are no TUPE requirements in relation to this project. 

5.7. Conclusion and next steps 

This Commercial Case has indicated the sourcing approach that Barnet proposes to deliver for the 

preferred option. Next steps are for Re to procure and appoint a Design and Build Contractor, to 

submit a full planning application and for Technical Design (Stage 4) to be developed. 

  

125



 
    

 

19 

 

6. Financial Case 

The Economic Case indicated the preferred option for LBB’s office accommodation. This Financial 

Case indicates the budgetary, financial and affordability considerations of this approach. 

6.1. Funding requirements 

The preferred option emerging from the Economic Case requires estimated one-off implementation 

costs of development of £17.1m and recurrent costs of £39.7m; (this includes borrowing for capital 

build costs and repayment of a loan to the value of £13.5m) from September 2013 to August 2023 

(the duration of the Re and CSG contracts). This will be included within LBB’s capital programme and 

it is assumed will be funded from Public Works Loan Board borrowing. This business case assumes a 

30 year loan to be repaid upon maturity, with an interest rate of 3.34%. The Council’s ‘Minimum 

Revenue Provision’
7
 has been calculated, in line with the council’s policy, over the life of the asset 

(50 years). 

Table 2: Funding requirements 

Financial implications £ million 2013/14 – 2022/23
8
  Notes 

One-off costs                17.1  Project costs, service charges associated with ending 

leases, transition costs, equipment costs and cost of risk 

(see Appendix C: Detailed economic analysis for full 

detail) 

Estates running costs (net of rental 

income and including capital 

borrowing) 

               39.7  Capital build and borrowing costs, facilities 

management, rent and rates (see Appendix C: Detailed 

economic analysis for full detail) 

Total costs                56.8   

Costs exclude VAT, as LBB recovers VAT. Costs include inflation
9
 which is excluded from the 

Economic Case (with the exception of inflation as part of rental agreements). Note that the costs 

above are not discounted, versus the Economic Case where figures are discounted at 3.5%, as per 

HM Treasury guidance. 

6.2. Note on capital and one-off costs  

The cost estimates in this appraisal are as provided by Re for the new build construction, to Stage 3
10

 

design, and implementation. These include contingency of 5% and in addition optimism bias has 

been added at 20% to the implementation costs as a cost of risk. 

Where costs are not known, best estimates have been provided at this stage. Further work will be 

required to define the following costs and these will be updated at FBC: 

• Detailed technical design, with feedback from Planning 

                                                           
7
 Statute requires the authority to set money aside each year for the repayment of loans originally taken out to finance capital 

expenditure. This is called the minimum revenue provision (MRP). Under capital accounting arrangements, the council’s services are 

charged depreciation to reflect the consumption of capital assets used. The depreciation charge is treated as the council’s revenue 

provision and any variation from the statutory minimum is transferred between the capital adjustment account and the income and 

expenditure account. 
8
 September 2013 to August 2022, as per the Capita contract 

9
 Inflated in line with RICS PUBSEC Tender Price Index of Public Sector Building Non-Housing #903 Updated 16 Sept 2014 

10
 RIBA Plan of Work 2013 (http://www.ribaplanofwork.com/About/Concept.aspx) 

126



 
    

 

20 

 

• Income from tenants; although this won’t be negotiated before FBC, it is recommended that 

initial discussions take place with current tenants 

• Lifecycle costs for the new building 

• Project and implementation costs, once a detailed Smarter and Agile Working plan has been 

developed 

• Land compensation, once negotiations are complete 

6.3. Cost control in construction
11

 

Re has prepared a Stage 3 cost plan which includes all construction costs, all other items of project 

cost including professional fees and contingency. The objective of cost control is to manage the 

delivery of the project within the approved budget. Regular cost reporting will facilitate, at all times, 

the best possible estimate of established project cost to date, anticipated final cost of the project 

and future cash flow. Re will be reporting on costs in accordance with the management approach 

detailed in Section 8 of this business case. 

As the scheme progress through the design phases, the following actions will be taken: 

• Establishing that all decisions taken during design and construction are based on a forecast 

of the cost implications of the alternatives being considered, and that no decisions are taken 

whose cost implications would cause the total budget to be exceeded. 

• Regularly updating and reissuing the cost plan and variation orders causing any alterations 

to the brief. 

• Adjusting the cash flow plan to reflect alterations in the target cost. 

• Developing the cost plan in liaison with the project team as design and construction 

progress.  

• Reviewing contingency and risk allowances at intervals and reporting the assessments is an 

essential part of risk management procedures. Developing the cost plan should not involve 

increasing the total cost. 

• Checking that the agreed change management process is strictly followed at all stages of the 

project. 

• Submitting regular, up-to-date and accurate cost reports to keep the client well informed of 

the current budgetary and cost situation. 

• Ensuring that the project costs are always reported back against the original approved 

budget. Any subsequent variations to the budget must be clearly indicated in the cost 

reports. 

• Plotting actual expenditure against predicted to give an indication of the project’s progress. 

6.4.  Projected income and expenditure account implications 

Capital build costs (total of £36.3m, over 50 years) will be funded through borrowing. Further one-

off costs (£17.1m) will be funded through reserves, and revenue requirements will be contained 

within existing budgets. 

                                                           
11

 http://www.designingbuildings.co.uk 

127



 
    

 

21 

 

6.5.  Projected balance sheet 

The preferred option will include an additional freehold asset on the LBB balance sheet.  In 

accordance with existing accounting policies, it is intended that this building asset will be 

depreciated over 50 years, and the MRP will be calculated based on these timescales. It is feasible 

that the asset will be revalued over its life, and could have a material residual value for LBB. The 

MRP is therefore being calculated on a highly prudent basis. 

In so far as new borrowing is required to fund the capital costs of the asset, this will increase the 

liability on the balance sheet. 

6.6. Affordability considerations 

LBB has a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) requirement to save £40.3m cumulatively over 

the period including 2023/24. In addition to this, the Priorities and Spending Review (PSR) exercise 

identified a further £4.8m cumulatively to be saved over the same period.  The scheme, under 

current plans meets the MTFS target. 

Table 3: Do Maximum savings comparison to MTFS target (£m) 

Financial implications to 2023/24 Baseline Do Maximum 

One-off costs 
                  -                 17.1  

Recurrent net costs               85.8                39.7  

 
  

Net recurrent saving versus the 

baseline 

               46.1  

   

MTFS target                40.3  

PSR target                  4.8  

Difference to MTFS and PSR target                 (1.0)  

The figures above are without any discounting applied, and include Minimum Revenue Provision 

(MRP) considerations. 

6.7. Conclusion 

This section has outlined the funding requirements and demonstrated that the scheme meets the 

Council’s MTFS savings targeted at the accommodation review. 

 

 

  

128



 
    

 

22 

 

8. Management Case 

The Economic, Commercial and Financial Cases have indicated the preferred option for Barnet’s 

office accommodation approach. This Management Case provides the outline plans for programme 

management, governance, risk management and benefits realisation that will be required to ensure 

successful delivery. 

8.1. Smarter Working programme structure 

Barnet’s HQ accommodation strategy is being implemented through a ‘Smarter Working’ 

programme, with three constituent sub-programmes: 

• Smarter and Agile Working is responsible for focussing on how the organisation will change 

and adapt, opting new working practices and using new flexible tools and approaches to 

best meet customer needs, aligned with a new office base in 2017; 

• Accommodation Implementation is responsible for the short term exit from NLBP 4 and 

relocation to NLBP 2 and Barnet House (delivery of the Do Minimum option in this business 

case); 

• Delivering Colindale is responsible for the delivery of the move to new office 

accommodation in 2017 (the Do Maximum option in this business case). 

It is vital that these planned changes are governed as a single, connected programme given the 

significant dependencies between different sub-programmes. There is a need to ensure successful 

delivery of change in 2015, develop new working styles and practices for 2017 and create a new 

office space which enables the organisation to meet the needs of customers most effectively and 

efficiently. 

This programme structure is shown in the diagram below. 

Figure 2: Smarter Working Programme 

 

Executive Programme Board 

SCB

Sign-Off: Business Cases; Assurance 

on project delivery

Smarter and Agile 

Working Board

SRO: Family Services 

Director
Developing ‘agile’ vision for 

2017, workforce readiness, 

changes in how we work, use 

of space and partnership 

working

AIP Board

SRO: Head of 

Estate 

Management

Governing delivery of 

2015 moves

Business 

Readiness

Testing 

Delivery Plan

Programme Board (DUB)

Executive Sponsor: Claire 
Symonds

Manage programme-wide dependencies, 

direction, budget, outcomes, time cost and 

quality; receive assurance on project delivery

Enabling Streams/Boards (HR, IT, Estates)

Delivering 

Colindale

SRO: Head of 

Estate Management

2017 delivery of new 

accommodation in 

Colindale

Business 

Readiness

Testing 

Delivery Plan

Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee – approval of business case 

for Colindale and assurance of delivery 

129



 
    

 

23 

 

This incorporates the following key activities: 

1. Accommodation Implementation Programme 

• Fit-out and refurbishment at Barnet House and NLBP 2; 

• Office furniture (for NLBP2 and 4) purchase and fitting; 

• IT infrastructure purchase and fitting; 

• Physical move to NLBP Unit 2 and Barnet House in October 2015 (including the NLBP4 server 

room migration). 

 

2. Smarter and Agile Working  

• Developing operating model for service in 2017; 

• Development and preparation of new working practices;  

• IT hardware required to move to a more ‘agile’ IT strategy, training and support (already 

part of a planned CSG IT refresh programme); 

• Organisational development to design new ways of working and business readiness; 

• Workforce engagement and change management to implement new ways of working. 

 

3. Delivering Colindale 

• Design and build of the new site; 

• IT infrastructure fitting; 

• Office furniture and fixtures fitting; 

• Physical move. 

Overarching governance arrangements 

Currently the Accommodation Implementation and Colindale sub-programmes are managed as 

separate work areas, with the Smarter and Agile Working sub-programme being reshaped and 

reconstituted.  

 

Overall governance across the whole Smarter Working programme is through Delivery Unit Board, 

which meets monthly. The Sponsor is the Director of Commercial and Customer Services. The 

Delivery Unity Board reports monthly to Strategic Commissioning Board each month. 

 

In addition to Programme boards, the Council has internal resource-enabling boards – the Assets 

and Capital Board and Workforce Board – and client teams, led by the Head of Estates Management 

to review costs, scope of activity and assurance of estates delivery plans. Further subject matter 

expertise and assurance on IS, HR, programme management and change management is provided by 

the Council’s client team within Commissioning Group. 

 

This programme will be delivered in accordance with the Council’s established project management 

toolkit and compliance with the Council’s agreed gateway review methodology and we will put in 

place a comprehensive plan of programme assurance, including: 

- Technical and subject management expertise to be provided by technical experts within 

CSG, Re, contracted suppliers and the Council; 

130



 
    

 

24 

 

- Expertise supplied through well-resourced and skilled programme teams, strong governance 

with clear Terms of Reference, controls and board representation; 

- Programme and project level assurance from the Council’s Corporate Programmes function 

(provided by CSG) and reviewed by the Council’s programme, finance, IS, commercial, HR, 

and estates client team; 

- External review and assurance via commissioned internal audit activity and external gateway 

reviews; 

- Quarterly programme performance reporting included in reports to Performance and 

Contract Monitoring Committee. 

8.2. AIP programme structure 

AIP is governed by a Programme Board, which meets weekly currently, and is accountable to 

Delivery Unit Board. 

Figure 3: AIP programme structure 

 

Table 4: AIP Roles and responsibilities 

Role  Role description (responsibilities and accountability) 

Senior Responsible Owner • Accountable for successful delivery of the programme. 

Programme Manager • Responsible for delivering the programme to time and to budget. 

Estates Lead • Responsible for the design and construction of the scheme. 

Workforce Lead • Responsible for managing the workforce elements of the change, 

Business Change Lead • Responsible for training, communication and change management 
for the change. 

8.3. Smarter and Agile Working Programme  

A Smarter and Agile Working Programme was put in place in 2014/15, with strong representation 

from Council services (Delivery Units). This ensures that there is a clear and achievable vision for 

how the organisation can adapt and change to become more flexible, responsive and agile in 2017.   

  

AIP Estates AIP ICT AIP Workforce AIP Change

AIP Board

SRO : Head of 

Estates

AIP Delivery Team Planning & delivery of 

mid-term consolidation 

moves

AIP Delivery Team

DU Move Managers:

Intra-DU engagement

Local decisions

131



 
    

 

25 

 

Figure 4: Smarter and Agile Working Programme Vision 

 

Having developed a high level vision and target operating model, the Programme will be 

reconstituted and re-launched in June 2015 to focus on development of new working practices, 

implementation of more flexible use of IT hardware required to move to a more ‘agile’ IT strategy, 

training and support (already part of a planned CSG IT refresh programme) to prepare the business 

for change and implement new ways of working. It should be noted that any future Smarter and 

Agile Working business case for investment in IT and new working practices will have a dependency 

on this business case, which will be explored further in due course. 

A high level structure is shown below, which will be reported on more fully in the Full Business Case. 

Figure 5: Smarter and Agile Working Programme 

 

Smarter Working Vision

Delivering the Vision

December 

2014

Move from 3 

sites to 2 

(NLBP 2 and BH)

Investment in 

laptops 

Off Site Archiving 

and reduced 

storage

Implementation 

of agile working

Agile working 

furniture solution

Move into purpose 

built Colindale facility

Earlier investment in 

laptops supports 

reduction in floor space

No need for further 

furniture investment

Move costs to Colindale 

reduced

Staff are prepared to 

continue to become 

increasingly agile

Less storage space 

required

Colindale

132



 
    

 

26 

 

8.4. Colindale Programme 

A Colindale Programme Board was set up after approval of the Strategic Outline Case, and a 

proposal for programme resource is currently being developed. Executive decision-making on the 

business case and development of a new office site for the Colindale Programme resides with the 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee, which sets the direction, funding and deliverables for 

the new office accommodation. 

 

Figure 6: Draft Colindale programme structure 

 

The following key roles are expected to be developed during mobilisation: 

Table 5: Draft roles and responsibilities 

Role  Role description (responsibilities and accountability) 

Senior Responsible Owner • Accountable for successful delivery of the programme. 

Programme Manager • Responsible for delivering the programme to time and to budget. 

Design Lead • Responsible for the design and successful planning application of 
the scheme. 

PMO • Programme management function to manage the pre-
implementation phase i.e. planning, business case and 
procurement and construction phase through to relocations. 
Likely to include projects for move management and construction 
management. 

IT Lead • Responsible for IT inputs, infrastructure purchase and fitting. 

Business Change and 
Communications Lead 

• Responsible for training, communication and change 
management for the change. 

8.5. Programme plan 

The plan below shows the high level estates programme plan to deliver the preferred option 

(including delivery of the Accommodation Implementation (AIP) and the Colindale move). AIP has 

detailed programme arrangements in place to ensure that the decant of NLBP 4 takes place by 

October 2015 (see detailed programme plan at Appendix F: AIP programme plan). The Colindale plan 

is currently based on the assumption that the contractor will be procured through the Southern 

Construction Framework (see detailed plan at Appendix G: Colindale programme plan). A more 

detailed plan will be developed when a build contractor is in place. 

A Smarter and Agile Working Programme plan is in development and will be reported on in the FBC. 

Colindale Board

SRO : Head of 

Estates

PM : To be appointed

Business 

Case

Design Pre-

development 
PMO

Construction 

PMO

ITBusiness 
Change

Move 
Management

133



 
    

 

27 

 

Figure 7: AIP and Colindale programme plans 

 

8.6. Risks and issues 

Risks and issues will be monitored and reported on weekly at AIP Programme Board and monthly at 

Colindale Programme Board. In due course, Smarter and Agile Working risks will also be reported on 

at the appropriate board. The following risks have been developed by the AIP Programme Board and 

through this business case process (by Delivery Units and members of the Colindale Programme 

team). The table below reflects the risks with the greatest priority, at a total programme level. Risks 

will be updated at each stage in the process and are detailed in full at Appendix H: High level AIP and 

Colindale risk log. 

Table 6: Top rated programme level risks 

The following risks have been developed by the AIP Programme Board and through this business 

case process (by Delivery Units and members of the Colindale Programme team). The table below 

reflects the risks with the greatest priority, at a total programme level. 

Programme Nature of risk Cause and consequence Rating Mitigation 

AIP / Colindale  Decant risk Successfully completion of exit 

and relevant contractual 

clauses with landlord for 

NLBP4 and NLBP2.  Potential 

impact on savings.  

16 Complete detailed exit and decant plan, with 

contingency in place, and QA plan.  Ensure that 

skilled legal and technical advisors are in place.  

AIP / Colindale  Design risk Car parking is not sufficient 

and staff not ready for 

alternative transport 

arrangements.  Potential 

impact on recruitment / 

retention or organisational 

efficiency. 

20 Establish number of car parking spaces available at 

NLBP4 and BH. Develop strategy to allocate car 

parking, travel strategy and a travel plan for 

Colindale. Develop change management approach 

to prepare for new working practices. Develop 

longer-term workforce strategy – recruit, retain 

and talent development. 

AIP / Colindale  Financial  Construction overruns or 

inadequate cost control.  

Potential impact on savings 

and cost model.  

20 Re is experienced in managing major construction 

schemes. Ensure that there is a detailed cost 

control plan and approach in place; programme 

gateway method used; skilled and special 

resourcing required is in place and specification 

management is used to control scope.  

134



 
    

 

28 

 

Programme Nature of risk Cause and consequence Rating Mitigation 

AIP / Colindale  Design risk / 

business risk  

Potential for wider disruption 

to business.  Use of IT or 

physical infrastructure may not 

be operational, impacting on 

service delivery.  

16 Business disruption plans to be updated during the 

moves.  

Smarter Working  Business risk Agile working practices are not 

achieved and staff numbers 

requiring office space are 

higher than planned, potential 

impacting on cost or efficiency.  

15 The Smarter and Agile Working Board will develop 

detailed plans for the workforce and IT 

arrangements to support the physical estates 

move. This will be implemented using a robust 

change management approach and will be 

reported on further in the FBC. 

Colindale Design risk Design does not meet the user 

requirements and results in 

changes to specification or 

scope, with potential cost 

impact. 

16 Re is experienced in managing major construction 

schemes.  This will be managed through the 

Colindale Programme Board during the design and 

pre-construction phase.  A change workstream also 

needs to be developed. Plans are also to be 

developed for kitchen / café services for Education 

and Skills and training. 

 

8.7. Benefits realisation approach 

The key benefits from this business case are as follows: 

• Deliver a minimum of £40.3m gross savings in the civic accommodation by September 2023 

in accordance with the contractual obligations between LBB and Capita; 

• Provide modern, flexible office accommodation of 90,000 sq ft;  

• To use the Civic Estate as a regeneration tool; 

• To maximise the occupational use of the Civic Estate through smart working; 

• To focus the council’s facilities in a location which is accessible to the majority of users. 

The following owners are responsible for ensuring that the proposed target savings are realised 

alongside the project management and development teams who will monitor both savings / costs 

and development progress and have primary responsibility for preparing monthly reports. 

An example high level benefits register is shown below. Benefits relating to each programme will be 

reported to the relevant Programme Board on a regular basis. In order to ensure that the target 

saving of £40.3m is achieved over the period 2013-2023, a benefits register will be reviewed 

monthly and the results reported to the Assets and Capital Board throughout the development 

period. An example template is shown at Appendix I: Benefits realisation templates. 

Table 7: Draft benefits register 

Benefit Owner Key 

performance 

indicator 

Measurement Dependencies Key Risk 

Deliver a minimum of 

£40.3m gross savings in the 

civic accommodation by 

September 2023 

Re – Director 

of Place 

To be defined To be defined Implementation 

of Smarter and 

Agile Working 
 

That savings are not met, 

impacting on the MTFS / 

other corporate programmes. 

Provide modern, flexible 

office accommodation of 

90,000 sq ft 

Re – Colindale 

Programme 

SRO 

To be defined To be defined Implementation 

of ‘Smarter 

Working’ 

That the site does not meet 

the space requirement. 

Bring regeneration to the 

Colindale area as per the 

LBB Enterprise 

and 

To be defined To be defined Choices for 

Grahame Park 

That office co-location on the 

site does not meet the 

135



 
    

 

29 

 

Benefit Owner Key 

performance 

indicator 

Measurement Dependencies Key Risk 

CAAP Regeneration 

Lead 

Commissioner 

regeneration benefits 

anticipated. 

Maximise the occupational 

use of the Civic Estate 

through agile working 

Smarter and 

Agile Working 

Programme 

SRO 

To be defined To be defined IT refresh 

programme 

That the office move takes 

place before the appropriate 

working arrangements and 

new behaviours are in place. 

Focus LBB’s facilities in a 

location which is accessible 

to the majority of users 

Re – Colindale 

Programme 

SRO 

To be defined To be defined Choices for 

Grahame Park 

That the site is longer 

available, or does not meet 

LBB requirements. 

8.8. Change management and communications approach 

Reducing the estate footprint by ~70% will require a major shift in staff behaviour, supported by new 

workforce arrangements and supporting IT. A plan for engagement with Delivery Units to define the 

change is underway. Figure 8: Work required with each Delivery Unit below sets out the content of 

discussions that will need to take place. 

Communications to staff and other tenants has begun and a phased communications and 

engagement plan is in development.  

Figure 8: Work required with each Delivery Unit 

 

8.9. Post project evaluation approach 

The Programme will be governed in accordance with Council’s Project Management Toolkit 

methodology, and using the Capital Programme Gateway method.   

Progress will be evaluated at key stages e.g. at the end of the procurement phase and at post-

construction.  This will include assurance from the Customer and Support Group subject matter 

Space Options

• Customer Access Strategy

• Community Asset Strategy

• Use of other buildings, e.g. 

creation of touchdown points/hubs 

in community hubs

• Further reductions in storage of 

paper and use of off site archiving

Partner Options

• How can we share space and 

facilities more effectively?

• How can we collaborate and 

share information virtually?

ICT Options

• What is ‘the Art of the 

Possible’? e.g. 

Tablets, other devices, 

Cloud

• How to harness this 

technology to be more 

mobile?

• Or collaborate without 

co-location?

Workforce Options

• Can we deliver further 

workforce transformation to 

reduce accommodation 

needs?  e.g. de-layering

• Home working/flexible 

working

• Increased mobile working

• Performance management 

focusing on results and 

outcomes rather than 

presenceConfirmed plan per DU leading to 

reduced demand for space in Colindale

Further work required within each Delivery Unit to achieve the reduction in 

space required for the move to Colindale (80,000 sq. ft.)

Evaluated 

pilots in 

each DU

136



 
    

 

30 

 

experts and Commissioning Group client teams.  We will engage a third party to conduct reviews at 

set gateways for external challenge.  Areas for review include: 

• The effectiveness of the project management of the scheme – viewed internally and externally 

(i.e. was it managed to budget and time); 

• The effectiveness of the development partner’s project management of the scheme –viewed 

internally and externally; 

• Communications and involvement during construction; 

• The effectiveness of the joint working arrangements across project teams; 

• Effective resource management and supplier management;  

• The support provided during this stage from other stakeholder organisations. 

 

It is expected that the evaluation would take place through internal review at key project gateways 

and report to the Programme Board. We will put in place a detailed assurance plan and we will 

engage expertise and third party assurance through Local Partnerships to give external review.  

The Council already has an established model for ensuring projects are developed and delivered in 

an effective way, with business cases and recommendations presented to Committees at set points.  

We will continue to review and challenge the delivery of all projects using a risk-based approach.  

Larger, more complex or more innovative projects will be subject to internal audit and, where 

required, external gateway reviews to review overall delivery, benefits, business readiness and other 

criteria relating to the successful delivery of the benefits desired.   

Figure 9: LBB’s approvals process 

 

8.10. Conclusion 

This Management Case has proposed the implementation, governance and risk management 

arrangements that will be in place to enable successful delivery of the preferred way for Barnet’s 

office accommodation. The AIP Programme is already mobilised; further work is currently in train to 

develop robust arrangements for the Colindale move and the associated transformation required for 

the change through Smarter and Agile Working.  

137



 
    

 

31 

 

9. Appendix A: Long list of options 

In accordance with HM Treasury Business Case best practice, at the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) 

stage, the long list included a wide range of potential options, including those which could be 

discounted through the appraisal process by considering them against the CSFs listed in Section 4.1. 

It is therefore an appraisal of the ways in which LBB ‘could’ have approached the office 

accommodation challenge rather than how they ‘would’. At the conclusion of the long list appraisal, 

the emerging short list represented the most realistic potential options worthy of full consideration. 

The ‘long-list’ of potential options for Barnet’s office accommodation, considered at the SOC stage 

is: 

1. Do Nothing: 

The status quo option. No change and LBB continue in occupation of both Units 2 and 4 

North London Business Park and Barnet House. Break clause is not operated. 

2. Consolidate into Barnet House and NLBP Unit 2: 

Trigger the break clause on Unit 4 North London Business Park to determine occupation 

from October 2014 and consolidate into Barnet House and Unit 2, NLBP. 

3. Alternative rental accommodation: 

This option provides a number of alternative approaches including either relocating back 

office staff to a cost effective out of  borough location or severing all existing leases and 

identifying an alternative site. 

4. Consolidate with another local authority / public body: 

Consider amalgamating with another public body along the lines of the ‘Tri-Borough’ 

arrangement which Westminster Council, the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and 

the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham have entered into. 

5. Retain Barnet House and build another:  

This option assumes that LBB exit both North London Business Park buildings on or before 

2020 and construct a smaller bespoke development for their own occupation whilst 

retaining Barnet House until 2032. 

6. New office accommodation on the Grahame Park site in Colindale: 

This option assumes that LBB occupy either as leaseholder or freeholder, a new bespoke 

development on the Grahame Park site in Colindale from 2017 onwards. 

7. Build new office accommodation elsewhere: 

As above, but look for an alternative location other than the Colindale site.  

8. Debt and asset sale: 

This option is based on a model undertaken by a number of other bodies whereby all of the 

existing civic accommodation alongside other surplus properties would be sold to an 

institution / fund / investor (e.g. MARS and PEARS group) who would take over the liabilities 

usually subject to a balancing in payment.  This would enable the council to effectively start 

again in terms of the civic accommodation with a clean sheet. 

9. Consider a full ‘commissioning’ model; 

This option assumes that all of LBB’s office accommodation would be provided through a 

service contract. 

10. Consolidate into all current LBB surplus accommodation:  

138



 
    

 

32 

 

Use surplus accommodation throughout the portfolio to accommodate users which cannot 

fit readily into the reduced estate.  

11. A full ‘hub and spoke’ operation: 

Reconsider the current ‘central HQ’ model and move to a full ‘hub and spoke’ operation 

with a number of smaller offices based around the Borough. 

This long list of options is appraised against the CSFs identified above and in the following table; 

• Green assessment indicates fully meets;   

• Amber assessment indicates partly meets; and  

• Red assessment indicates does not meet. 

 

Option CSF1: Efficiency CSF2: Desired Working 

Arrangements 

CSF3: Strategic Aims CSF4: Deliverability 

Do Nothing Will not deliver the 

required savings, leaving 

a significant budget gap 

Adequate space but 

would represent a 

missed opportunity 

A neutral impact – no 

negative consequences 

but a missed 

opportunity 

No significant change 

required 

Consolidate into Barnet 

House and NLBP Unit 2 

Delivers savings in the 

period up to 2017 but no 

further savings from that 

period onwards 

Opportunity to deliver 

planned changes 

A neutral impact – no 

negative consequences 

but a missed 

opportunity 

Achievable within 

planned timescales, but 

requires efficient 

planning and delivery 

given October 2015 

break date is looming 

Alternative rental 

accommodation 

Potential to deliver 

savings 

Opportunity to deliver 

planned changes, but 

potential disruption for 

staff 

Dependent on location 

and nature of 

accommodation, could 

potentially facilitate 

greater access to LBB 

services 

Would require an 

‘interim’ solution whilst 

new accommodation is 

investigated and 

procured 

‘Out of borough’ Potential to deliver 

savings 

Opportunity to adapt 

working arrangements, 

but not in alignment 

with Smarter Working 

Group approach and 

vision 

LBB does not a strategic 

aim of moving staff and 

operations out of 

borough for efficiency 

purposes 

Very challenging within 

required timescales 

Consolidate with 

another local authority 

Potential to deliver 

savings 

Opportunity to adapt 

working arrangements, 

but not in alignment 

with Smarter Working 

Group approach and 

vision 

LBB does not have a 

strategic aim of moving 

to a Tri-Borough style of 

operation 

Very challenging within 

required timescales 

139



 
    

 

33 

 

Option CSF1: Efficiency CSF2: Desired Working 

Arrangements 

CSF3: Strategic Aims CSF4: Deliverability 

Retain Barnet House 

and build another 

Potential to deliver 

savings. Would require 

up-front investment 

from LBB, which would 

require inclusion in the 

Capital Programme and 

retention of two sites 

would limit efficiency 

gains 

Opportunity to deliver 

planned changes 

Dependent on location 

and nature of 

accommodation, could 

potentially facilitate 

greater access to LBB 

services 

Would require an 

‘interim’ solution whilst 

new accommodation is 

developed 

New office 

accommodation on the 

Grahame Park site in 

Colindale 

Potential to deliver 

savings. Would require 

up-front investment 

from LBB, which would 

require inclusion in the 

Capital Programme 

Opportunity to deliver 

planned changes 

Meets strategic 

regeneration aims 

Would require an 

‘interim’ solution whilst 

new accommodation is 

developed 

Build new office 

accommodation 

elsewhere 

Potential to deliver 

savings. Would require 

up-front investment 

from LBB, which would 

require inclusion in the 

Capital Programme 

Opportunity to deliver 

planned changes 

Dependent on location 

and nature of 

accommodation, could 

potentially facilitate 

greater access to LBB 

services 

Would require an 

‘interim’ solution whilst 

new accommodation is 

developed and the 

identification of suitable 

premises may delay 

timescales further 

Debt and asset sale Potential to deliver 

savings. Scale and scope 

very unpredictable 

without further 

investigation 

Opportunity to deliver 

planned changes, but 

potential disruption for 

staff 

LBB does not have a 

strategic aim to proceed 

on this basis 

Very challenging within 

required timescales 

Operate a full 

‘commissioning’ model 

Potential to deliver 

savings. Scale and scope 

very unpredictable 

without further 

investigation 

Opportunity to deliver 

planned changes, but 

potential disruption for 

staff 

LBB does not have a 

strategic aim to proceed 

on this basis 

Very challenging within 

required timescales 

Consolidate into all 

current surplus 

accommodation 

Unlikely to achieve 

savings, and would 

require significant 

investment into 

customising existing 

estate for 

accommodation. Not 

assessed as financially 

feasible 

Does not align with the 

Smarter Working Group 

plans for 

accommodation. Less 

scope for flexible 

working within a highly 

geographically diverse 

workforce. 

Dependent on location 

and nature of 

accommodation, could 

potentially facilitate 

greater access to LBB 

services 

Very challenging within 

required timescales 

‘Hub and spoke’ Unlikely to achieve 

savings, and would 

require significant 

investment into new 

premises with an 

appropriate size / scale 

and geographical 

footprint 

Does not align with the 

Smarter Working Group 

plans for 

accommodation. Less 

scope for flexible 

working within a highly 

geographically diverse 

workforce. 

Dependent on location 

and nature of 

accommodation, could 

potentially facilitate 

greater access to LBB 

services 

Very challenging within 

required timescales 

  

140



 
    

 

34 

 

From this long list appraisal, the following conclusions can be drawn: 

• Considering new office accommodation on the Grahame Park site in Colindale has a number 

of advantages. It could deliver savings (pending further investigation in the short list 

appraisal), meets a primary regeneration objective of LBB and can be designed around 

optimal working arrangements. It would, however, entail potential disruption for staff and 

does require an ‘interim’ solution whilst the site is developed. It is a preferable option to 

others which involve the building of new accommodation as it is in an ideal location for 

regeneration (and is easier to make firm cost estimates for the short list appraisal); 

• Consolidation into Barnet House and NLBP is a suitable ‘Do Minimum’ option that should 

continue to the shortlist. It is preferable to seeking alternative rental accommodation as it is 

both a potential interim solution that can be delivered relatively quickly and it involves less 

disruption for staff; 

• ‘Do nothing’ is not a desirable option as it does not deliver the savings required against LBB’s 

budget baseline. It should, however, be retained for the short list appraisal as a comparator 

option to test others against; and 

• A number of long list options are not suitable for further consideration on the shortlist as 

they are either (or both) not strategically aligned to LBB’s directions or are not deemed 

financially deliverable within the required timescales. This include ‘out of borough’, sharing 

with other local authorities or public bodies, a debt and asset sale, a ‘commissioning’ model 

for accommodation, using all surplus accommodation or a hub and spoke approach. 

Based on the long list appraisal undertaken above, three options were selected for the short list 

appraisal: 

• ‘Do Nothing’ as a baseline – continuing with leases in both the NLBP sites and Barnet House; 

• ‘Do Minimum’ – exiting from NLBP Unit 4 and consolidating into NLBP Unit 2 and Barnet 

House; and 

• ‘Do Maximum’ – develop new, specialist accommodation at Grahame Park in Colindale to 

move into in 2017, having consolidated as per the ‘Do Minimum’ option beforehand. 

141



 
    

 

35 

 

10. Appendix B: Site location 

The site is located on the eastern side of the Grahame Park development. 

 

11. Appendix C: Detailed economic analysis  

11.1. Appraisal methodology and notes 

Both option appraisals assume the following: 

• Costs exclude VAT; 

• All one-off costs for AIP are assumed to be incurred in 2015/16  and one-off costs for 

Colindale are assumed to be incurred in 2017/18, with ongoing Smarter and Agile Working 

project costs in 2016/17; 

• The options considered have been appraised over 34 years (2013/14 – 2046/47) with costs / 

savings discounted over those periods at 3.5%; 

• Optimism bias has been applied at 20% to one-off implementation costs (based on HMT 

guidance on costing for risk in standard buildings); 

• Contingency for build risk is included at 5% within capital build estimates provided by Re; 

• All values are stated at current prices. 

11.2. Do Nothing appraisal 

There are no one-off costs. 

Recurrent costs are as follows: 

• NLBP 2  

o Rent: £0.8m per annum (2014/15 prices) 

o Service charge: £0.2m 

o Business rates: £0.3m 

o Facilities management: £0.4m 

142



 
    

 

36 

 

o Rent review in June 2015 and June 2020 (and thereafter every 5 years), assuming 

17% increase in rent in 2015 and 2020, and 11% thereafter 

o Rental income from NHS Barnet Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), pro rata to the 

above costs, based on 7% occupancy of the LBB rented space 

• NLBP 4 rental 

o Rent: £2.5m per annum (2014/15 prices) 

o Service charge: £1.0m 

o Business rates: £1.0m 

o Facilities management: £1.0m 

o Rent review in October 2015 and October 2020 (and thereafter every 5 years), 

assuming 11% increase in rent at each point 

• Barnet House rental  

o Rent: £0.7m per annum 

o Business rates: £0.3m 

o Facilities management: £0.5m 

o Rent review in September 2017 and September 2022, assuming 11% increase in rent 

at each point 

o Income from Barnet Homes £0.2m (2014/15 prices) 

o Rental income from Re, pro rata to the above costs, based on 20% occupancy of the 

LBB rented space 

11.3. Do Minimum appraisal 

One-off costs: 

• One-off costs are incurred in 2015/16 for the implementation of AIP; 

• £3.0m for fit-out and refurbishment (of NLBP 2 and Barnet House); 

• £0.5m project costs (Smarter Working implementation, business case development and legal 

costs); 

• £2.6m for other implementation costs (dilapidations for NLBP2 and 4, deferred service 

charge for NLBP4, lease break for NLBP4, lease interest for NLBP2 and asbestos removal); 

• £1.2m for transition costs (physical move, additional estimate to cover rent for staff that are 

estimated to require accommodation in addition to NLBP 2 and Barnet House, payment to 

cover early possession of NLBP2); 

• £0.7m for equipment (office furniture and IT infrastructure); 

• Optimism bias £1m. 

Recurrent costs: 

• As per Do Nothing except: 

o NLBP 4 lease termination in October 2015; 

o Additional rental of the 2
nd

 floor of NLBP 2 at an additional £0.4m per annum. 

11.4. Do Maximum 

One-off costs as per Do Minimum, and in addition: 

143



 
    

 

37 

 

• £0.6m project costs (Smarter Working implementation, business case development and legal 

costs); 

• £1.3m for transition costs (physical move); 

• £1.4m for equipment (office furniture and IT infrastructure); 

• £3.0m for fit-out; 

• Optimism bias £1.2m. 

Recurrent costs: 

• As per Do Minimum until October 2017 move in to Colindale new site; 

• FM and rates based on current baseline unit costs pro-rata to new space; 

• Borrowing for capital build (of £36.3m) at 3.34% and MRP provision; 

• Income from the CCG based on 5% of total space; 

• Income from Re based on 18% of total space; 

• Income from the Barnet Homes based on current rental agreement. 

Note that lifecycle costs have currently been excluded as Re is developing a cost estimate. These will 

be included at FBC stage. 

 

 

  

144



 
    

 

38 

 

12. Appendix D: Building services and facilities management  

Capita is required to deliver building services and facilities management services as per Schedule 1 of 

the CSG Contract
12

. 

Building services: 

• Planned Preventative Maintenance; 

• Undertake Statutory Testing and Inspection; 

• Provide emergency/reactive repairs maintenance; 

• Building Surveying Services; 

• Energy and Utilities; 

• Help desk; 

• Cemeteries and war memorials; 

• Traded Services; and 

• Provide building adaptations and temporary accommodation units. 

Facilities management: 

• Compliance documentation; 

• Security services – vetting; 

• Security services – static; 

• CCTV; 

• Control of access; 

• Porterage and courier service; 

• Goods in; 

• Fire Management; 

• Equipment & systems; 

• Statutory testing and inspection; 

• Reactive repairs and maintenance; 

• Waste Management; 

• Recyclable waste; 

• Cleaning; 

• Office space; 

• Office moves; 

• Corporate room bookings; 

• Reception; 

• Energy & Utilities; 

• Car parking; 

• Liaison with landlords; 

• Managing tenants; 

• Mayoral & civic events; 

• Signage; 

                                                           
12

 https://www.barnet.gov.uk/citizen-home/council-and-democracy/one-barnet-transformation-programme/customer-and-support-

group-csg/customer-and-support-group-csg-formerly-nscso-contract/schedule-1---output-specifications.html 

145



 
    

 

39 

 

• Mobile phones; 

• Archiving; 

• Clocks; 

• Vending machines; and 

• Unmanned operations sites. 

  

146



 
    

 

40 

 

13. Appendix E: Re design brief 

Introduction 

The Design options for the silting of the new building allow for a baseline of strategic decisions that 

will continue to employ key stakeholder and landowners to inform the progression of the project 

through to the next stages of design and land assembly. Our strategic design options have explored 

different configurations and opportunities to assemble a development site suitable for the new 

offices that addresses the adjacent regeneration schemes at various stages of design, 

procurement and construction.   

Design Criteria 

The design options for the new offices have been developed on the basis of integrating with the 

strategic regeneration schemes of; Grahame Park; Platt Hall; and Beaufort Park. 

Due to the ongoing Highway Capacity Study for the Colindale area a number of common strategic 

design criteria have been identified. 

Detailed traffic modelling has been undertaken to develop the CAAP transport infrastructure 

requirements and identifying Corridors of Change within Colindale. A number of developments have 

already been constructed or have planning permission and other development sites are in the 

process of developing planning applications. The process has resulted in changes to the delivery 

phasing and programme, initially developed in 2007. There have also been changes in local and 

regional transport policies and network conditions. This has resulted in a requirement to review and 

refresh the transport infrastructure requirements. 

Building Brief 

The New Office will be designed on the basis of providing Grade A specification office 

accommodation. Office spaces will be large open plan environments, supported with essential core 

circulation meeting rooms and facilities to support business operations. The structure will consist of 

a reinforced concrete frame. Internally the offices will be fitted out to a first class standard with 

Grade A finishes throughout. The Mechanical and Electrical system will compliment the office 

standards by providing a highly sustainable environmentally controlled BREEAM Very Good building.  

Scheme design proposals are being prepared incorporating Design Brief Particulars (below) together 

with ongoing technical consultation with Genesis, the London Borough of Barnet, Planning, Re and 

Capita’s multidisciplinary design team. The design has been approached in a methodical manner 

commencing with collation of information available concerning the physical, legal, and architectural 

constraints associated with the site. The project team are in the process of developing the brief 

further, following the initial studies undertaken to support a new office development of this scale in 

Colindale. The following design criteria is indicative only, subject to further detailed site investigation 

and report analysis, ongoing surveys, third party information, technical dialogue, public consultation 

to support and validate a detailed planning application. 

Design Brief: Particulars 

147



 
    

 

41 

 

The proposed development site will be used for the provision of New Offices for the London 

Borough of Barnet. The current scheme will be an eight storey (to be confirmed) complex. Parking 

options are currently being investigated. 

Project Outcomes 

Brief, Design and Quality Control 

− Co-ordinate with Consultants the preparation of the design brief.  Amplify the design 

brief as necessary during design development.  Incorporate any changes and obtain 

Employer authorisation.  Issue to consultants. 

− Establish the responsibilities of Consultants, contractors and sub-contractors. 

− Report Consultant scheme design proposals to Employer. 

− Report preferred components, drawings and specifications prepared by Consultants to 

the Employer and obtain approval.  Arrange amendments, if required, and submit final 

proposals to Employer for approval. 

− Check that Consultants review build ability and the technical design of proposals with 

specialist contractors. 

− Establish procedures for checking that the consultants’ designs conform to the project 

brief.  

− In conjunction with Consultants, advise on the need for quality assurance schemes, 

defects insurance and product guarantees. 

 

Reporting and Meetings 

− Establish appropriate channels of communication between members of the project 

team. 

− Establish meetings structure.  Lay down procedure for convening, chairing, attendance, 

function, frequency and responsibility for recording of meetings and circulation of 

information.  Monitor communications and distribution of information. 

− Check appropriate information is provided to the Employer.  Notify the Employer of 

decisions required from him. 

− Agree with Consultants their reporting and recording procedures. 

 

Programming 

− In conjunction with the multi-disciplinary design consultants, prepare and maintain a 

master programme from concept to completion to record principal activities and 

identify critical dates.  Verify and incorporate Consultants’ programmes for production 

of detailed design information.  Monitor progress. 

− Check that applications for statutory consents, government grants etc. are submitted in 

accordance with the master programme. 

− Advise the Employer of information required, recommend appropriate action, 

stakeholder engagement and obtain authorisation where required. 

148



 
    

 

42 

 

Statutory and Compliance 

− Co-ordinate and support negotiations with planning authorities. 

− Check with the architect the form and content of planning applications. Progress the 

planning process and arrange that the project team carry out a check of all 

approval/refusal documents.  Check that Consultants implement and deal with any 

conditions attached to a planning consent. 

− Check with the Consultants, which other statutory approvals are required and that 

application for approval are submitted.  Check that Consultants apply for amendments 

to statutory approvals granted when required. 

− Check that the Consultants obtain clearance from health and safety and fire officers. 

− Advise the Employer on the requirements of the C (DM) Regulations in relation to the 

appointment of the planning supervisor, designers and principal contractor. 

The following scope of service is to provide performance design duties The M&E services include the 

following systems: 

Up to Submission of the Planning Application RIBA Plan of work Stage 3 

− Developing the approved concept design to show spatial arrangements, types of 

construction, materials, appearance and detailed proposals for structural and building 

services systems and updated outline specification. 

− Consult with Statutory Authorities on developing the design proposals with the Client. 

− Providing information for updating construction cost estimates. 

− Produce visual montage in support of planning application. 

− Preparing and submitting application for detailed planning permission. 

 

149



  Page 43 of 57 

14. Appendix F: AIP programme plan 

 

150



 
    

 

44 

 

 

 

151



 
    

 

45 

 

15. Appendix G: Colindale programme plan 

 

152



 
    

 

46 

 

16. Appendix H: High level AIP and Colindale risk log 

This risk log summarises the high level risks from the AIP and Colindale Programme risk logs.  

Project Risk category Description Owner Rating Action / mitigation 

AIP Design risk / 

business risk  

Potential for wider disruption to business.  Re / LBB  16 Discussions with Emergency Planning and Business Continuity lead have taken place 

and residual risks have been highlighted in the emergency plan and Business 

Continuity strategy. Business disruption plans will be updated during the moves.  

AIP  Decant risk Successfully completing exit and relevant 

contractual clauses with landlord. 

Re / CSG / 

LBB 

16 Complete detailed exit and decant plan, with contingency in place, and QA. 

AIP Design risk Car parking. Following exit of building 4 we will have 

fewer spaces and therefore require changes to 

working practices. 

CSG / Re 

/LBB 

16 Establish number of car parking spaces available at NLBP4 and BH. Develop strategy to 

allocate car parking and develop travel strategy. 

AIP Design risk Risk of programme timescale slippages, based on 

scope of works or resourcing.  

CSG / Re / 

LBB 

16 Co-ordinate with contractor and prepare a robust programme, QA activities and 

weekly programme reporting. 

AIP Business risk / 

decant risk  

Ensuring IS works are complete – Completing and 

implementing ICT proposal; data cabling in place 

with new layouts; IT installation; power packs and 

power sockets available.  

Re / IT 16 The IS proposal has now been signed off and works are progressing.   The Programme 

is now seeking agreement of scope / dates for cabling. There is a need to set out 

powerpacks and power socket requirements and develop a migration plan for the 

server room.  

Colindale Business risk There is a risk that customer access is not sufficient, 

secure or appropriate for statutory meetings with 

customers.   

LBB 16 This is dependent on the development of the customer access strategy and potential 

location requirements, and will be built into the design brief and kept on review. LBB 

should also consider customer access arrangements that other authorities have 

implemented. 

Colindale Business risk Parking. There is a risk that the limited availability of 

parking at Colindale could have a negative effect on 

recruitment and retention of staff that may have 

difficulty in travelling to work by public transport. 

Any impact on staff ability to travel around the 

borough could affect efficiency.  

LBB 20 Some parking requirements have been built into the design. The Locality Strategy will 

define the requirement and enable staff to be better informed of the implications of 

the move on parking. Ongoing work is taking place to ascertain the detailed 

organisational parking requirements and staff will be consulted. The Programme is 

developing plans for Smarter Working to adopt different working practices to lessen 

the need for onsite parking. Additionally, if it is made clear in the recruitment process 

that there will be no provision for parking, then there will no expectation for it.  

Colindale Business risk Ensuring building design meets client needs.  For 

example, meeting, training capacity and café space 

may be inadequate with potential to decrease 

productivity, compromise confidentiality, or team 

cohesion. 

LBB 20 This will be built into the next stage of design as far as is possible within the 

constraints of the building. Risk to be kept on review for the next design stage.   

Colindale Business risk Opportunities for co-location with partners will be 

limited at Colindale due to the office space 

restrictions. This may reduce productivity and/or 

trust with external partners.   

LBB 16 Colocation should be considered in the design. If it is not going to be possible then the 

relevant groups should be informed as early as possible so that alternative 

arrangements can be made. Risk to be kept on review for the next design stage. 

153



 
    

 

47 

 

Project Risk category Description Owner Rating Action / mitigation 

Colindale Business risk The lack of café space would also result in a loss of 

kitchens. This would take away the capability of the 

Education & Skills departments to cook and cater for 

schools. Alternative not yet identified. 

  16 This may be mitigated by the Education & Skills ADM and will be explored through 

competitive dialogue. An external provider would take on the school catering 

activities. However, this does not mitigate the risk around where the food would be 

supplied from. To be kept on review. 

Colindale Build risk  That the construction overruns and is not delivered 

in time to meet the Council's lease exit 

requirements. 

Re 20 Re is experienced in managing major construction schemes.  A detailed plan, cost 

model will be developed; gateways and a control model will be in place.  Re will be 

reporting regularly through the Colindale Programme Board through the construction 

phase. Programme management and detailed plans will be developed to contain cost, 

QA, use comprehensive gateways and change control to manage variation in scope / 

design. 

Colindale Decant risk Decant is not delivered to time and budget. Re 20 As above, Re has significant experience of office moves from other schemes. Any 

change in risk will be reported regularly to the Colindale Programme Board.  

Programme management and detailed plans will be developed to contain cost, QA, 

use comprehensive gateways and change control to manage variation in scope / 

design. 

Colindale Planning risk That planning permission is not obtained within the 

Council's required timescales, impacting on time 

and/or cost. 

Re 15 A specialist planning consultant has been engaged to assess and liaise with the 

Planning Authority. 

Smarter Working Demand risk That estimates of staff working patterns are not 

realistic, and more staff need to work in the office 

than planned. 

LBB 15 The required working arrangements and staffing model are dependent on the 

Colindale estates limitations. This dependency will be managed through a Smarter and 

Agile Working Programme. Between now and FBC, more detailed work will take place 

to ascertain the precise staffing requirements and how those will be delivered. This 

will feed into the configuration for the build.  

Smarter Working  Business risk Agile working practices are not achieved and staff 

numbers requiring office space are higher than 

planned. 

LBB 15 The Smarter and Agile Working Board will develop detailed plans for the workforce 

and IT arrangements to support the physical estates move. This will be implemented 

using a robust change management approach and will be reported on in full in the 

FBC. 

Colindale Business risk The move is not welcomed by staff, resulting in with 

impact on recruitment and retention. 

LBB 16 Work is currently taking place to scope the requirements of change management and 

workforce projects to manage the change. These projects will be responsible for 

ensuring that the change meets staff requirements and they are engaged / supported 

through the change. 

Colindale Design risk Design does not meet the user requirements and 

results in changes to specification or scope, with 

potential cost impact.  

Re 16 Re is experienced in managing major construction schemes.  Re will be reporting 

regularly through the Colindale Programme Board through the design and pre-

construction phase.  A service design and readiness workstream will be developed to 

mitigate this risk. 

  

154



 
    

 

48 

 

17. Appendix I: Benefits realisation templates 

17.1. Financial benefits 

 

17.2. Non-financial benefits 

 

155



 
    

 

49 

 

18.  Appendix J: 1:200 drawings 

18.1. Ground floor 

 

156



 
    

 

50 

 

18.2. 1st floor  

 

157



 
    

 

51 

 

18.3. 2
nd

 floor 

 

158



 
    

 

52 

 

18.4. 3
rd

 floor 

 

159



 
    

 

53 

 

18.5. 4
th

 floor 

 

160



 
    

 

54 

 

18.6. 5
th

 floor 

 

161



 
    

 

55 

 

18.7. 6
th

 floor 

 

162



 
    

 

56 

 

18.8. 7
th

 floor 

 

163



 
    

 

57 

 

19. Appendix K: Schedule of areas 

 

 

164



 

 

Summary 

This report provides an update to the Committee on progress on the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
Thameslink Project.  

 

Recommendations  
 

That the Committee  
 

1. Note progress on the Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration Project. 
 

2. A) Approve the terms for the draft Collaboration Agreement between the 
Council and Argent and Related Companies as set out in the Exempt 
Report;  B) Authorises the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader 
of the Council to agree the detail of the Collaboration Agreement; 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee  
1 June 2015 

  

Title  
Brent Cross Cricklewood Station project 
update 

Report of Cath Shaw, Commissioning Director, Growth & Development            

Wards Childs Hill, Golders Green and West Hendon  

Status 

Public  
Appendix D is exempt - Not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended (as this relates to the 
financial affairs of the authority and information in respect 
of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A Plan 1of 1: Proposed Thameslink CPO Plan 
Appendix B Plan 1of 2: Proposed Thameslink CPO Plan 
Appendix C Plan 2: CPO 1 and CPO  2 Map 
Appendix D (exempt) – Collaboration Agreement  

Officer Contact Details  

 
Karen Mercer, Programme Director  Re, 
Karen.Mercer@barnet.gov.uk, 0208 359 7563  
 

AGENDA ITEM 11

165



 
3. Confirm as a matter of principle, that the Council is prepared to use its 

compulsory purchase powers pursuant to section 226(1)(a) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to acquire the land edged 
red on the plan at Appendices A & B.  
 

4. Note that :-  
 

a) the appropriate Chief Officers are commencing negotiations to acquire 
by private treaty the land and interests in the areas required to deliver 
the Thameslink Station as shown on the plan at Appendices A & B and 
to approve and enter into agreements and undertakings with the 
owners and/or occupiers of the land in the said areas so as to facilitate 
its acquisition  

b) the appropriate Chief Officers are undertaking the work needed to 
prepare for a possible Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) together with 
the associated documentation and, if necessary,  will bring a further 
report back to the Committee seeking authority to make a CPO in 
respect of the land shown on the plan at Appendix C. 

 
 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
  
1.1 This report seeks to provide an update on progress on the Brent Cross 

Cricklewood project to the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 
following the key milestones reached in March 2015 as indicated below.  
 

1.2 As the Committee is aware, Hammerson UK and Standard Life Ltd (the 
Development Partners) will deliver the redevelopment of the shopping centre 
at Brent Cross and the land around it, together with the infrastructure required 
to support the comprehensive regeneration proposals. The Council will take 
the lead on the south side to deliver with its new development partner, those 
parts of the Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration masterplan which are to 
the south of the North Circular, including the land to be redeveloped in 
connection with the station improvements.  The Committee will be aware that 
Full Council on 3 March 2015 approved the appointment of Argent and 
Related Companies PLC (Bidder Z) as the Council's preferred development 
partner for the Brent Cross Cricklewood South Scheme. 

 
1.3 The Committee will also recall that on 16 January 2014 and 8 September 

2014 it approved the Council entering into negotiations and concluding 
agreements by private treaty with owners whose land or interests are required 
for the delivery of the project.  The Committee also approved the land 
referencing exercise to identity all parties with interests in the land and with 
whom private treaty negotiations should be conducted.    
 

1.4 On 3 March 2014, following the Committee’s recommendation, Full Council 
approved that two separate compulsory purchase orders (CPO) be made 
pursuant to the powers in section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) for the acquisition of the land as shaded in the plan 

166



attached at Appendix C.  This land is needed to bring forward the 
regeneration proposals in respect of the first phase development north and 
south of the North Circular Road to deliver the redevelopment of the shopping 
centre and critical road infrastructure (CPO1) and the BXC South proposals 
(CPO2) as part of the overall comprehensive regeneration of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood area.  
 

1.5 Full Council also authorised the appropriate Chief Officers to settle the final 
form and content of the CPOs and associated documentation and take all 
action needed to pursue the CPOs and secure their confirmation alongside 
authorising Chief Officers to carry out the necessary procedures under Part 11 
of the Housing Act 1985; and to use Ground 10A to obtain vacant possession 
of Council owned dwellings that are occupied by secure tenants and 
approving the service of Initial and Final Demolition Notices as required 
pursuant to the Housing Act 2004 to suspend the right to buy on properties 
due for demolition which are situated on the Whitefield Estate. 

 
 
2. UPDATE 

 
2.1  As previously reported to the Committee, following the completion of the 

Section 106 agreement, the Section 73 planning permission for the wider 
Brent Cross Cricklewood scheme (which amended the phasing of the original 
planning permission and made consequential changes) was granted on 23 
July 2014.   The Brent Cross Development Partners are now focussing on 
discharging the relevant conditions and preparing the necessary reserved 
matters applications in respect of the shopping centre and critical 
infrastructure to be provided.   Reserved matters applications have now been 
submitted and are being considered by the Local Planning Authority and will 
be reported to the Planning Committee for determination.  
 

2.2 The Council has also now made the two Compulsory Purchase Orders in 
respect of the land required to facilitate the first phase development as shown 
on the plan attached at Appendix C.  The Orders were made on 20 April 2015.  
The formal statutory Notices were served on those affected by the CPO on 30 
April 2015.  Notices were also placed in local press as required.   This 
commenced an objection / consultation period to enable those affected by the 
CPOs to register their objections and make representations to the Secretary 
of State.  Once the objection period is closed, the Secretary of State will 
advise whether an Inquiry is needed and will confirm an Inquiry date.  It is 
anticipated that an Inquiry will be held in early 2016 and a decision in late 
Summer 2016.  
 

2.3 The Council and its advisors are continuing private treaty negotiations with 
those business and residents affected by the CPO.  The Council is also 
holding CPOs surgery meetings to meet directly with residents to discuss their 
concerns and next steps. 

 
2.4 In relation to the south side scheme, the Council is now in discussions with 

Argent and Related Companies, following the Full Council’s approval on 3 

167



March 2015 to appoint Argent and Related Companies as the Council's 
preferred development partner for the Brent Cross Cricklewood South 
Scheme.  The Gateway Barnet consortium comprising Far East Consortium, 
Countryside Properties and Notting Hill Housing Trust have been selected as 
the Council’s reserve development partner as approved by Full Council. 

 
2.5 The Council and Argent and Related Companies will now jointly develop a full 

business plan alongside drafting the joint venture structure and legal 
documentation for approval by the Council’s Assets, Regeneration and 
Growth Committee, before the creation of a formal joint venture partnership. 
To assist and guide this process, a collaboration agreement has been drafted 
between the parties.  This agreement provides the framework for ongoing 
discussions, working practices as well as setting the key milestones for the 
next year.  The Committee is requested to approve the terms set out in the 
Collaboration Agreement and to authorise the Chief Executive in consultation 
with the Leader of the Council to agree the final form of the Collaboration 
Agreement so that it can be executed.  Details of the Collaboration Agreement 
are in Appendix D (Exempt).  

 
2.6 In order to support the south-side scheme and comprehensive regeneration of 

the Brent Cross Cricklewood area, the Council is now leading on the delivery 
of the Station in partnership with Network Rail and public sector stakeholder 
partners. 
 

2.7 As the Committee is aware the Council has been working with the GLA. HM 
Treasury, DCLG and Department for Transport over the last 18 months to 
develop the business case and funding strategy to bring forward the station 
proposals.   Following submission of the Thameslink Business Case and 
presentation to DCLG Finance Sub- Committee on 11 February 2015, the 
Government announced in its Budget Statement on 18 March 2015 that the 
government will provide £97m grant funding and ringfence the local 50% 
share of business rate growth to support the London Borough of Barnet and 
the Greater London Authority plans for the regeneration of Brent Cross, and 
facilitating the delivery of 7,500 new homes.   
 

2.8 The Council met with HM Government and the GLA on 14 May to discuss 
next steps.  All parties agreed to work together to finalise the Full Station 
Business Case and detail of the funding arrangements throughout 2015.   The 
parties are also establishing the Government Assurance Board to include the 
Council, GLA, HM Treasury, DCLG and DfT to drive the project forward and 
ensure the necessary Governance arrangements are in place.  
 

2.9 The Council has also entered into a Design Services Agreement with Network 
Rail to take forward the station design development and other support work. 
This includes the pedestrian and road links across the Midland Main Line as 
set out in the 2010 planning permission.  A Stakeholder workshop was held 
that included all key stakeholders including Network Rail, TfL, the Freight and 
Train Operating Companies and London Borough of Brent.  The next 
milestone is the development of the single option selection for the station 
design by November 2015.  The target date for station opening is 2021. 

168



 
2.10 The delivery of the Thameslink Station will also require the Council to acquire 

land interests and rights within the area identified on Plans 1/1 and 1/2 
attached at Appendices A & B to facilitate its delivery.   The Council is already 
in discussions with Network Rail and freight operating companies regarding 
the acquisition of the relevant land and rights. The Council has instructed 
Terraquest to undertake the formal land referencing to identify those land 
interests and rights affected and the Council will commence private treaty 
negotiations with those parties affected. 
 

2.11 As indicated above, discussions are under way with a view to acquiring the 
necessary land interests and rights to deliver the Thameslink Station. In the 
event that it is not possible to acquire these by negotiation then it would be 
necessary to resort to the use of compulsory purchase (CPO) powers. 
 

2.12 In line with the approach taken for CPO1 and CPO2 an appropriate power 
would be Section 226(1)(a)  of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. This 
enables acquiring authorities with planning powers to exercise their 
compulsory acquisition powers if they think that acquiring the land in question 
will facilitate the carrying out of development redevelopment or improvement 
on, or in relation to, the land being acquired and it is not certain that they will 
be able to acquire it by agreement.  The wide power in section 226(1)(a) is 
subject to subsection (1A) of section 226. This provides that the acquiring 
authority must not exercise the power unless they think that the proposed 
development, redevelopment or improvement is likely to contribute to 
achieving the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the area for which the acquiring authority has 
administrative responsibility. 
 

2.13 The Government Circular 06/04 (“the Circular”) sets out guidance for local 
authorities regarding the making of CPOs. The Circular includes key policy 
tests which need to be satisfied before a CPO can be confirmed. Crucially, 
before progressing a CPO members must be satisfied that there is a 
compelling case in the public interest for making and promoting a CPO, that 
the use of the powers is necessary and proportionate, and that the public 
benefits associated with the proposed regeneration will clearly outweigh the 
interference with the rights of those affected. These matters are referred to 
below, and will be considered further in detail in any future report to the 
Committee to seek authority for a CPO to be made. 
 

2.14 As indicated in Section 3 below, the Thameslink Station is an important 
component of the integrated transport strategy for the Brent Cross 
Cricklewood regeneration.  The Station will increase the attractiveness of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood area as a place to live, shop and work.   
 

2.15 The delivery of the Thameslink Station  is also an important element when it 
comes to achieving the ambition of creating a regional town centre that offers 
priority to sustainable transport modes including rail, bus, cycling and walking. 
 

169



2.16 Accordingly, whilst any case for making a CPO will be rehearsed in a future 
Committee report, officers are of the view that a compelling case in the public 
interest for making and promoting a CPO could be made out and the use of 
the powers could be seen as both necessary and proportionate  and  the 
public benefits associated with the proposed regeneration are likely to 
outweigh the interference with the rights of those affected. 
 

2.17 Turning to human rights issues, whilst  this report only seeks an ‘in principle’  
decision from the Committee  that it is prepared to authorise the use of CPO 
powers to facilitate the Scheme,  officers would provide the following guidance 
at this stage on the human rights implications of pursuing CPO action. 
 

2.18 The Circular confirms that an acquiring authority should be sure that the 
purposes for which it is making a compulsory purchase order sufficiently 
justify interfering with the human rights of those with an interest in the land 
affected. Regard should be had, in particular, to the provisions of Article 1 of 
the First Protocol to the European Convention on Human Rights  (ECHR) 
(right to the peaceful enjoyment of property) and, in the case of a dwelling, 
Article 8 of the ECHR  (right to respect for private and family life,  home and 
correspondence. 
 

2.19 Before deciding whether to authorise a CPO, the Committee will need to 
consider the balance and compatibility between the compulsory powers 
sought and the rights enshrined in the ECHR and whether there is a 
compelling case for a CPO in the public interest which means that the 
acquisition of land to enable the scheme to proceed, brings benefits to the 
area, which could not be achieved without the use of compulsory purchase 
powers. 
 

2.20 The Committee should note that approvals have already been given to 
undertake preparatory work for a possible CPO, including a land referencing 
exercise identifying all relevant land interests in the site to be occupied by the 
Thameslink Station. 
 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

3.1 The comprehensive regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood is a long-
standing objective of the Council and a key regeneration priority of the Mayor 
of London. At 151 Ha, it is one of the largest regeneration schemes in Europe. 
The London Plan identifies it as an Opportunity Area with an indicative 
employment capacity target of 20,000 jobs and a minimum new homes target 
of 10,000 homes. The Council’s Core Strategy reinforces the significant 
comprehensive regeneration opportunity, which includes a new town centre, 
major new and improved transport and community facilities, and other 
infrastructure and public areas.  
 

3.2 The area is significantly constrained by the existing road network and rail 
infrastructure, which creates a poor environment for those who live and work 
there.  Nevertheless, given its location at the connection between the M1 and 

170



A406, the regeneration area has the potential to be a major and attractive 
gateway into London. The potential accessibility of the area is further 
enhanced by its connection with the A5 and A41, and its close proximity to the 
Northern Line at Brent Cross station, the Midland mainline, and Brent Cross 
bus station.  
 

3.3 One of the reasons why the area has not been redeveloped to date is the 
need for substantial infrastructure to be provided to realise the area’s 
potential.  The comprehensive redevelopment and improvement of the Brent 
Cross Shopping Centre and other major development in the area provides the 
opportunity for the infrastructure to be funded and delivered, for the benefit of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood as a whole. In particular, in addition to major 
improvements to existing roads and public transport and social infrastructure, 
the proposals will create strong and attractive linkages between the 
communities to the north and south of the North Circular. 
 

3.4 The development of this strategic gateway site will create a new town centre 
and residential quarter, uniting the areas north and south of the A406 North 
Circular, providing an attractive and vibrant place to live and work.  It will 
contribute to the future prosperity of the Borough. The development to the 
north of the North Circular alone is expected to create 3,000 construction jobs, 
and an additional 4,000 permanent jobs over the next five to seven years.  It 
will provide around 91,500 sqm (net) of additional retail and commercial 
floorspace. 
 

3.5 Brent Cross Cricklewood is a key element of the Council’s regeneration and 
housing programme and will provide over 7,540 new homes over the next 20 
years, including affordable homes and replacement homes for the Whitefield 
Estate. The scheme will also provide new and improved educational and 
health facilities for the community, and improved open space and recreational 
facilities for the community to enjoy and use. 
 

3.6 The new Thameslink Station alongside the major highways and junction 
improvements (including those to junctions on the M1, A5, A406 (the North 
Circular), A407 and A41) will vastly improve the accessibility of the area and 
will help realise the regeneration of the area to its full potential. To address the 
existing barriers to accessibility between the communities to the north and 
south of the North Circular, as part of the first stage of development a series 
of bridges will be delivered including the Living Bridge (a new pedestrian and 
cycle bridge over the North Circular adjacent to Claremont Avenue and 
Market Square); the Templehof Bridge (replacing the existing Templehof 
Bridge over the North Circular); the A406/M1 Junction Pedestrian and Cycle 
Bridge – a new shared pedestrian and cycle bridge over the A406 adjacent to 
this improved junction; changes to the Staples Corner Pedestrian Bridge; 9 
road bridges across the improved and diverted River Brent, and a further two 
bridges for the use of pedestrians and cyclists only. 

 
3.7 The regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood will be a major component of 

achieving the Council’s priority objectives in its Corporate Plan 2013-2016, 
including to ‘maintain the right environment for a strong diverse local 

171



economy’, with the strategic objective under this priority being to sustain 
Barnet by ‘promoting growth, development and success across the borough’. 
 

3.8 The scheme also supports the achievement of the objectives set out in ‘One 
Barnet - A Sustainable Community Strategy for Barnet 2010–2020’, including: 
 

"Sharing opportunities for success’ and ‘choice and responsibility’, 
where the proposals will provide high quality homes.  The Scheme 
itself will offer more choice by providing a number of different housing 
options such as shared equity, shared ownership and private homes 
for sale to residents and those in the wider community". 

 
3.9 In addition, it will further the strategic objectives in the Council’s Housing 

Strategy 2010-2025 which include: 
 
(a) increasing housing supply, including family sized homes, to improve 

the range of housing choices and opportunities available to residents; 
and 

 
(b) promoting mixed communities and maximising opportunities available 

for those wishing to own their home. 
 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  
  
4.1 If the Council decides not to progress private treaty negotiations with owners, 

then the project and comprehensive development will be delayed indefinitely 
because the Council and its Development Partners will not have the land and 
interests needed to deliver the scheme.  

 
5. POST-DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
5.1 The Council and its advisors will continue to work on the workstreams to 

delivery of the Brent Cross regeneration proposals as outlined in this report 
and approved by the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee.    
 

6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 
Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

6.1 The regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood supports the Corporate Plan 
2013-2016 priority ‘To maintain the right environment for a strong diverse local 
economy’, and the strategic objective under this priority to sustain Barnet by 
‘promoting growth, development and success across the borough’.  
 

6.2 The Growth Strategy for Barnet recognised that regeneration and growth are 
vital for ensuring the future prosperity of the Borough and maintaining Barnet 
as a successful London suburb.  The scheme to transform Brent Cross 
Cricklewood will play a major role in delivering this prosperity, doubling the 
size of the shopping centre and linking seamlessly to a new town centre for 
Barnet and North London across the North Circular Road.  Brent Cross 
Cricklewood is one of Barnet’s priority regeneration areas, and will provide 

172



approximately 7,500 new homes over the next 20 years.  It is a key part of the 
wider revitalisation of the A5 corridor, linking Brent Cross Cricklewood with 
developments at West Hendon, Colindale and Edgware and improvements to 
Cricklewood Town Centre, to create a series of high quality modern suburbs.    
 

6.3 The first phase of the Brent Cross Cricklewood project includes the 
redevelopment of the shopping centre, creation of major new infrastructure, 
improved links to the existing tube station, and delivery of around 2,461 new 
homes over the next 8-10 years.  This will create an estimated 3,000 
construction jobs, and 4,000 permanent jobs. The Thameslink Station is 
important to the success of the regeneration scheme in both place-making as 
well as viability terms. However, at present the scheme does not benefit from 
the delivery of the station until the later phases.  Bringing the station forward 
in the delivery programme will increase the attractiveness of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood area as a place to live, shop and work and thereby improve the 
viability of Brent Cross Cricklewood South and will also increase the pace of 
delivery of new homes.  
 

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

6.4 The Brent Cross Principal Development Agreement executed on 3 March 
2015 confirms that the Development Partners are obliged to pay the Council’s 
(and their consultants) costs in connection with this project.   

 
6.5 In relation to CPO, there are two main elements of costs associated with any 

potential CPO process – the costs of preparing and promoting the CPO itself, 
and the compensation and consideration to be paid to those whose land and 
interests are acquired.   
 

6.6 In terms of the costs for resourcing the private treaty acquisitions, this will 
require input from internal and external resources covering various disciplines, 
including senior officers, legal input, surveying and valuation expertise. In 
respect of these acquisitions which fall in the northern part of the scheme, the 
Development Partners will meet all of these costs through the CPO Indemnity 
agreement executed on 3 March 2015. The indemnity is backed by security, 
so the Council is fully protected.  

 
6.7 In relation to the land required to deliver the first phase development on Brent 

Cross Cricklewood South, capital funding was approved on 4 March 2014.  
This funding will be later recouped from the Brent Cross Cricklewood South 
development.  
 

6.8 In relation to the design and development work for the Thameslink station, 
capital funding of £4.9m was approved by Council on the 4 March 2014, 
funded from the infrastructure reserve. This funding will be recouped by the 
Council as it would form part of the overall Station development project 
cost.  In relation to land assembly, the Council is only undertaking the 
preparatory work towards the CPO at this point in time as well as the land 
referencing exercise. The Council is in discussions with owners and occupiers 

173



within the south-side area as approved by the Committee on 16 January and 
8 September 2014.  
 

6.9 Costs relating to the collaboration agreement will be determined as 
workstreams are determined. Funding for these workstreams will be identified 
as required. 
 

Legal and Constitutional References 

 

6.10 The Council’s Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A states the 
terms of reference of Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee, including 
to agree externalisation contracts, to oversee major regeneration schemes 
including those of key social housing estates and all matters relating to land 
and buildings owned, rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the 
Council 
 

6.11 Council Contract Procedure Rules, Appendix 1, Table A sets out the 
framework for authorisation of tender stage for contract, including that 
authorisation to commence a procurement process for amounts of £172,514 
and above by the relevant Thematic Committee and that the procurement be 
carried out by one of three methods.  The Procurement and Delivery Strategy 
has been created in accordance with the Contract Procedure Rules. 
 

6.12 The Procurement Code of Practice provides guidelines for Council officers to 
carry out effective and efficient procurement activities, which are compliant 
with Council Constitution and policies.   The Procurement and Delivery 
Strategy has been created in accordance with this procurement code 
 

6.13 The Council has a general power of competence under Section 1 of Chapter 1 
of the Localism Act 2011 and this empowers the Council to enter into joint 
venture arrangements for the development of the south side of the Brent 
Cross Cricklewood regeneration scheme. Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 
provides local authorities with a broad power to do anything that individuals 
can do subject to any specific restrictions contained in legislation. 
 

6.14 The Council has the power to acquire and dispose of land in accordance with 
Sections 120 to 123A, and subject to obtaining appropriate consents and 
approvals in Sections 128 to 131 of the Local Government Act 1972 to ensure 
value for money is secured. 
 

6.15 Section 226(1)(a)  of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables the 
Council to exercise its compulsory acquisition powers if it  thinks that acquiring 
the land in question will facilitate the carrying out of development 
redevelopment or improvement on, or in relation to, the land being acquired 
 

6.16 The procurement of a partner and other advisers for the south side of the 
scheme will be carried out in accordance with the relevant European Union 
procurement regulations and public sector procurement principles. 
 

174



6.17 The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 requires the Council to consider 
whether it can achieve an improvement to the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of an area as part of the procurement of these 
services. If so, the social value objectives identified must be written into the 
procurement process. All of this must be achieved with regard to value for 
money and in a way that is compliant with existing public procurement law. 
“Social value” objectives can include the creation of employment, 
apprenticeship and training opportunities for local people, trading 
opportunities for local businesses and the third sector; and the promotion of 
equality and diversity through contract delivery. 
 

6.18 Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that a local authority 
has power to do anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or is 
incidental to, the discharge of its functions. 
 

6.19 The public sector equality duty referred to in Section 5 also required 
consultation to ensure the Council complies with its duties under the Equality 
Act 2010. 
 

Risk Management. 
 

6.20 The key risks for this stage of work can be summarised as follows: 
 

6.21 Affected parties failing to be identified in any potential CPO – a specialist land 
referencing firm, TerraQuest, have been appointed to undertake the land 
referencing exercise to mitigate against this risk. Also, the discussions being 
held by the Council and the Development Partners with those affected when 
seeking to acquire their land and interests are helpful in checking the parties 
with interests in the area. 
 

6.22 Procurement risk. There is the risk that any procurement of a partner could be 
subject to challenge. To mitigate this risk, the Council has retained specialist 
legal advice on the scheme as a means of ensuring that all actions taken by 
the Council accord with the provisions of relevant laws, regulations and 
directives.  Failure to agree a business plan or agree commercially acceptable 
terms during the pre-contract business plan and finalising contract stages 
would prevent the creation of the joint venture and halt the procurement 
process.  The inclusion of the option to appoint a reserve bidder will help 
mitigate this risk.  A material change to the terms of on which the preferred 
bidder was selected could also pose a risk of challenge and officers are aware 
of this in the conduct of negotiations. 
 

6.23 Failure to agree on a viable first phase scheme, thus preventing delivery.  This 
is considered to be low risk given the due diligence undertaken to date to 
inform the delivery strategy.  Nonetheless the partner will be invited to 
describe a backstop for Phase 1 and agree a deadlock process for resolving 
any disagreements as part of the Business Plan and Project Agreement 
negotiation.  
 

6.24 Failure to secure finance for Thameslink Station.  Most parties consider the 

175



train station a key element of the delivery of Brent Cross South.  The delivery 
of the station will help to increase land values, thereby facilitating the 
regeneration of the Brent Cross Cricklewood area.   The Council together with 
public sector partners (Greater London Authority, Network Rail and Transport 
For London) and Central Government working together to finalise the full 
business case and detail of the funding arrangements. 
 

6.25 There is the risk that Hammerson and Standard Life (the Development 
Partners) do not progress the shopping centre scheme, or deliver part of the 
scheme but fail to deliver the critical infrastructure needed to facilitate the 
comprehensive regeneration of the area.  In this regard, the commercial 
agreements with the Development Partners require the delivery of critical 
infrastructure to enable the Brent Cross Cricklewood South development to 
come forward in advance of the shopping development. This will ensure that 
the regeneration of the southern land is progressed.   There will also be 
provision within the legal agreements enabling the Council to acquire 
Hammerson owned land needed to deliver the south side in the event the 
north does not progress.  Furthermore, the commercial agreements with the 
Development Partners require the delivery of critical infrastructure to enable 
the Brent Cross Cricklewood South development to come forward in advance 
of the shopping development. This will ensure that the regeneration of the 
southern land is progressed. 
 

Equalities and Diversity  
 

6.26 The 2010 Equality Act which outlines the provisions of the Public Sector 
Equality Duty (PSED), requires all Local Authorities to pay due regard to the 
need to:  

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010;  

• Advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups;  

• Foster good relations between people from different groups;  
 

6.27 This places a legal obligation on the Council to pay due regard to equalities in 
an appropriate and proportionate manner and to take account of how the 
Council’s decisions might impact on different groups across the borough 
including those identified in equality legislation as protected characteristics, 
namely: Age, disability, gender, gender reassignment, marriage, civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, sexual orientation and religion or belief.   
 

6.28 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in the decision-
making of the Council. This requires elected Members to satisfy themselves 
that equality considerations are integrated into day to day business and that 
all proposals put to committees have properly taken into consideration what 
impact, if any, there is on any protected group and what mitigating factors can 
be put in train. 
 

6.29 The Development Proposals support achievement of the council’s Strategic 
Equalities Objective which sets out our commitment that citizens will be 
treated equally, with understanding and respect; have equal opportunities with 

176



other citizens and receive quality services provided to Best Value principles. 
The development proposals will reflect the council’s aim that all residents are 
able to share in the benefits and take advantage of the opportunities of 
economic growth.in the borough. 

 
6.30 The council intends that the development proposals will have a positive 

impact on all groups identified in the 2010 Equality Act and other vulnerable 
groups in the borough because it is designed to share the benefits of growth 
with all Barnet citizens and promote inclusion and community engagement 
and participation 
 

6.31 The council is committed to improving the quality of life for all and wider 
participation in the economic, educational, cultural, social and community life 
in the Borough.   
 

6.32 The development proposals for the Brent Cross Cricklewood scheme will 
make a significant contribution to the provision of additional, high quality 
affordable housing units in the Borough as well as providing employment 
through the creation of a new town centre with leisure, health and educational 
facilities.  The delivery of the Thameslink Station will enhance public transport 
provision and improve accessibility and provide greater choice for all.  It 
should be emphasised that a fully integrated and accessible town centre will 
be created as part of these proposals. 
 

6.33 An Equalities Impact analysis was carried out in respect of the Outline 
Planning Application granted in 2010, which took fully into account the 
demographic makeup of the regeneration area and addressed the impact on 
the protected characteristics.  This anticipated a significant positive impact 
from the regeneration proposals. This will be updated to assist the council in 
meeting the requirements of the Public Sector Equalities Duty. 
 

6.34 The projected increase in the borough’s population and changes in the 
demographic profile will be key factors in reflecting the aspirations and 
contributions of current residents. 
 

6.35 The Census data of 2011 (as updated by the GLA population projections 
2014) shows how Barnet is growing and changing.  There has been a 
significant increase in the diversity of growth in the borough population and 
growth in older and younger generations has been particularly rapid.  The 
over 65 population is forecast to grow by 10.4% in the next 5 years and 24% 
in the next decade.  
 

6.36 Barnet is a racially diverse and multi faith borough and proud of community 
cohesion. Over a third of Barnet’s citizens come from a rich diversity of black 
and minority ethnic groups.  Christianity remains the biggest religious group 
(41.2%) and Barnet is home to the UK’s largest Jewish community.  Other 
significant groups are no religion (16.0%), Muslim (10.3%) and Hindu 
communities (6.2%).  
 

6.37 Our reputation for excellent schools and green spaces makes us a popular 
destination for young families.  These demographic changes present 

177



challenges both in the demand for services and the way we commission, 
deliver and continuously improve our services.   
 

6.38 Barnet is a relatively affluent borough with significant pockets of deprivation 
and we have been successful in attracting regeneration funding to those areas 
in 7 major regeneration schemes.   Our growth and economic strategies will 
reflect the importance that everyone benefits from regeneration and growth, 
job creation, reinvigorating communities and improved quality of life.  This 
includes the protected characteristics outlined in the 2010 Equality Act as well 
as citizens and other groups in Barnet who can experience disadvantage, for 
example carers, lone parents and low income families, people with particular 
disabilities including mental health and learning difficulties, unemployed 
people.  
 

6.39 Brent Cross Cricklewood is an opportunity to extend Barnet’s success as a 
desirable and attractive suburb, by creating a new urban village for London 
which sets the tone for future evolution of the borough more widely and 
emphasises the need to create a place that makes residents, workers and 
visitors feel good – inviting people to meet and spend time in the spaces, and 
to walk or cycle.  
 

6.40 Importantly, the requirements highlight that Brent Cross Cricklewood will be 
place for people of all ages, with housing mix that reflects different life stages, 
a range of housing tenures, and public spaces which are accessible to all.  It 
emphasises that promoting health and wellbeing and reducing dependency 
will be ingrained in the place.    

 
Consultation and Engagement  

 

6.41 Extensive consultation has and will continue to be undertaken with key 
stakeholders and the community to ensure that the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
scheme reflects local needs including the needs of those with protected 
characteristics, as well as securing the future of North London’s only regional 
shopping centre.  
 

6.42 There has also been consultation and engagement with local stakeholders 
and the community during the planning process, and the CPO process 
(should a CPO be necessary) is designed to allow parties an opportunity to 
make representations and, if desired, attend a public inquiry and state their 
cases. 

 
7 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 Cabinet, 26 April 2004 (Decision Item 8) – approved the adoption of the 

Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon Development Framework as 
Supplementary Planning Guidance. 
 

7.2 Cabinet, 29 March 2005 (Decision Item 6) – agreed to enter into a 
Collaboration Agreement with the development partnership (Cricklewood 
Regeneration Limited, Hammerson and Standard Life). 

178



[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet/200503291900/Agenda/Docume
nt%204.pdf] 
 

7.3 Cabinet, 5 December 2005 (Decision Item 7) – approved, amongst other 
matters, that 1) the Eastern Lands Addendum be adopted as Supplementary 
Planning Guidance; and 2) the Eastern Lands Supplementary Guidance is 
incorporated into the Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon 
Development Framework. 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet/200512051900/Agenda/Docume
nt%204.pdf] 

 
7.4 Cabinet Resources Committee, 25 March 2008 (Decision Item 16) – approved 

the outline terms so far agreed with the Brent Cross partners and Cricklewood 
Redevelopment Limited, including the proposals for the finalisation of the 
financial terms, be approved in principle subject to the outcome of Counsel’s 
advice on procurement issues, and that the finally agreed terms for the 
Development Framework Agreement and the Principal Development 
Agreements be reported to a future meeting of the Cabinet for approval. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet%20Resources%20Committee/20

0803251900/Agenda/Document%2015.pdf 

 

7.5 Cabinet, 21 October 2009 (Decision Item 7) – approved the terms and 
conditions of entering into the Development Framework Agreement and the 
Principal Development Agreements, subject to approval of the Brookfield 
Europe and Hammerson Guarantor companies by the Director of Finance and 
the Leader of the Council, and the approval of the appropriate land transaction 
and financial arrangements by the Secretary of State.  The approval was also 
subject to agreement of the plans, the historic costs and the form of the legal 
documents. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=120&Me
etingId=306&DF=21%2f10%2f2009&Ver=2 
 

7.6 Cabinet Resources Committee, 19 October 2010 (Decision Item 5) – 
approved the changes to the terms and conditions of the Development 
Framework Agreement and the two Principal Development Agreements 
regarding Brent Cross Cricklewood (as considered and approved by Cabinet 
in October 2009) 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet%20Resources%20Committee/2
01010191900/Agenda/Document%203.pdf 
 

7.7 Cabinet Resources Committee, 18 April 2013 (Decision Item 14) - noted that 
the Brent Cross Cricklewood Development Partners wished to modify the 
existing planning consent to allow re-phasing;  approved that the Director for 
Place begin preparations to enable the Council to procure a development 
partner to deliver the regeneration of the southern parts of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood Regeneration Area and confirmed the continued appointment of 
the external advisors for the Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration project, 
and the procurement of appropriate additional advice, and to delegate 
authority to the Director for Place to deal with necessary contractual issues or 
arrangements. 

179



[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=8369&ISATT=1#se
arch=%22Brent%20Cross%20%22] 
 

7.8 Cabinet Resources Committee, 16 January 2014 (Decision Item 6) - approved 
the changes to the terms of the Brent Cross Principal Development 
Agreement (as considered and approved by CRC in October 2010) and the 
terms for the Co-operation Agreement as set out in Section 9 of this report; 
authorised the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the Council 
to agree the detail of the Brent Cross Principal Development Agreement and 
Co-operation Agreement; approved commencement of market testing through 
the issue of a Prior Information Notice to inform the delivery strategy for the 
Brent Cross Cricklewood South area; and approve that the Council enter into 
negotiations with landowners to acquire land required in advance of any 
Compulsory Purchase Order, subject to approval of the bid for capital funding 
by Cabinet on 25 February 2014; and approved that the Council continue the 
design and development work to develop the business case and funding 
strategy for delivery of the Thameslink Station, subject to approval of the 
capital funding bid by Cabinet on 25 February 2014; and delegate authority to 
the Strategic Director for Growth and Environment to procure the necessary 
advice and consultants to progress the Brent Cross project workstreams and 
deal with the related contractual issues and arrangements. 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=12505&ISATT=1#s
earch=%22Brent%20Cross%20%22] 
 

7.9 Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee dated 9 July 2014 approved the 
procurement of a partner for the Brent Cross Cricklewood South development 
through an OJEU Negotiated route in accordance with the Brent Cross South 
Procurement and Delivery Strategy, and approved the Council’s requirements 
for the Brent Cross Cricklewood South opportunity; and noted procurement 
timetable and that to meet this timetable an additional meeting would be 
needed to approve the selection of a preferred partner, which would be called 
in accordance with statutory requirements and the Council’s constitution. 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=696&MId=7960&V
er=4]  
 

7.10 Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee dated 8 September 2014 
approved that the appropriate Chief Officers be authorised to negotiate and 
enter into agreements to acquire by private treaty the land and interests in the 
areas shown on the plan at Appendix 1 and to approve and enter into 
agreements and undertakings with the owners and/or occupiers of the land in 
the said areas so as to facilitate its acquisition and that the appropriate Chief 
Officers be authorised to arrange for a land referencing exercise (including the 
service of statutory requisitions) to be undertaken to identify all parties with 
interests in the land shown edged red and shaded pink and shaded blue on 
the plan at Appendix 1.   
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s17302/Brent%20Cross%20Crickle

wood%20-%20Report.pdf 

 

180



7.11 Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee dated 15 December 2014 noted 
progress on the Brent Cross Cricklewood project.   
 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19845/BXC%20update%20-

%20Publish.pdf 

 

7.12 Urgency Committee, 26 February 2015 (Decision Item 1) 
 

https://barnetintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s21721/Annex%201%20R
eport%20to%20Urgency%20Committee%2026%20February%202015.pdf 
 

7.13 Full Council dated 3 March 2015 approved the appointment of Argent and 
Related Companies PLC (Bidder Z) as the Council's preferred development 
partner for the Brent Cross Cricklewood South Scheme; the selection of 
Gateway Barnet consortium comprising Far East Consortium, Countryside 
Properties and Notting Hill Housing Trust (Bidder Y) as the Council’s reserve 
development partner for the  Brent Cross Cricklewood South Scheme; 
authorise Officers to work up the Business Plan, Project Agreement and 
documentation necessary to form the joint venture for consideration and 
approval by Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee prior to formally 
entering into the joint venture contract and authorised the Commissioning 
Director (Growth and Development) to determine the exact structure of the 
joint venture arrangement.  
 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7819/Public%20reports%20pack

%2003rd-Mar-2015%2019.30%20Council.pdf?T=10 

 

7.14 Full Council dated 3 March 2015 approved that a compulsory purchase order 
(CPO) be made pursuant to the powers in section 226(1)(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) for the acquisition of the land 
shaded pink on the plan at Appendix 1 and pursuant to section 13 of the Local 
Government (Misc Provisions) Act 1976 to acquire new rights in respect of the 
land shaded blue on the said plan to deliver (CPO1); That the appropriate 
Chief Officers be authorised to settle the final form and content of the CPO 
and associated documentation and take all action needed to pursue the CPO 
and secure its confirmation; That the appropriate Chief Officers be authorised, 
following the confirmation of the CPO, to implement the CPO powers and 
acquire title to and/or take possession of the land ; That the appropriate Chief 
Officers be authorised to carry out the necessary procedures under Part 11 of 
the Housing Act 1985 and to use Ground 10A to obtain vacant possession of 
Council owned dwellings that are occupied by secure tenants in the area 
shown shaded pink on the plan at Appendix 1 ; that the appropriate Chief 
Officers be authorised to approve the service of Initial and Final Demolition 
Notices as required pursuant to the Housing Act 2004 to suspend the right to 
buy on properties due for demolition which are situated on the Whitefield 
Estate but fall within the Brent Cross North Development and on the Rosa 
Freedman Centre; and that the appropriate Chief Officers be authorised to 
take all necessary steps to re-house secure tenants from the Sheltered 

181



Housing Units at  Rosa Freeman and to pay statutory home loss and 
disturbance to those tenants.  
 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7819/Public%20reports%20pack%
2003rd-Mar-2015%2019.30%20Council.pdf?T=10 
 

7.15 Full Council on 3 March 2015 approved  that a compulsory purchase order 
(CPO) be made pursuant to the powers in section 226(1)(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) for the acquisition of the land to 
deliver the first south side phase (known as CPO2) shaded pink on the plan at 
Appendix 1 ; That the appropriate Chief Officers be authorised to settle the 
final form and content of the CPO and associated documentation and take all 
action needed to pursue the CPO and secure its confirmation; That the 
appropriate Chief Officers be authorised, following the confirmation of the 
CPO, to implement the CPO powers and acquire title to and/or take 
possession of the land; That the appropriate Chief Officers be authorised to 
carry out the necessary procedures under Part 11 of the Housing Act 1985 
and to use Ground 10A to obtain vacant possession of Council owned 
dwellings that are occupied by secure tenants in the area shown shaded pink 
on the plan at Appendix 1 and that the appropriate Chief Officers be 
authorised to approve the service of Initial and Final Demolition Notices as 
required pursuant to the Housing Act 2004 to suspend the right to buy on 
properties due for demolition which are situated on the Whitefield Estate but 
fall within the Brent Cross South Development.. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=162&MID=7819#AI
11444 

 
 

 

182



T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t

T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll
T

h
e

 B
u

rr
o

u
g

h
s

L
o

n
d

o
n

N
W

4
 4

A
X

w
w

w
.b

a
rn

e
t.

g
o

v
.u

k
0

2
0

 8
3

5
9

 2
0

0
0

M
a
p

 R
e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

 T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

(B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

) 
C

o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 P

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 O

rd
e
r 

(N
o

.3
) 

2
0
1
5

L
a

n
d

 A
c
q

u
is

it
io

n

B
a

s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 ©

 C
ro

w
n

 C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

A
IT

 S
p

a
ti
a

l 
L

td
 (

B
X

C
 P

ro
je

c
t)

L
ic

e
n

c
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r:

 1
0

0
0

4
4

8
2

1

D
R

A
F

T

1
1

6
6

-7
6

6
6

0
.1

2
7

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

2
7

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

2
7

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

2
8

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

M
D

T
P

M
a

p
 R

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

 T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

(B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

) 
C

o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 O
rd

e
r 

(N
o

.3
) 

2
0

1
5

P
la

n
 1

 o
f 

2

1
1

6
6

-7
6

6
6

/0
0

1
7

7
6

P
W

1
:1

2
5

0
@

A
1

P
ro

je
c
t 
C

o
d
e
:

D
a
te

 o
f 
Is

s
u
e
:

V
e
rs

io
n
:

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 D

a
te

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 B

y

S
ta

tu
s
:

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
:

K
e

y
:

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
N

u
m

b
e
r:

T
it
le

:

D
a
te

 D
ra

w
n

D
ra

w
n
 B

y

S
c
a
le

:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 D

a
te

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y

T
e

rr
a

Q
u

e
s
t 

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 L

im
it
e

d
Q

u
a

y
s
id

e
 T

o
w

e
r

2
5

2
 -

 2
6

0
 B

ro
a

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

B
ir
m

in
g

h
a

m
B

1
 2

H
F

w
w

w
.t

e
rr

a
q

u
e

s
t.

c
o

.u
k

0
1

2
1

 2
3

4
 1

3
0

0

P
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
:

P
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 f

o
r:

L
a

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
q

u
ir
e

d

N
o

te
s
:

T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 s

e
a

l 
o

f 
T

H
E

 L
O

N
D

O
N

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 O

F
 B

A
R

N
E

T
w

a
s
 h

e
re

u
n

to
 a

ff
ix

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
  

  
  

  
  

 d
a

y
 o

f
2

0
1

5
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f:

A
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 S

ig
n

a
to

ry
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.

D
a

te
d

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.

P
y
lo

n
F

lo
o
d
lig

h
t

T
e
rr

a
c
e
s

S
ta

n
d

Stand

F
o
o
tb

a
ll 

C
lu

b

H
e

n
d
o
n

F
lo

o
d

lig
h

t

P
y
lo

n

T
e
rr

a
c
e
s

F
o
o
tb

a
ll

Terraces

G
ro

u
n
d

5
8
.4

58.4m

33

1
1
9

1
2
7

1
3
1

1
3
5

1
6
8

1
5
8

1
6
4

1
6
2

1
6
0

1
2
5

1
2
3

1
3
7

1
2
9

S
ta

n
d
s

1
3
3

1
5
6

1
5
4

1
6
61
7
0

5
3
.2

m

127

105
117

139

CLAREMONT ROAD

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

5
7
.3

m

93

83

91

73

C
L
A

R
E

M
O

N
T

 R
O

A
D

59

71

67

79

91

112

47

1
1
7

1
1

3

1
2
1

1
1
5

103

R
O

A
D

H
O

U
SE

CLIT
TER

PC
s

C
lit

te
rh

o
u
s
e

58.1m

126

H
o

u
s
e

1
3
8

S
c
h

o
o

l

152

52.8
m

36

35

CLAREMONT ROAD

5
6
.7

m

52
.4

m

28

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

22

C
la

re
m

o
n
t

21

L
B

1
61

5

P
O

1

2

4
8

.6
m

14

2

1

1
4
1

24

2

4
9

.2
m

45

50

38
26

37

13

25

CLITTERHOUSE ROAD

18

1
7

R
os

a 
Fre

ed
m

an
 C

en
tre

C
L
A

R
E

M
O

N
T

 W
A

Y

14

1

5
3

.6
m

23

13

33

CLITTERHOUSE CRESCENT

C
la

re
m

o
n
t 
W

a
y

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te

G
a

m
e

s
 C

o
u

rt

S
u

b
 S

ta

W
a

s
te

 T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
S

ta
ti
o

n

G
a

m
e

s
 C

o
u

rt

E
l

W
eighbrid

ge

S
ta

B
re

n
t 
S

o
u
th

 S
h
o
p
p
in

g
 P

a
rk

25

S
u

b

12

13

3

19

20

14

15

16

24

21

B
u

ild
e

r'
s
 Y

a
rd

4

1

2

W
o
rk

s

P
o
s
ts

5
5
.0

m

60 62

3826

5
0

C
L
IT

T
E

R
H

O
U

S
E

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

L
B

5
1

.8
m

106

8 7

11

6C
LA

R
E
M

O
N

T
 W

A
Y

S
ta

E
l 
S

u
b

S
u

b
 S

taE
l

T
a

n
k
s

F
B

L
 T

w
r

W
r 

T
w

r

E
S

S
's

E
l

W
o
rk

s

S
u

b
 S

ta

117

7

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

W
o
rk

s

W
o
rk

s

BR
EN

T T
ER

R
AC

E

TILLING ROAD

T
C

B

96

55

72

84

49

80

L
B

8
3

1
4

0

98

104

P
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

1
3
0

62

57

71

CLIT
TERHO

USE

C
R

E
S
C

E
N

T

55

63

120

110

43

64

61

BR
EN

T T
ER

R
AC

E

98

94

86

74

5
2
.7

m

71

78

77

Tra
ve

llin
g C

ra
ne

T
a

n
k5

2
.8

m

5
2

.6
m

90

84

105

89

E
l

97

101

92

S
u

b
 S

ta

Refu
se

 T
ra

nsf
er S

ta
tio

n

B
re

n
t 
S

id
in

g
s

B
re

n
t 
J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

M
P

 6

S
P

W
B

W
B

W
B

T
a

n
k

T
a

n
k

C
ar

ria
ge

 S
he

d

S
ta

p
le

s
 C

o
rn

e
r

C
in

e
m

a

W
at

lin
g 

S
tre

et

R
O

M
A
N
 R

O
A
D

S
L

SL

P
o

s
ts

L
 T

w
r

4
8
.2

m

R
e
ta

il 
P

a
rk

12

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

D
e
p
o
t

G
ERO

N W
AY

T
a
n
k

5
2
.6

m

39

49

44

50

S
L

M
P 0

.2
5

SL

Bre
nt S

id
in

gs El S
ub S

ta

M
P 5

.7
5

L
 T

w
r

M
a

s
t

S
B

S
L

5
0
.7

m

5
3
.8

m

387

383

385

Ease
y 

H
ouse

5
2
.4

m

E
l 
S

u
b

S
ta

43

W
or

ks

389

CR

Topp W
alk

1

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

32

H
o

u
s
e

H
a

n
o

v
e

r

W
a

re
h

o
u

s
e

G
E

R
O

N
 W

A
Y

Boro
 C

onst
, G

L A
sl
y 

C
onst

 &
 L

B B
dy

D
ef

P
o

s
ts

P
o

s
ts P

o
s
ts

4
6
.5

m

C
o
rn

e
r

P
a
rk

395

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta 1

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

H
U
M

BER
 R

O
AD

P
o

s
ts

S
h

e
lt
e

r

S
 G

a
n

tr
y

4

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

P
o

s
ts

L
B

4
5
.1

m

14

16

401

9

S
ta

p
le

s

R
e
ta

il

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

e
n
tr

e

T
h
e
 E

d
g
e

El S
ub

 S
ta

6
0
.0

m 35

6

7

11

12

27

8

25

2

3

6

M
ill

e
n
iu

m
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

e
n
tr

e

2
0

M
e

tr
e

s

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

183



184

This page is intentionally left blank



1
0
4

109

92

109

C
U

M
B
R

IA
N

 G
A
R

D
E
N

S

1
3
0

1
2
1

1
3
3

1
5
9

1
3
5

1

1
4
9

1
5
4

1
4
2

1
4
7

C
H

E
V

IO
T

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

4

2

5

10

9

22
5

25

23
7

C
F

to

9

1 TO 8

20

5
3
.8

m

24
9

220

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

W
O

O
D

V
A

L
E

W
A
Y

T
H

E
 V

A
LE

22

69

to

80

3
3
 to

 4
4

5
6

57 to 68

to

4
5

21 to
 32

7

1

1
3

19

21

COMPTON CLOSE

14

21

7

5
5
.5

m

W
o
rl
e
y 

C
o
u
rt

1
 t
o
 1

2

D
e
liv

e
ry

 O
ff

ic
e

R
o
y
a
l 
M

a
il

SANDIF
ER D

RIV
E

L
B

1
 to

 6

to

1
1
5

7
9
 t
o
 9

0

1
2
0

13

6
1
 t
o
 7

8

6
0
.0

m

1
1

7

7
 to

 1
8

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

5
8
.9

m

5

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

4
3
 t
o
 6

0

2

C
e
n
tr

e

D
R

A
Y

C
O

T
T
 C

L
O

S
E

SHANNON C
LOSE

CLAREMONT ROAD

TCB

1 to 6

Robinson Court

3

1
7

37 to 42

1
9
 to

 3
0

1
 to

 5

L
e
e
 C

t

6
0
.0

m
E

S
S

1
 to

 8

1

Joy Court 1 to 12

Heyford Court

F
a
lk

ir
k 

C
o
u
rt

2
4

3
6

28

26

23

L
 T

w
r

R
a
tc

lif
fe

1 to
 8

Cresswell C
ourt

1
 to

 6

C
o
u
rt

N
u
rs

in
g
 H

o
m

e

4

1 to 12

1
6

H
AN

D
LEY G

R
O

VE

18

S
L

S
L

S
L

5
8
.7

m

5
5
to

6
3

1to6

5
2
to

5
4

70 to 78

44to51

1 to
 9

64to69

36to43

K
e

m
p

s
 C

o
u

rt

D
A

IR
Y

M
A

N
 C

L

10 to
 15

2
5
 to

 2
7

28 to 35

R
a
y
n
e
s
 C

o
u
rt

5
3
.6

m

21

112

12
0

P
E
N
N
IN

E
 D

R
IV

E

24

1

119

121

30

31

30a

32

2

12
2

13

163

C
A

N
E

Y
 M

E
W

S

8

23

4

124

3

1
4
3

13
6

BR
EN

T T
ER

R
AC

E

5
3
.0

m

5
2
.8

m

5
1
.5

m

16
8

9

10

R
ye

 C
ourt

7

1

143

137

13
8

14
4

1 
to

 6

1 
to

 6

135

C
F

Bre
nt S

id
in

gs

L T
w
r

T
C

B

50.5
m

5
1
.5

m

1
6
7

Claremont

7 to 12

171

179

169

9

Free Church

1

H
a
ll

2

13 to 18

R
om

ne
y 

R
ow

8

D
O

V
E
R

 C
LO

S
E

D
ra

in

C
R

U
n
d

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

5
4
.0

m

5
2
.4

m

25
9

3
9

18

2
8

58

D
o
n
o
g
h
u
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

C
H
IL

TE
R
N
 G

A
R
D
E
N
S

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

CR

S
L

L
B

L T
wr

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

5
1
.3

m

60

M
P

 5
.2

5

1 to
 8

Safe Start H
ouse

Hazeldean Court

C
ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d
 C

u
rv

e

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d

5
6
.9

m

1
6

1

5
6
.7

m

12

1

2

H
ouse

R
edw

ood

11

Campion T
erra

ce

6

Tan
k

T
a
n
k

L
 T

w
r

Allo
tm

ent G
ard

ens

5
5
.1

m

11

14

17

12

11

12 5
5
.8

m

Terra
ce

7

1

Jo
hnsto

n

6

4

Midland T
erra

ce

4

K
A
R

A
 W

A
Y

11

5
3
.4

m

Gra
tto

n T
erra

ce

8

17

28

17

9

Needham T
erra

ce

23

22

12

22

S
L

L
 T

w
r 5

0
.6

m

28

34

Midland T
erra

ce

38 33

33

Johnston T
erra

ce

28

50.0
m

267 to 289

1

10a

10b

11

10

23

23

22

20

S
L

S
P

S
P

M
P 5

.5

B
re

n
t 

S
id

in
g

s

S
P

34

33

34

40

44

39

39

30

4
8
.2

m

4
7
.8

m

75

Burlin
gton P

ara
de

301

21

Gra
tto

n T
erra

ce

299

6

20a

20b

291

77

25

Boro
 C

onst,
 G

L A
sly

 C
onst 

& LB B
dy

CR

T
a
n
k

D
W

4
6
.3

m

48
.8

m

40

D
o
rc

h
e
st

e
r 
C

o
u
rt

1
 t
o
 6

7
 t
o
 1

0

318

W
a
re

h
o
u
s
e

E
l

S
u
b
 S

ta

414

CRIC
KLEW

OOD B
ROADW

AY

R
O

M
AN

 R
O

AD

H
o
is

t

L
B

4
5
.5

m

4
7
.1

m

309

307

35

1

31

305

1a

W
atlin

g S
tre

et

ROMAN R
OAD

4
6
.9

m

83

(P
H

)
H

o
te

l303

8

4

2

CRIC
KLEW

OOD B
ROADW

AY

78

74

78

H
o
u
s
e

B
e
n
tl
e
y

1
 t
o
 9

4
5
.7

m

84

24

1

18

S
L

Sig
na

l G
an

try

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

M
P

 5
.5

D
W

4
7
.5

m

329

E
l 
S

u
b

S
ta

40
8

R
O

M
A
N

 R
O

A
D

Boro C
onst, G

L A
sly C

onst &
 LB B

dy

CR

S
u
p
e
rs

to
re

13

23

T
E

M
P

LE
 R

O
A

D

38

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

4
3
.7

m

4
8
.9

m

400

1

1

4

S
u
p
e
rs

to
re

329

S
h
e
lt
e
r

O
sw

al
d 

T
er

ra
ce

2

43

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

5

33

L
O

N
G

L
E

Y
 W

A
Y

(co
urse

 of)

ROMAN R
OAD

W
atlin

g S
tre

et

U
n
d

S
P

S
P

MP 5.5

T
a
n
k
s

L
B

5
1
.4

m

4
3
.0

m

5
1
.0

m

55

2a

1
2

S
B

5

7
1

1
 t
o
 2

4

B
a
d
g
e
r

1 to
 9

3

31
 to

 4
2

N
e
a
g
le

10

H
o
u
s
e

Gladsto
ne P

ara
de

W
illi

ams H
ouse

327

C
lu

b

1

1a

1 to 8

1
 to

 6

1 to
 32

41

11

1

23

2

2

8

3

4

39

12

26

35

18

25

19
 to

 2
4

53
57

Holloway House

21

O
sw

al
d 

T
er

ra
ce

C
o
u
rt

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

STOLL C
LOSE

LANGTON R
OAD

R
U

S
P

E
R

 C
LO

S
E

C
F

T
C

B

5
2
.2

m

5
1
.9

m

G
la

dst
one

9

Para
de

6

8

4
9
.9

m

12

2

2

CourtPara
de

Gladsto
ne

4

11

1

W
ilm

ent

61

59

57

55

67

53

22

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 P

a
rk

P
in

e
m

a
rt

in

51

1
 t
o
 1

8

1
 t
o
 3

0

D
e
b
h
a
m

C
o
u
rt

K
a
tr

in
e

16

C
o
u
rt

P
IN

E
M

A
R

T
IN

 C
LO

S
E

Dra
in

P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d

4
2
.6

m

1
9

14

22

1

162

1 
to

 6

W
o

rk
s

1
3

1

13

1
6

18

32

N
E

W
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D

Dra
in

C
R

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

5
5
.2

m

5
4
.6

m

H
ou

se

3
3
8

371

2

(S
c
h

o
o

l)

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

S
a

k
u

tu

M
o

n
te

s
s
o

ri

4

Topp W
alk

1 1

1b

3a

3b

1a

3

357

34
6

C
on

w
ay

3
4
4

34
8

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

D
O

LL
IS

 H
IL

L 
LA

N
E

W
atlin

g S
tre

et

RO
M

AN R
O

AD

Boro
 C

onst
, G

L A
sly

 C
onst

 &
 L

B B
dy

CR

14

N
ur

se
ry

 S
ch

oo
l

O
ur

 L
ad

y 
of

 G
ra

ce

19

R
C

 In
fa

nt
 a

nd

21

3
3
6

24

36

21

D
O

LL
IS

 H
IL

L 
A
V
E
N

U
E

5
0
.4

m

31

41

32

G
LA

D
S
T
O

N
E
 P

A
R

K
 G

A
R

D
E
N

S

42

35

29

27

25

33

31

9

1

3

7

5

2

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

1

6

1

SHOBROKE C
LOSE

S
ub

 S
ta

E
l

12

10

13

2 to 8

COPPERMEAD CLOSE

23 to 29

3
9

31

4
7

21

20

22 to 28

3
4

3
5

25

2
7

3
0

W
O

T
T
O

N
 R

O
A
D

Allo
tm

en
t G

ar
de

ns

4
2
.2

m

35

3
8

5
9
.2

m

35

El S
ub S

ta

1
3

5

12

1
4

3
3
2

3
2
4

N
e
w

 R
o
w

3

1

2
2
1

O
X
G

A
T
E
 G

A
R

D
E
N

S

CONW
AY R

OAD

H
IL

L

D
O

L
L
IS

LA
N

E

5
1
.0

m

10

54 to 76

52to

18

to

53

6

42

13

44

30

32

20

52

51

58

2

BROADFIELD CLOSE

2
4

2
1

H
o
u
s
e

H
a
n
o
v
e
r

W
a

re
h

o
u

s
e

3
2
0

2
1
9

2
1
7

47

47
a 47

b

40

38

M
OUNT R

OAD

E
l

1S
u
b
 S

ta

33

25 to 31

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

23

7
2

185



186

This page is intentionally left blank



B
a

s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 ©

 C
ro

w
n

 C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

 A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
.

L
ic

e
n

c
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r:

 1
0

0
0

4
4

8
2

1

1
:1

2
5
0
 @

 A
1

B
re

n
t 
C

ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d
 R

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
(C

P
O

 1
 a

n
d
 C

P
O

 2
)

R
e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
:2

5
0
0
 @

 A
1

70 to 78

1 to
 3

5
2
to

5
4

64to69

T
h

o
rv

e
rt

o
n

14

C
o

u
rt

19

1
0
0

23

2
5
 to

 2
7

10 to
 15

16 to 24

6

1 to
 9

15

44to51

28 to 35

36to43

R
a
y
n
e
s
 C

o
u
rt

9

1 to
 6

D
A

IR
Y

M
A

N
 C

L

5
4
.1

m

S
u

b
 S

ta

1

70

C
ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d
 S

ta
ti
o
n

80

E
l

S
L

Subway

TC
B

L
B

5
2
.1

m

68

1

C
R
IC

K
LE

W
O

O
D
 L

A
N
E

7

33

58

S
L

5
1
.1

m

S
L

S
L

56

41

O
ak

 H
ou

se

48a

50

1 
to

 8

11
0

10
9

M
P

 5

51.8
m

48

1a

1

2

5

13

12

S
P

27

22

13

5
1
.6

m

23

32

39

26

51

40

19

OAK G
ROVE

5
1
.7

m

55

2
3

29

31

S
L

L
B

51
.8

m

to

3

1

E
lm

 L
od

ge

1

2

32

26 28

14

13

ELM
 G

ROVE

S
L

S
L

C
R

IC
K

L
E

W
O

O
D

L
B

50
.4

m

170

172

2
b

12

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

S
u

p
e

rs
to

re

C
ro

w
n 

T
er

ra
ce

20

9

1

9a
 to

 9
b

1a

Surg
ery

2c

182

174

2

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

W
o
rk

s

11

C
R

IC
K
LE

W
O

O
D

 L
A
N

E

EDW
ARD C

LO
SE

Def

Boro
 C

onst
, G

L A
sly

 C
onst

 a
nd L

B B
dy

49.2
m

1 to 8

154 1
56

2

1
7
3
a

1
7
3
b177

173

B
a
n
k

175

169 171

167

(P
H

)

T
h
e
 C

ro
w

n
 H

o
te

l

B
a
n
k

164 to
 1

68

192

T
C

B
s

191

CRIC
KLEW

O
O

D B
RO

ADW
AY

3

1
7
3
c

1

M
EW

S

O
AKLANDS P

ASSAG
E

O
AKLA

N
D
S

5
6

.7
m

12

19a

Court

M
ilto

n

4 to
 9

18
b

Russell P
ara

de

16

17

16a

18

15

19

18
a

1

El S
ub

 S
ta

223

1
 t

o
 4

5

S
e

lig

C
o

u
rt

6

W
o

lf
s
o

n

C
o

u
rt

10237 381
 t
o
 1

1

LI
M

E
S
 A

V
E
N
U
E

13

2

1

30

C
F64

79

S
in

ai
 S

yn
ag

og
ue

66

5
9

.4
m

61

36

28

S
to

n
e

M
o
u
n
ti
n
g

5
5

.9
m

5
5

.1
m

239

241

S
w

a
n

W
h

it
e

(P
H

)

20

1 to 3

243

8

2

1a

Z
o

h
a

r

C
o

u
rt

2a

5
5

.7
m

50

11
12

L
B

5
6

.8
m

23

25

1

TH
E D

R
IV

E

S
L

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

16

13

U
n
d

6
2

.8
m

87

76

99

3

1

3
0

48

2
5

W
E

S
S

E
X

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

W
ESSEX W

AY

12a

9 to 12

1

to

25

30

14

15

17 to 24

W
in

d
s
o

r 
C

o
u

rt

16

to

8

37
 to

 4
4

47

13

1

5
6

.9
m 22

11

12

H
IG

H
F
IE

LD
 A

V
E
N

U
E

68

Li
on

el
 L

ei
gh

to
n 

H
ou

se

60

66

16

14

13 B
E
V
E
R
LE

Y
 G

A
R
D
E
N
S

2

47

35

52

45

12

2

2
5

13

20

S
L

24

25

17

3
3

M
O

N
T
P
E
LI

E
R

 R
IS

E 5
9

.2
m

94

92

84

Gara
ge

C
F

T
C

B

73

1
0
9

3
74

0

20

3
6

12

C
W

S
u
b
w

a
y

5
5
.0

m

5
2

.2
m

1
1
9

1

2

60

HENDON W
AY

3
6

22

to

2
0

34

32

H
IG

H
F
IE

L
D

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

23

32

5
3

.8
m

33

5
9

6
1

90

86

78

79

67

33

7

1

22

12

57

16

9

17

6

W
O

O
D
V
IL

LE
 R

O
A
D

S
L

5
3

.0
m

3
7

30

E
LM

C
R

O
F
T
 C

R
E
S
C

E
N

T

44

3
9

4
6

36

13

28

19

CR

F
W

L
B

S
h
e
lt
e
r

4
9

.2
m

1
2
7

191

199

5
1

3
9

4
7

2
6

50

4
9

27

35

58

43

MONTPELIER WAY

SANDRIN
GHAM R

OAD

13

2

8

22

14

4

C
W

F
W

C
W

4
8

.4
m

4
8

.1
m

211

W
e

s
s
e

x
 G

a
rd

e
n

s

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

1
1
3
9

23

13

52

79

4
8

35

BRENTM
EAD P

LACE

NORTH C
IR

CULAR R
OAD

4
6
.3

m

117

1

54

S
L

2
6

43

R
E

N
T

E
R

S
A
V
E
N
U
E

1

1
3

2
1

2

5
4
.6

m

355

345

C
or

ne
rw

ay
s

1
6
4

1 to 4

P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

16
9

17
1

1
6
5

47

4
5

2

1
8
 t
o
 2

6

12

36

13

37

70

67

59

64

70

AUDLEY ROAD

10

44

4
9
.0

m

15

11

17

13

21

4
2
.4

m
1
a

1

56

64

105

3
6

S
H

IR
E

H
A

LL
 P

A
R

K
S

L

53

2

45

3

74

66

2
a

91

S
L

38

65

8

1

2

H
IG

H
FI

E
LD

 G
A
R
D
E
N
S

4
7
.7

m

11

13

20

5

1
0

1
8

27

9

1
6

W
E
S
TE

R
N
 A

V
E
N
U
E

G
O

LD
ER

S M
AN

O
R
 D

R
IV

E

93

78

4
1
.8

m
8
5

8
9

48

75

9
1

7
9

8
7

4
1
.4

m

4
1

5
4

4
3

P
o
s
ts

46

T
h

e

44

B
u

n
g

a
lo

w

80

38 to 43
to

8
4

H
A

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

337

2
0
0

28

2

1
4

1

H
E

N
D

O
N

 W
A

Y

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

1
5
4

1
4
2

4
9
.0

m

15
5

14
3

138

5
4

.3
m

3

7

13

T
C

B

L
B

1

1

2

124

1
4
1

122

126

FA
IR

FI
E
LD

 A
V
E
N
U
E

1

1
2
9

1
2
0

5
2
.7

m

1
0
5

1
1
7

3
5

1

2

26

1

E
L
L
IO

T
 R

O
A

D

27

65

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 C
e
n
tr

e

55

58

28

58

47

DARTMOUTH ROAD

BERTRAM ROAD

2
5

1
1
3

25

52

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

50

53

55

24

T
C

B

43

46

1

44

46

35

V
ic

a
ra

g
e

S
t 
Jo

h
n
's

 C
h
u
rc

h

V
IC

A
R

A
G

E
R

O
A

D

13a

O
liv

o
s

C
o
tt
a
g
e

14

15

32

38

41

35

40

41

33

44

32

23

73

5
0
.4

m

23

25

32

2
8

80 26

F
B

F
B

32 to 37

4
0

1 
to

 6

7 
to

 1
2

C
liv

e
 L

o
d

g
e

F
B

W
e
ir

4
0
.8

m
14

 to
 1

9

26 to 31

20 to 25

2
7

H
E

A
T
H

F
IE

L
D

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

S
u
b
w

a
y

T
C

B

El S
ub S

ta

E
l

4
to

5

S
ta

S
u
b

M
u

lt
is

to
re

y
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk

GARDENS

PRINCE

D
R

IV
E

BRENT C
ROSS

S
P
A
LD

IN
G

CHARLES

12

M
u
lt
is

to
re

y
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

B
re

n
t 
C

ro
s
s
 S

h
o
p
p
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e

2

8
8

9
3

9
8

1

9
6

1
1
0

P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

5
8
.8

m

5
7

6
9

7
8

8
1

1

13

2a4

6
4
.5

m

29

26

27

28

2
4

13

20

20

13

25

MOUNT ROAD

4
9

4
3

5
1

.8
m

42

31

46

10

14

S
L

M
P

 9

15

11a

9

11

E
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

1 to 3

S
he

lte
r

T
h

e

C
O

O
P
E
R
 R

O
A
D

RO
AD

B
R

E
N

T
 C

R
O

S
S
 F

LY
O

V
E
R

18

17

15

16

13

1

24

2

5

17
18

16

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

4

7
0

6
2

16

7
6

5
8

12

7

8

2

1

17

4

13

3

1
5

10

2
6

9

16 12

13
17

5
0

.9
m

1

42

34

2

6
1

H
IG

H
F
IE

L
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

S
L

S
ub

w
ay

4
9
.4

m

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

1 
to

 1
2

7
3

1a

1

3

1b

6
7

2

6
9

O
ak

fie
ld

 C
ou

rt
14

 to
 2

3

1

81

79

7
7

S
ur

ge
ry

R
iv
er B
re

nt

N
O

R
T
H

 C
IR

C
U

LA
R

 R
O

A
D

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

Underpass

SPALDING ROAD

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d

30

29

7

13

1
0

5
4

N
IC

O
LL

P
L
A

C
E

19

1

6

DANIEL PLACE

S
T D

A
V
ID

'S
 P

LA
C
E

G
a
m

e
s
 C

o
u
rtE
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

6
0
.5

m

2

54

56

1

3
9

3
7

P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

L
B

G
a
n
tr

y

6
0
.7

m

2

1
3

1
5

1
7

3
3

3
5

3
1

21

13

ST M
AR

Y'S
 R

O
AD

S
L

S
L

L
B

4
4

4
8

6
0

5
2

8
5

B
re

nt
 C

ro
ss

 S
ta

tio
n

4
2
.4

m

9
B
re

nt
fie

ld
 G

ar
de

ns

B
R

E
N

T
F

IE
L
D

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

C
R

Bor
o 

C
on

st
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bdy

FB

FB

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

4
2

4
1

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

13

16

1
3

6
6

4
4

3
4

3
8

1
8

6

3
0

1

P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

1
9

2
9

4
1

W
o
o
d
v
ill

e

1
 t
o
 4

3
9

C
o
u
rt

4
7
.6

m

6
2

136

7
2

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

4
6
.4

m

S
h
e
lt
e
r

165

11
1

18

97

9
5

T
IL

L
IN

G
 R

O
A

D

B
R

E
N

T
 C

R
O

S
S
 F

LY
O

V
E
R

H
E
N
D
O

N
 W

A
Y

H
IG

H
F

IE
L
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

6
5

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

5
3

1
3

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

P
o
s
t

7
7

9
2

1
0
2

7
8

S
T

U
R

G
E

S
S

 A
V

E
N

U
E

T
a
n
k

P
a

rk
fi
e

ld
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

1
2
6

1
1
4

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

13

27

M 1

S
L

V
ia

du
ct

3
4

3
2

6
7

5
9

4
8

61

5
7

59

F
W

L
B

5
0

.9
m

4
7

.8
m

17

31

21

38

30

62

5
2

6
7

7
3

54

39

47

46

HAMILTON R
OAD

4
4

5
04

0

4
0

3
8

5
3

5
6

W
O

O
D

V
IL

L
E

 R
O

A
D

4
5
.8

m

143

114

6
8

141

5
9

124

10
2

10
0

74

82

8

11

H
E
N

D
O

N
 W

A
Y

W
O

O
D

V
IL

LE
 G

A
R

D
E
N

S

R
iv

e
r 
B

re
n
t

S
u
b

S
taE
l

T
C

B

S
h
e
lt
e
r

S
h
e
lt
e
r

M
a
s
t

L
B

E
l

S
u
b

B
u

s
 S

ta
ti
o

n

S
h
e
lt
e
r

T
IL

L
IN

G
 R

O
A

D

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

26

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

20

LAYFIE
LD C

LOSE

1
2

1
2
a

99

50

6

9
1

7
9

4
0

P
o
s
t

6
7

1

9
7

1
3

8
7

5
5

2
2

1
2

2

9
9

1
1
3

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E

32

47

1
2
3

1
2
1

1
3
8

P
o
n
d

T
C

B

41

53

55

DALLAS R
OAD

S
P

4
8

.0
m

4
8

.1
m

4
9

.0
m

7
5 63

55

72

93

91

8
3

74

82

8
5

78

4
6
.5

m

88 97

111

6
0

94

90

S
ub

w
ay

4
5
.3

m

2

125

1

S
ta

176

133

S
u

p
e

rs
to

re

H
A
M

IL
T
O

N
 R

O
A
D

E
l

F
B

W
e
ir

M
a
s
t

S
ta

S
u
b

G
a
s
 G

o
v
n

P
R

IN
C

E
 C

H
A

R
L
E

S
 D

R
IV

E

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

152

140

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

1

7
0

95

L
B

8
5

1
2
8

1
1
6

7
3

6
1

56

4
3

3
7

4
6

5
8

L
A

Y
F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

2
5

3
6

2
8

1
3

5

L
A

Y
F
IE

L
D

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

4
3

2

1
2

2
7 1

3

2
3

L
B

3
7

89

G
a
n
tr

y

75

63

71

ROM
AN R

OAD

4
6
.9

m

126

100

124

F
B

4
6
.6

m

4
6
.4

m

4
8

.0
m

79

35

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

3
1

2
3

71

87

H
e
n
d
o
n
 Y

o
u
th

S
u
p
e
rs

to
re

1 to
 6

33

3
1

1 to
 8

F
B

4
7
.2

m

H
o

u
s
e

S
c
h

o
o

lk
e

e
p

e
r'
s

S
ta

1

1
6

1
8

1

E
l 
S

u
b

1

2

W
h

it
e

fi
e

ld
 S

c
h

o
o

l

2
3

1
3

1
3

S
p
o
rt

s
 C

e
n
tr

e

20

30

37

1 to
 6

45

32

1 to
 6

4

4

1
4

1
 to

 6

M
A
R

B
LE

 D
R

IV
E

M
A

R
B

L
E

 D
R

IV
E

T
o
p
a
z 

W
a
lk

MARBLE D
RIV

E

G
a

rd
e

n
s

A
llo

tm
e

n
t

48

40

5

17

13

3

8

15

21

A
llo

tm
e
n
t

G
a
rd

e
n
s

10

27

53

42

4

10

1

9

1
 t
o
 6

41

13

2

17

9

A
M

B
E

R
 G

R
O

V
EJADE C

LOSE

Prayle Grove

2

2
9

3
3

3
9

5

11a1
1

1

1
 t
o
 6

1
2

1
 t
o
 6

P
R

A
Y

L
E

 G
R

O
V

E

PEARL C
LOSE

32

2
2

13

P
a
th

4
5
.5

m

25

2
7

21

1
 t
o
 4

4

2

1

1
0

T
C

B

4
6

.4
m

4
6

.0
m

1

1
7
9

C
la

re
 P

o
in

t
13

2

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

8

CR

Boro
 C

onst
 &

 W
ard

 B
dy

L
B

G
a
n
tr

y

4
1

.1
m

4
2

.2
m

B
re

n
t 

F
a

rm

C
o

tt
a

g
e

7 
to

 1
2

D
ys

on
 C

ou
rt7 

to
 1

2

1 
to

 6

R
aw

lin
so

n 
C
ou

rt

1 
to

 6

S
ch

oo
l

M
ap

le
do

w
n

N
O

R
T
H

 C
IR

C
U

LA
R

 R
O

A
D

TIL
LI

N
G

 R
O

AD

C
LA

R
E
M

O
N

T
 R

O
A
D

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

ETHERIDGE ROAD

STADIUM ROAD

STADIUM ROAD EAST

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

P
a
th

9
2

1
0
4

4
9

8
0

B
R

E
N

T
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D

6
8

3
7

2
4

SP

S
P

T
C

B

6
 to

 1
0

1

1

10
5

3

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

10
1

1
2

D
A
LL

A
S
 R

O
A
D

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta
E

l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

70 to
 7

8

1

2
5

1
3

5
4

1

M
 1

60 to
 6

8

4
2

.9
m

13

14

1
 to

 4
4

12

W
h

y
c
h

c
o

te
 P

o
in

t

1

5

8

C
la

re
fi
e
ld

 P
a
rk

P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d

C
la

re
fi
e
ld

 P
a
rk

P
o
s
ts

4
2

.1
m

G
a

rd
e

n
 C

o
u

rt

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

H
o

te
l

1 
to

 6

And
er

so
n 

C
ou

rt

16

7 to
 1

2

W
H
IT

E
FI

E
LD

 A
V
E
N
U
E

TEMPELHOF AVENUE

T
E

M
P

E
L
H

O
F

 A
V

E
N

U
E

W
H
IT

EFIE
LD

 A
VEN

U
E

R
iv

e
r 
B

re
n
t

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

F
B

F
B F

B

4
2

.5
m

4
3

.0
m

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

C
a

rd
if
f 

H
o

u
s
e

STAD
IU

M
 R

O
AD

T
IL

L
IN

G
 R

O
A

D

A
4
0
6

N
O

R
T

H
 C

IR
C

U
L
A

R

STADIUM ROAD EAST

N
O

R
T

H
 C

IR
C

U
L
A

R
 R

O
A

D

N
O

R
T

H
 C

IR
C

U
L
A

R
 R

O
A

D

4
0

.3
m

M
 1

N
O

R
T

H
 C

IR
C

U
L
A

R
 R

O
A

D

R
iv

er
 B

re
nt

G
a
n
tr

y

F
B

4
2

4
0

D
en

m
ar

k 
H

ou
se

AD
R
IA

N
 A

VEN
U
E

M
1

G
an

tr
y

1
1
4
 to

 1
3
6

1
7
4
 to

 2
0
8

1
3
8
 to

 1
7
2

4
0
.2

m

210 to 256

V
e

ru
la

m
 C

o
u

rt

RO
M

AN R
O

AD

W
atlin

g S
tre

et

D
e
f

B
o
ro

 C
o
n
s
t,
 G

L
 A

s
ly

 C
o
n
s
t 
&

 L
B

 B
d
y

W
a
re

h
o
u
s
e

E
lit

e
 H

o
u

s
e

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

W
EST H

ENDO
N B

RO
ADW

AY

B
R

E
N

T
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A
D

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

W
EST H

ENDO
N B

RO
ADW

AY

5
1

.5
m

65

53

46

38

221

74

79

72

PURBECK D
RIV

E

D
ra

in

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

56

65

58

87

77

81

86

95

D
ra

in

52

39

97

62

10772

26

27

W
A
LL

C
O

TE
 A

V
E
N
U
E

88

38

76

64

44

C
lit

te
rh

o
u
s
e

P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

s

P
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

131

121

109

PR
AYLE

 G
R
O

VE

5
5

.0
m

86

C
O

TS
W

O
LD

 G
A
R
D
E
N
S

14

100

143

167

155

110

P
y
lo

n
F

lo
o
d
lig

h
t

T
e
rr

a
c
e
s

S
ta

n
d

Stand

F
o
o
tb

a
ll 

C
lu

b

H
e
n
d
o
n

F
a
rm

 C
o
tt
a
g
e

F
lo

o
d
lig

h
t

P
y
lo

n

T
e
rr

a
c
e
s

F
o

o
tb

a
ll

Terraces

G
ro

u
n

d

5
8

.4

58.4m

33

1
1
9

1
2
7

1
3
1

1
3
5

1
6
8

1
5
8

1
6
4

1
6
2

1
6
0

1
2
5

1
2
3

1
3
7

1
2
9

S
ta

n
d

s

1
3
3

1
5
6

1
5
4

1
6
61
7
0

5
3

.2
m

127

105
117

1 to 44

N
o

rd
e

n

P
o

in
t

139

CLAREMONT ROAD

CLAREMONT R
OAD

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

5
7

.3
m

93

83

91

73

C
L
A

R
E

M
O

N
T

 R
O

A
D

59

71

67

79

91

112

47

1
1
7

1
1
3

1
2
1

1
1
5

103

R
O

A
D

H
O

U
SE

CLIT
TER

74

65

77

11
0

98

119

131

C
LE

V
E
LA

N
D
 G

A
R
D
E
N
S

PC
s

2

10
0

12

F
a

rm

C
lit

te
rh

o
u

s
e

Q
U
A
N
TO

C
K
 G

A
R
D
E
N
S

58.1m

126

H
o
u
s
e

1
3
8

S
c
h
o
o
l

152

89

22

L
B

1
61

5

P
O

1

2

4
8
.6

m

14

2

1

1
4
1

24

2

4
9
.2

m

45

50

38
26

37

13

25

CLITTERHOUSE ROAD

18

1
7

R
os

a 
Fre

ed
m

an
 C

en
tre

C
L
A

R
E

M
O

N
T

 W
A

Y

14

1

5
3
.6

m

23

13

33

CLITTERHOUSE CRESCENT

C
la

re
m

o
n
t 
W

a
y

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te

G
a
m

e
s
 C

o
u
rt

S
u
b
 S

ta

W
a
s
te

 T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
S

ta
ti
o
n

G
a
m

e
s
 C

o
u
rt

E
l

W
eighbrid

ge

S
ta

B
re

n
t 

S
o

u
th

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 P

a
rk

25

E
l

S
u
b

12

13

3

19

20

14

15

16

24

21

B
u
ild

e
r'
s
 Y

a
rd

4

1

2

W
o
rk

s

P
o
s
ts

5
5
.0

m

60 62

3826

5
0

C
L
IT

T
E

R
H

O
U

S
E

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

L
B

5
1
.8

m

106

8 7

11

6C
LA

R
E
M

O
N

T
 W

A
Y

S
ta

E
l 
S

u
b

S
u
b
 S

taE
l

T
a
n
k
s

F
B

L
 T

w
r

W
r 

T
w

r

E
S

S
's

E
l

W
o
rk

s

S
u
b
 S

ta

117

115

7

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

W
o
rk

s

W
o
rk

s

BR
EN

T T
ER

R
AC

E

TILLING ROAD

T
C

B

96

55

72

84

49

80

L
B

8
3

1
4
0

98

104

P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d

1
3
0

62

57

71

CLIT
TERHO

USE

C
R

E
S
C

E
N

T

55

63

120

110

43

64

61

BR
EN

T T
ER

R
AC

E

98

94

86

74

5
2

.7
m

71

78

77

Tra
ve

llin
g C

ra
ne

T
a
n
k5

2
.8

m

5
2
.6

m

90

84

105

89

E
l

97

101

92

S
u
b
 S

ta

Refu
se

 T
ra

nsf
er S

ta
tio

n

B
re

n
t 
S

id
in

g
s

B
re

n
t 
J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

M
P

 6

S
P

W
B

W
B

W
B

T
a
n
k

T
a
n
k

C
ar

ria
ge

 S
he

d

S
ta

p
le

s
 C

o
rn

e
r

C
in

e
m

a

W
at

lin
g 

S
tre

et

R
O

M
A
N
 R

O
A
D

S
L

SL

P
o
s
ts

L
 T

w
r

4
8

.2
m

R
e
ta

il 
P

a
rk

12

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

D
e
p
o
t

G
ERO

N W
AY

5
2

.6
m

39

49

44

50

S
L

SL

Bre
nt S

id
in

gs

S
B

S
L

5
0

.7
m

387

5
2

.4
m

43

389

G
E

R
O

N
 W

A
Y

Boro
 C

onst
, G

L A
sl
y 

C
onst

 &
 L

B B
dy

D
ef

P
o
s
ts

P
o
s
ts P

o
s
ts

4
6

.5
m

C
o
rn

e
r

P
a
rk

395

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta 1

C
R

B
or

o 
C

on
st

 &
 W

ar
d 

B
dy

P
o
s
ts

S
h
e
lt
e
r

S
 G

a
n
tr

y

4

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

P
o
s
ts

L
B

4
5

.1
m

14

16

401

9

S
ta

p
le

s

R
e
ta

il

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

T
h

e
 E

d
g

e

11

12

8

M
P 6

.2
5

L
 T

w
r

3

1

1a

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

6

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

A
4
0
6

4
7

.3
m

4
4

.7
m

1

8

3

2

9

C3

1a

6

EDG
W

ARE R
O

AD

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
l

E
s
ta

te

5

1

F
B

40.6
m

4
2

.6
m

4
0

.0
m

N
O

R
T

H
C

IR
C

U
LA

R
 R

O
A
D

A5

Boro
 C

onst
, G

L A
sly

 C
onst

 &
 L

B B
dy

Def

F
B

F
B

F
B

S
h
e
lt
e
r

4
0

.1
m

4

S
ta

p
le

s
 C

o
rn

e
r

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

S
u
b
 S

ta

E
l

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

415

6

2
3

1

4

2

3

O
xg

ate
 C

entre

1

A
tla

s 
B
us

in
es

s 
C
en

tre

S
M

5
0

.1
m

7

O
x
g
a
te

 H
o
u
s
e

15
c

15
a

10

5

15
b

1
3

14

B
re

n
t 
B

ri
d
g
e

T
a
n
k

5d

5a

33

F
B

5g

31

5c

T
a
n
k

5

1
1

2
4

1
8

1
0

1
2

17

15

5

T
a
n
k

2

E
l

S
u
b
 S

ta

2
1

2
0

1
8
a

9

2
5

A
tla

s 
B

u
si

n
e
ss

 C
e
n
tr

e

N
o

rt
h

 C
ir
c
u

la
r 

R
o

a
d

5

4

4

5

8

1
9

7

2
21
0
0
0

C
o

rn
e

r

S
ta

p
le

s

4

1
4

8

11

12

5e

16

5h

6 
a 

to
 x

5f

G1 to G18

30

33
a

32

5b

ED
G

W
AR

E R
O

AD

W
EST H

ENDO
N B

RO
ADW

AY

E
D

G
W

A
R

E
 R

O
A

D

4
3

.5
m

3

9

1

T
H

E
 L

IN
K

P
R
IE

S
TL

E
Y
 W

A
Y

2

1
2

1

Works

1
4

11

1
3

K
E

L
C

E
D

A
 C

L
O

S
E

145

1391 1
0
0
0

1
5

R
o
a
d

W
a

re
h

o
u

s
e

s

N
o
rt

h
 C

ir
c
u
la

r

Drain

R
iv

e
r 

B
re

n
t

G
a
n
tr

y

F
B

S
h
e
lt
e
r

F
B

4
5

.6
m

4
5

.7
m

U
n
it

6 to 8

11

S
u
b
 S

ta

E
l

5

162

10

Unit 2

U
n
it 6

160

J
V

C
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

Unit 1

9
9
8

N
O

R
T

H
 C

IR
C

U
L
A

R
 R

O
A

D

5
2

.6
m

5
5
.5

m

W
a

re
h

o
u

s
e

Unit 3

63

152 to 154

158

Unit 4

W
a

re
h

o
u

s
e

1

M
a
g
ic

 H
o
u
se

150

4

156

COLES G
REEN ROAD

S
T

R
E

A
K

E
S

 F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

5
8
.1

m

127

119

1 to
 38

2

137

COLES G
REEN R

OAD

T
a
n
k
s

6

D
e

lt
a

 C
o

u
rt

148

5
2

.5
m

3

1
0

7

7

1
1

8

4a

1

4b

1

9

4

C
L
O

S
EO

XG
ATE L

AN
E

H
O

R
S
E
S
H
O

E

T
C

B

5
9

.2
m

97

2

3

26

1

99

O
xg

at
e 

C
ou

rt 
Par

ad
e

6

8

O
x 

an
d 

G
at

e

1

4

3

4c

2

101

5

(P
H
)

T
C

B

6
0
.3

m

1 to 8

O
x
g

a
te

6

34

to

C
o

u
rt

27

1 to
 32

Farm

W
o

rk
s

Oxgate

117

113

O
x
g

a
te

O
x
g

a
te

 F
a

rm

P
a

ra
d

e

E
Y

H
U

R
S

T
 C

L
O

S
E

30

45

W
o
rk

s

43

41

W
o
rk

s

W
o
rk

s

W
o
rk

s

C
o

le
s
 G

re
e

n
 C

o
u

rt

W
o
rk

s

47

WATERLOO ROAD

5
8
.3

m

T
h
e
 A

p
sl

e
y 

C
e
n
tr

e

B

34

A

32

C

25

39

37

4

L
B

6
0
.0

m

6
6

18

18a

20

24

8
0

22

8
3

7
3

6
1

C
P

O
 A

re
a
 2

 A
c
q
u
is

it
io

n

C
P

O
 A

re
a
 1

 N
e
w

 R
ig

h
ts

C
P

O
 A

re
a
 1

 A
c
q
u
is

it
io

n

2
0

M
e
tr

e
s

1
0
0

1
0

0
1
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

2
5

0
2
5

5
0

7
5

1
0
0

1
2
5

1
5
0

1
7
5

2
0
0

M
e
tr

e
s

187



188

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
 
As a strategic housing authority the London Borough of Barnet considers how best to meet 
future housing demand based upon limited resources available in terms of land.  
 
The Council’s Housing Strategy, has the overarching objective of providing housing 
choices that meet the needs and aspirations of Barnet residents, the business case 
summarises the Council’s approach to achieving these objectives by increasing Housing 
supply and maximising the Council’s land resources to meet future housing demand whilst 
creating a long term revenue stream. This reports therefore seeks the following approvals; 
 
 

Recommendations  
 
That the Committee approves the following; 
 

 

ASSETS, REGENERATION & 
GROWTH COMMITTEE 
 
1 June  2015  
 

Title  
 
BARNET DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE 
 

Report of 
 
Director of Place (Re), Stephen McDonald 
  

Wards 
 
Edgware, Underhill and Hale Wards  

Status 

 
Public  

 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A –Land adjoining Whitings Hills School  
Appendix B –Land adjoining Broadfields School  
Appendix C –Land adjoining Northway/Fairway School  
Appendix D – Risk Register  

Officer Contact Details  

Stephen McDonald, Director of Place (Re) 
Stephen.McDonald@barnet.gov.uk. 0208359 7607 
Abid Arai, Development Programme Director (Re) 
Abid.Arai@barnet.gov.uk 0208359 4980 
 

AGENDA ITEM 12

189



 
 

1. To  note progress to date  
 

2. To commence the procurement of a suitable building contractor with final 
appointment to follow the approval of the full Business Case 

 
3. To report back to committee in September with a Full Business case and 
proposed development structure  

 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee approved at its meeting on 

9 July 2014 the approach to, and the principles underpinning, the creation of 

a Development Pipeline, and that an initial list of potential development 

opportunities to bring forward sites which were declared surplus to 

requirements. 

1.2  The Committee further approved at its meeting on 8 September 2014 that 

following consultation with Ward Members the potential development 

opportunities at Broadfields, Whitings Hill, Northway/Fairway, Coppetts Road 

and Moxon Street can be taken forward to planning.  

1.3  The Committee approved at its meeting on 16 March 2015 a further 

recommendation to agree in principle to take forward the development 

opportunities at Broadfields, Whitings Hill, Northway/Fairway, with Coppetts 

Road and Moxon Street to follow with a report to follow outlining a detailed 

business case, preferred development option, and funding route for all five 

sites. 

 

1.4    The recommended sites are the first to be put forward out of a pipeline of 
surplus sites.   

 
1.5 These sites have been declared surplus to requirements and received 

Section77 & 35a consent from the Department of Education to permit 
disposal of the sites. These sites were released from education use in 2007. 

 
1.6 Disposal of these sites as-is has been considered.  However, taking the sites 

through to planning consent eliminates the planning risk associated with the 
acquisition of these sites by a would-be developer (should the Council 
subsequently decide to dispose of these sites) and therefore materially 
increases the disposal value.   

 

1.7 Continuing to hold the sites in their existing condition could result in unlawful 
occupation, management costs in maintaining security and fails to realise the 
value of the land which will assist in delivering other corporate objectives. The 
development of these sites for residential purposes will provide much needed 
accommodation in the Borough.  

 
 

190



 
 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The recommended sites are the first to be put forward out of a pipeline of 

surplus sites.  In order to maximise the potential value of these sites, the 

Council previously considered three options outlining the potential 

advantages and disadvantages of each option: 

  Option 1:  Market sites for residential development with the benefit of     

planning consent 

 Option 2:  London Borough of Barnet develop the sites 

Option 3: London Borough of Barnet enter into joint venture with Re 

and/or another development partners 

 

Upon conclusion of this review the recommendation is option 2 namely 

because neither option 1 or 3 deliver the full benefits to the Council nor do 

they prove the concept of the Council redeveloping its own land. 

 

Option Benefits of Preferred delivery Option 

2 • Complete control of housing mix, through planning 
process and agreed design standards 

 

• LBB control speed of development and construction 
 

• LBB benefits from sales receipts 
 

• LBB control development standards 
 

• LBB control sales and marketing process 
 

• Enhanced capital receipt circa 2018 
 

• Element of affordable housing will become  capital 
asset 

 

• Council retain full development value created 
 

• Open book procurement through a OJEU compliant 
framework 

 

2.2      Delivery Structure: 

191



 
 

 

The Council has commissioned an external consultant to review a range of 

delivery vehicles that could be established to develop these projects. The 

initial conclusion is that the Council needs to establish a company to take 

forward development.  Further detailed legal advice is being taken on the 

structure of the company, and this will feed into the Final Business Case to be 

considered in September. 

 

2.3     Key benefits by taking forward the development are; 

• The Council benefits from the entire uplift in value from developing its 
own sites 

 

• By realising the delivery of more units both private and affordable the 
Council benefits from economic growth ensuring that the Borough 
remains an attractive place to live whilst contributing towards its 
housing objectives 

 

• The proposed residential developments represent an opportunity to 
create high quality new housing 

 

• Promoting high quality architecture and design 
 

• Opportunity to create a variety of housing tenures and facilitate new 
products being introduced to promote first time buyers i.e. Home 
buy/First buy 

 

• Achieving high standards of sustainable development i.e. Life time 
Homes 

 

• Contributing to  the housing needs of residents 
 

• Generating funding i.e. Council Tax, New Homes Bonus, /Cil for local 
infrastructure and service improvements  

 

• By taking the direct development route the Council benefit from the 
value uplift 

 

Creation of employment and training opportunities targeted at 
Barnet’s disadvantaged groups, unemployed etc.  

• Creating opportunities to design out crime and improve community 
cohesion i.e. secure by design 

 

• High quality amenity areas 
 

• Creation of play and recreational facilities such as Northway/Fairway 
 

192



 
 

2.4 Procurement of a contractor 

The process for procuring a contractor to build the new homes is expected to 

take around six months.  In order not to lose momentum in delivery of the new 

homes, the committee is asked to agree that procurement can begin now.  No 

appointment would be made unless and until the Committee approves the final 

business case, scheduled for July.  More information is in section 4. 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

3.1 The recommended five sites are the first to be put forward out of a pipeline of 
surplus sites. Continuing to hold the sites in their exiting condition could result 
in unlawful occupation, management costs in maintaining security and fails to 
realise the value of the land which will assist in delivering other corporate 
objectives. The development of these sites for residential purposes will provide 
much needed accommodation in the Borough.  

 
3.2 The alternative options would mean that the Council would have limited control 

as to when the schemes are delivered (3-5 years) (i.e. deal subject to detailed 
planning). 

3.3 The imposed quality of housing standards would affect the offer value from a 
third party developer. 

3.4 Any joint venture route would result in sharing profit and reward. 

3.5 We have considered delaying the commencement of procurement until the 
Final Business Case is agreed.  However this would delay the delivery of much 
needed new market and affordable housing. 

 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 
4.1  Re, on behalf of the Council, is currently finalising the full business case for the 

preferred development option, which will be presented to the Committee at its 
September meeting, this will include the cooperate structure for delivery, 
technical & legal advice to taking the housing projects forward to delivery stage. 

 
4.2 To maintain programme momentum in the interim, the report seeks Committee 

approval to commence the procurement process which typically can take 6 
months.  Final appointment will be subject to the approval by Committee of the 
full business case.  

 
4.3 Re will commence the procurement process by accessing the multi-supplier 

London Development Panel (LDP) framework established by the Greater 
London Authority (GLA) 

 
4.4 The LDP consists of twenty five panel members procured to provide a range of 

services and works on housing led sites. The two stage Design and Build 
process and early engagement with a contractor on the design will help 
improve the predictability of costs, time and quality of the tender return. 

193



 
 

 
4.5 Following the conclusion of the procurement process, and committee approval 

of the full business case, LBB will enter into a contractual agreement with a 
suitable contractor.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 
5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

 
5.1.1 The Corporate Plan 2013-16 has a strategic objective to “promote responsible   

growth, development and success across the Borough”. 
 

5.1.2 The Council’s Estates Strategy 2011 – 2015 sets out our commitment to 
continually review the use of Council Assets so as to reduce the cost of 
accommodation year on year.  
 

5.1.3 Consideration of the proposed Strategic Asset Management Plan is also being 
considered by Assets Regeneration and Growth Committee, which if approved 
will form the basis of decisions for the council’s property portfolio.   
 

5.1.4 The Growth Strategy for Barnet recognised that growth is vital for ensuring the 
future prosperity of the Borough and maintain Barnet as a successful London 
suburb. 

 
5.1.5 The Council’s Local Plan adopted in 2012 sets out a 15 year ‘vision’ to help 

shape the kind of place that Barnet will be in the future. It supports the delivery 

of new homes including affordable dwellings and the use of brownfield land for 

high quality and sustainable suburban development. 

5.1.6 The Council’s Housing Strategy, agreed in 2010 has the overarching objective 

of providing housing choices that meet the needs and aspirations of Barnet 

residents and sets out how the Council will deal with a number of challenges 

including high prices, a shortage of affordable housing and the potential threats 

to the qualities that make the Borough attractive. 

5.1.7 It identifies a number of core objectives including increasing housing supply, 

including family sized homes to improve the range of housing available to 

residents, promoting mixed communities and maximising opportunities 

available for those wishing to own their home. 

5.1.8 The Council is developing a new draft Housing Strategy which is currently out 

to consultation and reinforces a number of these key aims. 

 

 

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 

Sustainability) 

194



 
 

5.1.9 The estimated costs of developing the three sites is being finalised. It is 

assumed that these costs will be funded initially through prudential borrowing at 

PWLB rates, repaid from private sales receipts and any potential grant funding 

that may be available. The full costs and funding will be presented in the Final 

Business Case. 

 
Programme 

 
The proposed timeline to incorporate (A-F below) across all five sites is 

schedule within 2015/16. 

a. Planning committee for Northway/Fairway, Broadfileds & Whittings   
September 2015 

b. Planning committee for Coppetts Road & Moxon Street - October 2015 
c. Judicial review (6 weeks) 
d. Commencement of procurement June – December 2015 
e. Full business case to Asset Regeneration & Growth Committee- 

September 2015 
f. Commence Construction January 2016 

 

 
5.2 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
5.2.1 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – The Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee has responsibility for “Asset Management 
– all matters relating to land and buildings owned, rented or proposed to be 
acquired or disposed of by the Council and the approval of non-statutory plans 
that concern asset management matters  

 
5.2.2 Section 2.8 of The Management of Assets, Property and Land Rules, contained 

in the Council’s constitution states that the “Strategic Asset Management Plan 
will govern decisions on the future direction and development of the Council’s 
Built Environment” and Section 2.9 (i) provides “An Annual Work Plan will 
govern decisions on whether to dispose of an Asset for purposes in accordance 
with the Corporate Plan objectives” 

 

• 5.2.3 Local authorities are given the general power under Section 123 

of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) to dispose of land 

held by them in any manner they wish. The only constraint is that, 

except with the consent of the Secretary of State, a council cannot 

dispose of land, other than for the grant or assignment of a lease not 

exceeding seven years, for a consideration less than best that can 

reasonably be obtained. Such consent is required unless the General 

Disposal Consent 2003 applies. This gives a blanket consent where 

the undervalue is less than £2m and the disposal will help to secure 

the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 

environmental well-being of the Borough. The Council  will need to be 

195



 
 

satisfied that those criteria will be met by the proposed arrangements. 

Notwithstanding that the General Disposal Consent 2003 may apply, 

when disposing of land at an undervalue the Council should remain 

aware of the need to fulfil its fiduciary duty in a way which is 

accountable to local people. 

 
 

5.2.4 Council Constitution, The Management of Asset, Property and Land Rules, 
Appendix 2, Table B sets out the acceptance  thresholds which provides 
authority for the action. Financial arrangements in excess of £100,000 must be 
approved by Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee. 
 

5.2.5 The Localism Act 2011 specifies that commercial trading must be undertaken 
through a company or a form of industrial and provident society. Detailed legal 
and technical advice is being sought on legal requirements including the 
appropriate company structure and the legal implications arising from the chosen 
structure will be reported to committee in the Full Business case. 

 
 
5.3  Risk Management 

5.3.1  Retaining these sites while the Council undertakes outline design and planning 
submission subjects the Council to increased market risk.  The current housing 
market is strong and the Council would get considerable market interest should 
it seek to dispose of these sites as is.  However, if the Council were to dispose 
of these sites for maximum value now, the contract would be subject to 
planning, and therefore the price would reflect that uncertainty.  By undertaking 
the planning itself, the Council and Re are best placed to manage this risk and 
capture the value uplift.   

 

5.3.2 Continuing to hold the sites in their existing condition could result in unlawful 
occupation, management costs in maintaining security and fails to realise the 
value of the land which will assist in delivering other corporate objectives. The 
development of these sites for residential purposes will provide much needed 
accommodation in the Borough. 
 

5.3.3  Resolution on the appropriate delivery vehicle & tax implications to take these 
developments forward needs to be considered. 

 
5.3.4 Sales risk- due to market volatility changes in market place may affect outright 

sales values & demand  
 

5.3.5 Perception & reputation- i.e. LBB as private house builder, will need to be 
considered in the context of ensuring that the correct branding vehicle is 
adopted to take the marketing of each site forward. 
 

196



 
 

5.3.6 Resolution on the management of the rented and shared ownership properties 
through a registered provider needs to be considered 

 
5.3.7 Funding (LBB will need to underwrite full development costs) 
 
5.4 Equalities and Diversity 
 

5.4.1 Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council must have due regard to the need 

to: a)  eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; b) advance equality of 

opportunity between those with a protected characteristic and those without; 

c) promote good relations between those with a protected characteristic and 

those without. The ‘protected characteristics’ referred to are; age; disability; 

gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; 

sexual orientation. It also covers marriage and civil partnership with regards to 

eliminating discrimination. 

5.4.2 The Council is committed to improving the quality of life for all and wider 

participation in the economic, educational, cultural, social, and community life 

in the Borough. 

5.4.3 The development proposals will make significant contribution to the provision 

of additional, high quality affordable housing in the Borough as well as 

promoting construction jobs in the borough.  

5.4.4 At this stage the proposal does not raise  any issues under the Council’s 

Equalities Policy and does not have a bearing on the  Council’s ability to 

demonstrate that it has paid due regard to equalities as required by the 

legislation. No immediate equality impacts are anticipated as a result of this 

proposal.  

5.4.5 The new affordable housing units should the Council decide on the 
development route will be let in accordance with the council’s housing 
allocations scheme which was subject to a full equalities impact assessment 
to ensure it does not disadvantage any households on the basis of ethnicity, 
faith, gender, disability or sexual orientation or age.  

 
5.5 Consultation and Engagement 
 
5.5.1 In progressing options for the 3 sites, Local Ward members, Residents, 

Stakeholders and each of the adjoining schools have been fully briefed and 

their views sought on the development proposals. Key issues raised 

concerned traffic and parking implications, mix of accommodation and density, 

affordable housing, open space provision, trees, impact on existing 

neighbouring amenity and overlooking of school grounds. These issues have 

been considered in the current design proposals. 

197



 
 

5.5.2 Public exhibitions were organised across each site in March seeking 

resident’s views, in relation to the proposals, constraints and opportunities 

including indicative layout and house type designs. A web-page & dedicated 

contact details were made available to allow residents & members of the 

public to continue to engage, prior to the submission of the planning 

application.  

5.5.3 Further consultation will be carried out as part of the statutory planning 

process. 

 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
6.1      Assets Regeneration and Growth Committee, 9 July 2014, Strategic Asset 

Management Plan 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=696&MId=7960&V

er=4 . 

6.2      Assets Regeneration and Growth Committee, 8 September 2014, 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=696&MId=7885&V

er=4  

6.3      Assets Regeneration and Growth Committee, 16t March 2015  
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s21974/BARNET%20DEVELOPME
NT%20PIPELINE%20-%20TRANCHE%201.pdf   

198



 
 

APPENDIX A – LAND ADJOINING WHITINGS HILLSCHOOL 

 

  

199



 
 

APPENDIX B – LAND ADJOINING BROADFIELDS SCHOOL 

 

  

200



 
 

APPENDIX C- LAND ADJOINING NORTHWAY / FAIRWAY SCHOOL 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

201



 

APPENDIX D – RISK REGISTER  

Workstream Project Risk Category Risk Description 
"There is a Risk that...."  

Risk 
Owner 

Impact 
5 = Critical 
4 = High 
3 = Medium 
2 = Med-
Low 
1 = Low 

Probability 
5 = 

Occurred 
4 = High 
3 = Medium 
2 = Med-
Low  
1 = Low 

PRIORITY 
(Impact 
multiplied 

by 
Probability) 

Risk Management 
Actions 

Design Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Planning risk That highways / transport 
/ parking issues are not 
sufficiently   addressed  

Re 

3 1 3 

A specialist transport 
consultant has been 
engaged to assess the 
impact 

Programme Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Business risk The scheme does not 
meet the Councils 
corporate aims and 
objectives 

LBB 

2 2 4 

The design variables have 
been considered in 
conjunction with planning 
and housing policy 
guidelines and in 
particular makes provision 
for affordable housing, 
amenity space and 
parking in accordance with 
local plan standards 

Programme Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Procurement 
risk 

There is not sufficient 
market interest in 
tendering 

Re 

3 2 6 

The procurement is going 
through a framework for 
the scheme, which is 
expected to have a 
number of interested 
bidders involved 

Construction Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Build risk  That the construction 
overruns and is not 
delivered in time 

Re 

4 1 4 

Capita, LBB's joint venture 
partner is experienced in 
managing major 
construction schemes. Re 
will be reporting regularly 
through the Development 
Pipeline Programme 

202



 
 

Board 

Design Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Planning risk That planning permission 
is not obtained within the 
Council's required 
timescales 

Re 

4 2 8 

A specialist planning 
consultant has been 
engaged to assess and 
liaise with the Planning 
Authority 

Programme Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Funding risk  That funding is not 
available for the cost of 
the whole development 

LBB 

5 2 10 

The business case will 
review the availability of 
capital funding and/or any 
external funding 

Programme Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Procurement 
risk 

The contractor is not 
procured within LBB's 
timeframe 

Re 
4 3 12 

Early engagement with the 
framework panel will 
ensure timely delivery 

Design Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development  

Design risk That the design is not 
policy compliant 

Re 

4 3 12 

Capita, LBB's joint venture 
partner is experienced in 
designing housing 
development schemes. 
This will be managed 
through the planning 
application submission 
process 

Programme Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Commercial risk Over the course of the 
development, build cost 
inflation is likely to occur  

LBB 

3 3 9 

The selection of a 
contractor through an 
OJEU compliant 
framework will ensure 
construction cost rates are 
competitively priced  

Commercial  Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Commercial risk Over the course of the 
development house price 
inflation/deflation is likely 
to occur 

LBB 

3 3 9 

Capita real estate is 
experienced in reviewing 
market conditions. Sale of 
outright private units will 
be phased in line with 
market demand 

Programme Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Planning risk  The scheme could be 
judicially reviewed  

LBB 

4 3 12 

Robust public, 
stakeholder, resident 
engagement and 
compliance with planning 
policy guidelines 

203



 
 

 

Commercial Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Commercial 
Risk 

The details of the 
development structure are 
not finalised in sufficient 
time to progress the 
development  

LBB 

4 3 12 

The London Borough of 
Barnet have 
commissioned external 
consultants to review a 
range of delivery vehicles  

Programme/ 
Commercial 

Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Procurement 
Risk  

Delays could occur in 
accessing the 
procurement  framework  

LBB 
3 3 9 

Early authorisation to 
access framework to be 
approved by LBB  

Programme  Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Business risk The management of the 
rented and shared 
ownership properties 
through a registered 
provider needs to be 
considered. 

LBB 

4 3 12 

The London Borough of 
Barnet have 
commissioned external 
consultants to review a 
range of delivery vehicles. 
The preferred housing 
provider route is to be 
finalised through this 
process  

Commercial  Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Commercial The appropriate branding 
strategy is not 
implemented in sufficient 
time.   

LBB 

3 2 6 

Capita, LBB’s joint venture 
partner is experienced in 
providing branding options 
through its extensive 
network of professional 
services  

Programme  Tranche 1 
Housing 
Development 

Business risk  Holding the sites in their 
existing condition could 
result in unlawful 
occupation, management 
costs and fails to realise 
the value of land  

LBB 

3 1 8 

The approach to take the 
development pipeline 
forward has been 
approved by committee 

204



 

 

Summary 
The Committee is requested to consider and comment on the items included in the 2015/16 
work programme 
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 2015 
work programme 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

1 June 2015 

Title  
Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee - Work Programme 

Report of Commissioning Director (Environment) 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix A - Committee Work Programme May 2015 to May 
2016 

Officer Contact Details  
Paul Frost - Governance Service, Team Leader 
paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk 
020 8359 2761 

AGENDA ITEM 13

205



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 The Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee Work Programme 2015/16 
indicates forthcoming items of business. 
 

1.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, 
which will be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the 
inclusion of areas which may arise through the course of the year.  
 

1.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own 
schedule of work within the programme.  

 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 There are no specific recommendations in the report. The Committee is 

empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of work 
within the programme.  

 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 N/A 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Any alterations made by the Committee to its Work Programme will be 
published on the Council’s website. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The Committee Work Programme is in accordance with the Council’s strategic 
objectives and priorities as stated in the Corporate Plan 2013-16. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

 
5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
5.3.1 The Terms of Reference of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 

is included in the Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A. 
 
 
 
 
 

206



5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 

 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 None. 
 
 

207



208

This page is intentionally left blank



 

       
 

 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 

A
s
s
e
ts
, 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 G
ro
w
th
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
5
 -
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
6
  

 

 

  
 

C
o

n
ta

c
t:
 P

a
u

l 
F

ro
s
t 

P
a

u
l.
fr

o
s
t@

b
a

rn
e

t.
g
o

v
.u

k
 

  
 209



 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

7
 

 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
5
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

 
T

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
fo

r 
e

a
c
h
 r

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 
s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
3

 a
n
d

 a
g
g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
 o

v
e

r 
a

ll 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 

in
 e

a
c
h

 t
e
n

u
re

 t
y
p

e
, 

b
e
fo

re
 a

n
d

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

, 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
m

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 t

im
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 w
h

e
n

 n
o

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 

a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
o

c
c
u
p
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 R

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
d

ra
ft
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
5

, 
fo

r 
fi
n
a

l 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
. 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 &

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

R
e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t 
A

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 O

u
tl
in

e
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 (
O

B
C

) 
 

T
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
 O

u
tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
a

s
e

 (
O

B
C

) 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

  

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 
C

o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 
O

rd
e

r 
(N

o
. 

3
) 

(T
h

a
m

e
s
lin

k
) 

 

T
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
o
f 

m
a

k
in

g
 o

f 
a

 c
o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 o
rd

e
r 

(C
P

O
) 

in
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 l
a

n
d

, 
in

te
re

s
ts

 a
n
d

 
ri
g
h

ts
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 n
e

w
 

T
h
a

m
e

s
lin

k
 a

t 
B

re
n
t 

C
ro

s
s
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

B
X

C
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 R

e
 

210



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

L
a

n
d

 a
t 
P

a
v
ili

o
n

 W
a

y
, 

B
u

rn
t 

O
a

k
, 

E
d

g
w

a
re

 
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

la
n

d
 f
o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 e

x
ti
n

g
u

is
h

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 

ri
g
h

ts
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

n
d
. 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

 In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ip
e

lin
e

 
T

ra
n

c
h

e
 1

 
T

o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 w

it
h

 f
in

a
l 
a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 r
a

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
ll 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 b
y
 A

R
G

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

c
e

, 
R

e
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 R

e
 

7
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

5
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 &

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

R
e

 
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ip
e

lin
e

 -
 

T
ra

n
c
h

e
 1

 
 

T
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
 F

u
ll 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
p

ip
e

lin
e

 t
ra

n
c
h

e
 1

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
. 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

c
e

 (
R

e
) 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
(R

e
) 

 

D
a

w
s
 L

a
n

e
 

 
T

o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 t
h
e

 r
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
D

a
w

s
 

L
a

n
e

 a
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 h

u
b

. 
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

 

211



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

3
0

a
, 
3

0
b

, 
3

0
c
, 

A
le

x
a

n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 N
1
0
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 f

ro
m

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t,
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 
s
it
e

 a
s
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 3

 n
e

w
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
. 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

 In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

O
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
 W

o
o
d

la
n
d

 
A

re
a

, 
T

o
 T

h
e
 R

e
a

r 
O

f 
B

ro
o

k
d
e

n
e

, 
7

1
 H

o
ld

e
n

 
R

o
a

d
, 
L

o
n
d

o
n

, 
N

1
2

 7
D

R
 

 

T
o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 
d

is
p

o
s
e
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 O

p
e
n

 S
p
a

c
e
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

 In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 
- 

S
h

a
re

h
o

ld
e

r 
B

o
a

rd
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 

S
h

a
re

h
o

ld
e

r 
B

o
a

rd
 t

o
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

s
 a

 
s
h

a
re

h
o

ld
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 S

o
u

th
 J

o
in

t 
V

e
n

tu
re

 w
it
h

 
A

rg
e

n
t 

R
e

la
te

d
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

B
X

C
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 R

e
 

 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 
G

ra
h

a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
n

c
ip

a
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
o

lin
d
a

le
 

H
Q

 
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 a
m

e
n
d

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
G

ra
h

a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
n

c
ip

a
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 t
o

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 
th

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e

 o
f 

la
n

d
 f
o

r 
a

 n
e

w
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
 i
n

 C
o

lin
d
a

le
. 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

c
e

 (
R

e
) 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
(R

e
) 

 

B
u

rn
t 

O
a

k
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

p
e
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
H

ig
h

 
S

tr
e

e
t 

F
u

n
d
 m

o
n

ie
s
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

  

212



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ip
e

lin
e

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 T
ra

n
c
h
e

 2
 

 

T
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e

 
n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
: 

 
1

. 
R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
M

e
a
d
o

w
 

C
lo

s
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 H
o
m

e
 

(O
u

tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

) 
2

. 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

(O
u

tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

) 
  

3
. 

P
ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n

te
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

L
a

n
d
 

(O
u

tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

) 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ip
e

lin
e

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
 

A
s
s
e

ts
, 
L

a
n
d

 a
n

d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

A
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
 

 
C

h
ie

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

  

A
n

n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
A

s
s
e

ts
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

T
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
n

 u
p

d
a

te
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 L

e
a

d
 

E
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e
u

ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 r

e
 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5
 

E
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e
u

ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 
- 

S
o

c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

  

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 
T

h
a

m
e

s
lin

k
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 

F
u

n
d

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s
s
 

C
ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 T
h

a
m

e
s
lin

k
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
a

n
d

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

B
X

C
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 R

e
 

 

213



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 
- 

J
o

in
t 

V
e

n
tu

re
 

C
o

m
p
a

n
y
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 

J
o

in
t 

V
e

n
tu

re
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 w

it
h

 A
rg

e
n

t 
R

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 S

o
u

th
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

B
X

C
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 R

e
 

 

E
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e
u

ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 
- 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 E

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

  

A
s
s
e

ts
, 
L

a
n
d

 a
n

d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

A
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 s
it
e

s
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

  

1
4

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
6
 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d
 

 
T

o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 o
f 

th
e

 J
o

in
t 

V
e

n
tu

re
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a

t 
B

re
n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 S

o
u

th
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

B
X

C
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 R

e
 

 

F
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
h
a

rg
e

s
 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 A

s
s
e

ts
, 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
G

ro
w

th
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 F

e
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
h
a

rg
e

s
 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
s
s
e

ts
, 

R
e

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 f
o

r 
2

0
1
6

/1
7
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

  

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
T

o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

. 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 R

e
 

 

214



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
p

ip
e

lin
e

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 T

ra
n

c
h

e
 2

 
 

T
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e

 
n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
. 

 
1

. 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 (

F
u

ll 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

) 
  

2
. 

P
ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n

te
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

L
a

n
d
 

(F
u

ll 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

) 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

ip
e

lin
e

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 

th
e

 G
ro

w
th

 &
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 R

e
 

 

A
s
s
e

ts
, 
L

a
n
d

 a
n

d
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

A
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 s
it
e

s
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 /
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

 

215



216

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 16

217

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



238

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 Members Item :  Former Copthall School Grounds - Councillor Daniel Thomas
	Appendix A

	7 Breakdown of Existing and Proposed properties for each Regeneration Estate
	Appendix  A_LBB_Forecast Housing Completions & Demolitions

	8 Community Asset Strategy
	Community Assets Strategy - June 2015 - Appendix

	9 Land at Pavilion Way, Burnt Oak- Appropriation of the site for planning purposes and the grant of Tenancy at Will for a temporary school building.
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	10 London Borough of Barnet Accommodations Options Review
	Appendix A - Options Review Outline Business Case

	11 Brent Cross Cricklewood Station project update
	Appendix A - Plan 1 of 2
	Appendix B -  Plan 2 of 2
	Appendix C (Plan 2) CPO 1  CPO 2

	12 Barnet Development Pipeline
	13 COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	Appendix A - Work Programme 2015

	16 Brent Cross Cricklewood Station Project Update - EXEMPT Appendix D

